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SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-K

X ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 or 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
For the Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2007
OR
[m] TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

Commission File Number 333-95087

CENTERSTATE BANKS OF FLORIDA, INC.

(Name of registrant as specified in its charter)

Florida 5¢-3606741

(State or other jurisdiction of (I.R.S. Employer

incorporation or organization) Identification No.)
1101 First Street South, Suite 202, Winter Haven, |6rida 33880
(Address of principal executive offices (Zip Code)

Issuer’s telephone number, including area code:
(863) 293-2600

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(b) dfie Act:
Common Stock, par value $0.01 per share

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(g) tifie Act:
None

The registrant is a well-known seasoned issuediefised in Rule 405 of the Securities Act. YHS NO
The registrant is not required to file reports parst to Section 13 or Section 15(d) of the AcYES O NO

Check whether the issuer has (1) filed all repatgiired to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of 8ecurities Exchange Act of 1934 during the pasnbaths (or for such shorter period that the isstees required to file such
reports), and (2) has been subject to such fikugirements for the past 90 days. YES NO O

Check if there is no disclosure of delinquent §iler response to Item 405 of Regulation SK conthinehis form, and no disclosure will be containexdthe best of issuer's knowledge, in definitprexy or information statements
incorporated by reference in Part |1l of this FatfK or any amendment to this Form 10-KJ

Indicate by check mark whether the registrantlerge accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, &-accelerated filer, or a smaller reporting compa&se the definitions of “large accelerated filéatcelerated filer” and “smaller
reporting company” in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange. A€heck one):

Large accelerated fileid Accelerated filer
Non-accelerated filer O Smaller reporting companyd
(Do not check if a smaller reporting company)
The registrant is a shell company, as defined ite R@b-2 of the Exchange Act. YESI NO

The aggregate market value of the Common Stocheoissuer held by non-affiliates of the issuer&®,834 shares) on June 30, 2007, was approxint€l§),672,000. The aggregate market value was ceu iyt reference the
last sale of the Common Stock of the issuer at@LBer share on June 29, 2007. For the purpogéassaksponse, directors, executive officers arlddrs of 5% or more of the issuer's Common Stoekcansidered the affiliates of the
issuer at that date.

As of March 5, 2008 there were outstanding 12,8/ ghares of the issuer's Common Stock.
DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

Portions of the Proxy Statement for the Annual Megof Shareholders to be held on April 29, 2008¢diled with the Securities and Exchange Commisgursuant to Regulation 14A within 120 days efigsuer’s fiscal year
end are incorporated by reference into Part IIthef Annual Report on Form 10-K.
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PART |

Item 1. Business
General

CenterState Banks of Florida, Inc. (“We,” “Centet8t or the “Company”) was incorporated under #hed of the State of Florida on September 20, 18@aterState is a registered bank holding compadgmuhe Bank
Holding Company Act of 1956, as amended (the “BH&"Pand owns all the outstanding shares of Cemé¢eBank Central Florida (“Central”), CenterStB#nk National Association (‘CSNA”), CenterState Bani Florida (“CSB”),
and Valrico State Bank (“VSB”) (collectively, thBanks”).

In April 2007, we closed the acquisition of ValriBancorp, Inc. and its wholly owned subsidiary havi&B. VSB operates in Hillsborough County, whisttontiguous to Pasco and Polk Counties, wherewvertly have
banking locations.

On November 30, 2007, CSNA purchased all of thetassd assumed all of the liabilities of CenteeSBank Mid Florida, a bank we acquired on MarchZ06. Following the acquisition by CSNA of Ce@tate Bank Mid
Florida, the shell of CenterState Bank Mid Flongas merged with and into Atlantic Southern Bankhally owned subsidiary of Atlantic Southern Fin@i&roup, Inc., for a payment by Atlantic South&ank to CenterState of $1.0
million. The transaction allowed us to consolidae two subsidiary banks, and facilitated Atlar8imuthern Bank’s expansion into Florida.

Central and CSNA commenced operations in 1989. &®Bmenced operations in 1992. Central's operatoasonducted from its main office located in Kissiee, Florida, and branch offices located in Sou@) Poinciana,
Ocoee and Orlando, Florida. CSNA operations arelected from its main office located in Zephyrhilgorida, and branch offices located in ZephyrhBisshnell, Wildwood, Dade City, Inverness, Spritid, Crystal River,
Brooksville, Leesburg, Clermont, Groveland, andtBu&lorida. CSB operates through twelve bankowmations all within Polk County, Florida. Theseestwithin Polk County include Winter Haven, Hair@igy, Davenport, Lake
Alfred, Auburndale, Lakeland and Lake Wales. VSBducts business from its main office located inrial Florida and branch offices located in Branddithia, Plant City and Riverview, Florida. Ourée national bank subsidiaries
are subject to the supervision of the Office of @wenptroller of the Currency and our state banlsiliary (VSB) is under the supervision of the FdariOffice of Financial Regulation and the FDIC.d¥$ecember 31, 2007, we opera
through our four wholly owned subsidiary banks v banking locations located in nine countiesentral Florida.

Our Company provides a range of consumer and cooimhéanking services to individuals, businessebiadustries. The basic services we offer inclutienand interest-bearing and noninterest-bearinguets, money
market deposit accounts, time deposits, safe degpasices, cash management, direct deposits,yns¢avices, money orders, night depository, tragélghecks, cashier’'s checks, domestic collectisasings bonds, bank drafts,
automated teller services, drive-in tellers, anokiteg by mail and by internet. In addition, we maleeured and unsecured commercial and real estate &nd issue stand-by letters of credit. Our Gmyprovides automated teller
machine (ATM) cards, thereby permitting customerattlize the convenience of larger ATM networkse\Iso offer internet banking services to our austs. In addition to the foregoing services, otiices provide customers with
extended banking hours. We do not have a trustrtiepat, however, trust services are available &iaruers through a business relationship with amdtaek. We also offer other financial products tw customers, including mutual
funds, annuities and other products, through diogiship with Infinex Investment, Inc.

The revenue of our Company is primarily derivedirimterest on, and fees received in connection,wétal estate and other loans, and from interestandends from investment securities and shartiimvestments. The
principal sources of funds for our lending actistiare customer deposits, repayment of loans hensfe and maturity of investment securities. imcipal expenses are interest paid on depositspperating and general administra
expenses.
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As is the case with banking institutions generally; Company’s operations are materially and sigguiftly influenced by general economic conditiond &y related monetary and fiscal policies of fitiahinstitution regulatory
agencies, including the Board of Governors of thddfal Reserve System (the “Federal Reserve”). Sefimws and costs of funds are influenced byriegerates on competing investments and gener&letniates of interest. Lending
activities are affected by the demand for finanaingeal estate and other types of loans, whidiiin is affected by the interest rates at whicthdimancing may be offered and other factors aiifigciocal demand and availability of
funds. We face strong competition in the attractibdeposits (our primary source of lendable furatg) in the origination of loanSee‘Competition.”

C.S. Processing, Inc. (“CSP”) is a wholly ownedsidiary of our Company’s subsidiary banks. CSP @sses checks and renders statements (i.e. “itecegsing center”) and provides certain informateshnology services
for our subsidiary banks.

At December 31, 2007, our Company’s primary assete our ownership of stock of each of our four IBamt December 31, 2007, we had total consolidatsets of $1,217,430,000, total consolidated dispafs
$972,620,000, and total consolidated stockhold=yaity of $148,282,000.

Note about Forward-Looking Statements

This Form 10-K contains forward-looking statemestssh as statements relating to our financial d¢@diresults of operations, plans, objectivesyfeitperformance and business operations. Thesensats relate to
expectations concerning matters that are not ligstidfiacts. These forward-looking statements refter current views and expectations based langetn the information currently available to us anel subject to inherent risks and
uncertainties. Although we believe our expectatiamsbased on reasonable assumptions, they ageia@ntees of future performance and there arend@uof important factors that could cause actesdiits to differ materially from
those expressed or implied by such forward-loolstagements. By making these forward-looking statesyeve do not undertake to update them in any eragxcept as may be required by our disclosurgatidins in filings we make
with the Securities and Exchange Commission urfdefFederal securities laws. Our actual results difégr materially from our forward-looking statentsn

Lending Activities

We offer a range of lending services, including essate, consumer and commercial loans, to indaligland small businesses and other organizatianste located in or conduct a substantial poxtfatheir business in our
market area. The Company’s consolidated loans etiber 31, 2007 and 2006 were $841,405,000, or&i8%6$657,963,000 or 61%, respectively, of totakotidated assets. The interest rates charged as i@y with the degree of
risk, maturity, and amount of the loan, and aréhterr subject to competitive pressures, money maektes, availability of funds, and government ragiohs. We have no foreign loans or loans for lyigéveraged transactions.

Our loans are concentrated in three major areasmeocial loans, real estate loans, and consumasl@amajority of our loans are made on a secuesisbAs of December 31, 2007, approximately 84%uofconsolidated
loan portfolio consisted of loans secured by mayégeon real estate and 9% of the loan portfolicisted of commercial loans (not secured by reate)stAt the same date, 7% of our loan portfolinsisted of consumer and other loans.

Our commercial loan portfolio includes loans toiimduals and small-tanedium sized businesses located primarily in RoBceola, Pasco, Hernando, Hillsborough, Citrus,t8uyrhake and Orange counties for working cap
equipment purchases, and various other businepsges. A majority of commercial loans are secusedduipment or similar assets, but these loansaisaybe made on an unsecured basis. Commercial foayp be made at variable or
fixed rates of interest. Commercial lines of cred# typically granted on a one-year basis, wietnloovenants and monetary thresholds. Other conmh&rans with terms or amortization
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schedules of longer than one year will normallyrgamterest rates which vary with the prime lendiate and will become payable in full and are galferefinanced in three to five years. Commeraiad agricultural loans not securec
real estate amounted to approximately 9% of our @oy's total loan portfolio as of December 31, 20@¥mpared to 10% at December 31, 2006.

Our real estate loans are secured by mortgagesaansist primarily of loans to individuals and biesises for the purchase, improvement of or invedtineeral estate, for the construction of singlenilg residential and
commercial units, and for the development of siffghaily residential building lots. These real estltans may be made at fixed or variable intersst Generally, we do not make fixed-rate comraereal estate loans for terms
exceeding five years. Loans in excess of five yaeeggenerally adjustable. Our residential reatedbans generally are repayable in monthly ilmsgaits based on up to a 15-year or a 30-year aratan schedule with variable or fixed
interest rates.

Our consumer loan portfolio consists primarily @éhs to individuals for various consumer purpobasincludes some business purpose loans whicpagm@ble on an installment basis. The majority eehloans are for terms
of less than five years and are secured by liensadpus personal assets of the borrowers, butirnesloans may also be made on an unsecured Basisumer loans are made at fixed and variablegsteates, and are often based on
up to a five-year amortization schedule.

For additional information regarding the Comparigan portfolio,see“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Finan€iahdition and Results of Operations.”

Loan originations are derived from a number of sear Loan originations can be attributed to disetititation by our loan officers, existing custamand borrowers, advertising, walk-in customei @amsome instances,
referrals from brokers.

Certain credit risks are inherent in making lodrteese include prepayment risks, risks resultinghftmcertainties in the future value of collateralks resulting from changes in economic and ingustnditions, and risks
inherent in dealing with individual borrowers. larficular, longer maturities increase the risk #g@inomic conditions will change and adverselycftellectibility. We attempt to minimize creditdses through various means. In
particular, on larger credits, we generally relytioa cash flow of a debtor as the source of repayiawed secondarily on the value of the underlyiopteral.

In addition, we attempt to utilize shorter loamterin order to reduce the risk of a decline invtakie of such collateral.

Deposit Activities

Deposits are the major source of our funds forilemdnd other investment activities. We considerrtiajority of our regular savings, demand, NOW mnmhey market deposit accounts to be core depdsiese accounts
comprised approximately 45% and 54% of our conagéid total deposits at December 31, 2007 and 268pectively. Approximately 55% of our consolidatiegposits at December 31, 2007, were certificategposit compared to 46%
at December 31, 2006. Generally, we attempt to taiaithe rates paid on our deposits at a competiéivel. Time deposits of $100,000 and over madapgpoximately 31% of consolidated total depodit®ecember 31, 2007 and 25%
at December 31, 2006. The majority of the depa@sisgenerated from Polk, Osceola, Orange, Pascoahido, Hillsborough, Sumter, Lake and Citrus c@msniGenerally, we do not accept brokered depasitswe do not solicit deposits
on a national level. We obtain all of our depoSitsn customers in our local markets. For additianédrmation regarding the Company’s deposit actssee‘Management's Discussion and Analysis of Finan€iahdition and Results
of Operations—Deposits.”
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Investments
A portion of our assets are invested in U.S. Treasacurities, obligations of U.S. government agesianunicipal securities, mortgage backed seesrand federal funds sold. Our investments are geahia relation to loan
demand and deposit growth, and are generally wsprbvide for the investment of excess funds aimmahrisks while providing liquidity to fund increas in loan demand or to offset fluctuations inodép.

With respect to our investment portfolio, we invies.S. Treasury securities, obligations of U.8vernment agencies, mortgage backed securitiemanttipal securities, because such securities géipeepresent a minimal
investment risk. Occasionally, we may purchasefistes of deposits of national and state bankes€ investments may exceed $100,000 in any ofitifizs (the limit of FDIC insurance for depositaunts). Federal funds sold and
money market accounts represent the excess casaweeavailable over and above daily cash needs.nfibihey is invested on an overnight basis with@pga correspondent banks.

We monitor changes in financial markets. In additio investments for our portfolio, we monitor gailash positions to ensure that all available fuzats interest at the earliest possible date. Aigroof the investment account
is invested in liquid securities that can be rgaddnverted to cash with minimum risk of markesloEhese investments usually consist of U.S. Trgasecurities, obligations of U.S. government agenanortgage backed securities and
federal funds. The remainder of the investmentastmay be placed in investment securities of thffé type and/or longer maturity. Daily surplusdsrare sold in the federal funds market for onénesss day. We attempt to stagger
maturities of our securities so as to produce adsteash-flow in the event cash is needed, or enamconditions change.

Correspondent Banking
Correspondent banking involves one bank providewgises to another bank which cannot provide thatise for itself from an economic or practicalrstpoint. We purchase correspondent services offeyddrger banks,
including check collections, purchase of federalf) security safekeeping, investment services, aod currency supplies, overline and liquidityriguarticipations and sales of loans to or partigipewith correspondent banks.

We have established correspondent relationshigsietieral Home Loan Bank, Independent Bankers’ Bdufitorida, First American Bank and SunTrust Barildse Company pays for such services.

Data Processing
Each of our subsidiary banks use the same thitty pare data processing service bureau which pesvith automated general ledger system, depositrgarg, and commercial, mortgage and installmemdileg data
processing. The output of each of these comprelesgstems is then consolidated at the holding emmpevel.

Our banks’ wholly owned subsidiary, CSP, providemiprocessing services and certain informatiohrtelogy (“IT”) services for our subsidiary bank$i€Be services include; sorting, encoding, procgssind imaging checks
and rendering checking and other deposit statememtsmmercial and retail customers, as well previtiservices for each subsidiary bank and the Gmyppverall. The total cost of providing these #mrs are charged to each
subsidiary bank based on usage.

Effect of Governmental Policies

The earnings and business of our Company are dhbenaffected by the policies of various regulgtauthorities of the United States, especiallyRkderal Reserve. The Federal Reserve, among bihgst regulates the
supply of credit and deals with general economiwiions within the United States. The instrumesftsionetary policy employed by the Federal Reséwéhese purposes influence in various ways
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the overall level of investments, loans, other esiens of credit and deposits, and the interessrpaid on liabilities and received on assets.

Interest and Usury

Our Company is subject to numerous state and feskataites that affect the interest rates that beagharged on loans. These laws do not, underrgreseket conditions, deter us from continuing thecess of originating
loans.

Supervision and Regulation

Banks and their holding companies, and many of téliates, are extensively regulated under Hetferal and state law. The following is a brief suany of certain statutes, rules, and regulatiofecehg our Company, and
our subsidiary Banks. This summary is qualifiedtsrentirety by reference to the particular statusnd regulatory provisions referred to below &ndot intended to be an exhaustive descriptioth@ftatutes or regulations applicable to
the business of our Company and subsidiary BankseiSision, regulation, and examination of banksdgulatory agencies are intended primarily forghetection of depositors, rather than shareholders

Bank Holding Company RegulaticBur Company is a bank holding company, registeriéll the Federal Reserve under the BHC Act. As sueghare subject to the supervision, examinationrapdrting requirements of the
BHC Act and the regulations of the Federal ReseFie.BHC Act requires that a bank holding compalbtain the prior approval of the Federal Reserverigefi) acquiring direct or indirect ownership antrol of more than 5% of the
voting shares of any bank, (i) taking any actibattcauses a bank to become a subsidiary of tHehwmding company, or (iii) merging or consolidagiwith any other bank holding company.

The BHC Act further provides that the Federal Resenay not approve any transaction that would tésw& monopoly or would be in furtherance of anynbination or conspiracy to monopolize or atteropnibnopolize the
business of banking in any section of the UniteateSt or the effect of which may be substantia@liessen competition or to tend to create a monyopainy section of the country, or that in anyestmanner would be in restraint of
trade, unless the anticompetitive effects of theppsed transaction are clearly outweighed by tiipinterest in meeting the convenience and neédise community to be served. The Federal Reserakso required to consider the
financial and managerial resources and future paispof the bank holding companies and banks coedeand the convenience, and needs of the comntoriiy served. Consideration of financial resougeseerally focuses on capital
adequacy and consideration of convenience and nesass includes the parties’ performance unde€tremunity Reinvestment Act of 1977 (the “CRA”) tbaf which are discussed below.

Banks are subject to the provisions of the CRA. ¢#rile terms of the CRA, the appropriate federaklvagulatory agency is required, in connectiorhvitié examination of a bank, to assess such basktrd in meeting the
credit needs of the community served by that bamtding low- and moderate-income neighborhoode flegulatory agency’s assessment of the bankisdés made available to the public. Further, sastessment is required of any
bank which has applied to:

. charter a bank

. obtain deposit insurance coverage for a newly ehedttinstitution

. establish a new branch office that will accept ditsc

. relocate an office, ¢

. merge or consolidate with, or acquire the assetssume the liabilities of, a federally regulatedicial institutior
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In the case of a bank holding company applyingafiproval to acquire a bank or other bank holdinrggany, the Federal Reserve will assess the redadoh subsidiary bank of the applicant bank hgdiampany, and such
records may be the basis for denying the applicatio

The BHC Act generally prohibits a bank holding camp from engaging in activities other than bankimgmanaging or controlling banks or other pernbigssubsidiaries, and from acquiring or retainiimget or indirect
control of any company engaged in any activitiéeothan those activities determined by the Fed®eakrve to be so closely related to banking oragiaig or controlling banks as to be a proper intidieereto. In determining whethe
particular activity is permissible, the Federal &es must consider whether the performance of andctivity can reasonably be expected to prodecefits to the public, such as greater conveniencegased competition, or gains in
efficiency that outweigh possible adverse effestsh as undue concentration of resources, decreasgdair competition, conflicts of interest, araound banking practices. For example, factorimguaicts receivable, acquiring or
servicing loans, leasing personal property, coridgatecurities brokerage activities, performingaierdata processing services, acting as agemb&ebin selling credit life insurance and certather types of insurance in connection
with credit transactions, and certain insuranceemndting activities have all been determined byulations of the Federal Reserve to be permissitiigities of bank holding companies. Despite pepproval, the Federal Reserve has
the power to order a holding company or its subsiel$ to terminate any activity or terminate itsxewship or control of any subsidiary, when it hessonable cause to believe that continuation df aativity or such ownership or
control constitutes a serious risk to the finansatkety, soundness, or stability of any bank sudsicdf that bank holding company.

Gramme-Leach-Bliley ActEnacted in 1999, the Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act pésrttie creation of new financial services holdingpanies that can offer a full range of financiaducts under a regulatory structure based on the
principle of functional regulation. The law elimbed the legal barriers to affiliations among baakd securities firms, insurance companies, and Gittencial services companies. The law also presifinancial organizations with the
opportunity to structure these new financial affibbns through a holding company structure or arfaial subsidiary. The law reserves the role ofbéeral Reserve Board as the supervisor for baltkrly companies. At the same time,
the law also provides a system of functional refiiewhich is designed to utilize the various exigtfederal and state regulatory bodies. The law akts up a process for coordination betweengtergl Reserve Board and the
Secretary of the Treasury regarding the approvakef financial activities for both bank holding geamies and national bank financial subsidiaries.

The law also includes a minimum federal standarihahcial privacy. Financial institutions are ré®gd to have written privacy policies that mustdigclosed to customers. The disclosure of a fir@mestitution’s privacy
policy must take place at the time a customericelahip is established and not less than annualiing the continuation of the relationship. Theasb provides for the functional regulation of baecurities activities. The law repealed
the exemption that banks were afforded from thénitiefn of “broker,” and replaced it with a set of limited exemptioret tllow the continuation of some historical a¢iés performed by banks. In addition, the act aredrttie securitie
laws to include banks within the general definitadrdealer. Regarding new bank products, the lawides a procedure for handling products sold lkbahat have securities elements. In the areaofriunity Reinvestment Act
activities, the law generally requires that finahanstitutions address the credit needs of lowstnderate income individuals and neighborhoodseénctmmunities in which they operate. Bank reguagoe required to take the
Community Reinvestment Act ratings of a bank othef bank subsidiaries of a holding company intmantwhen acting upon certain branch and bank memyg acquisition applications filed by the indtitn. Under the law, financial
holding companies and banks that desire to engagevi financial activities are required to havéséattory or better Community Reinvestment Actigsi when they commence the new activity.
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Bank Regulation CenterState/Osceola, CenterState Bank and CS&lghartered under the national banking laws. Valitate Bank is a State chartered Bank. Each afepesits of the Banks is insured by the FDIC & th
extent provided by law. The Banks are subject tam@hensive regulation, examination and supervisjothe OCC. The Banks also are subject to otives End regulations applicable to banks. Such réignkinclude limitations on
loans to a single borrower and to its directoricefs and employees; restrictions on the openimcdosing of branch offices; the maintenance qtined capital and liquidity ratios; the grantinigceedit under equal and fair conditions;
and the disclosure of the costs and terms of stefitc The Banks are examined periodically by tf@30The Banks submit to their examining agencie®gi reports regarding their financial conditiand other matters. The bank
regulatory agencies have a broad range of powessftwce regulations under their jurisdiction, amdiake discretionary actions determined to beHerprotection and safety and soundness of baméisiding the institution of cease and
desist orders and the removal of directors and@ef$i. The bank regulatory agencies also have thety to approve or disapprove mergers, constibda, and similar corporate actions.

There are various statutory limitations on theigbdf our Company to pay dividends. The bank ragurdy agencies also have the general authorityrio the dividend payment by banks if such paynmeay be deemed to
constitute an unsafe and unsound practice. Fommwtion on the restrictions on the right of our Bsto pay dividends to our ComparsgePart [l—Item 5 “Market for the Registrant’s Commiquity, Related Stockholder Matters and
Purchases of Equity Securities.”

Under federal law, federally insured banks areesttbjwith certain exceptions, to certain restrizsion any extension of credit to their parent hgjdiompanies or other affiliates, on investmernhistock or other securities of
affiliates, and on the taking of such stock or sitiess as collateral from any borrower. In additibanks are prohibited from engaging in certaifirtiarrangements in connection with any extensiocredit or the providing of any
property or service.

The Financial Institutions Reform, Recovery anddecément Act of 1989 (“FIRREA”) imposed major regfairy reforms, stronger capital standards for gg/emd loan associations and stronger civil andicél enforcement
provisions. FIRREA also provides that a depositositution insured by the FDIC can be held liafleany loss incurred by, or reasonably expecteaetincurred by, the FDIC in connection with:

. the default of a commonly controlled FDIC insuregbdsitory institution; o
. any assistance provided by the FDIC to a commomiyrolled FDIC insured institution in danger of delt.

The FDIC Improvement Act of 1993 (“FDICIA”) madenamber of reforms addressing the safety and sowsdvfedeposit insurance funds, supervision, acaugrand prompt regulatory action, and also impletee other
regulatory improvements. Periodic full-scope, ae-sixaminations are required of all insured deposinstitutions. The cost for conducting an exaatiion of an institution may be assessed to thatutien, with special consideration
given to affiliates and any penalties imposed &lufe to provide information requested. Insuredesbanks also are precluded from engaging asijpeiria any type of activity that is impermissilite a national bank, including activities
relating to insurance and equity investments. Thea#so recodified restrictions on extensions efidrto insiders under the Federal Reserve Act.

Capital RequirementsThe Federal Reserve Board and bank regulatonycéggrequire bank holding companies and finanegitutions to maintain capital at adequate leelsed on a percentage of assets and off-balance
sheet exposures, adjusted for risk weights ranfyorg 0% to 100%. Under the risk-based standardtaldp classified into two tiers. Tier 1 capitalresists of common shareholders’ equity (excludimgunrealized gain (loss) on
available-for-sale securities), trust preferredlsigies subject to certain limitations, and minestain intangible assets. Tier 2 capital consisth@general allowance for credit losses exceptéotain limitations. An institution’s
qualifying capital base for purposes of its rislsé capital ratio consists of the sum
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of its Tier 1 and Tier 2 capital. The regulatorynimium requirements are 4% for Tier 1 and 8% faaltask-based capital. At December 31, 2007, oer Tiand total risk-based capital ratios were 13a8fb15.0%, respectively.

Bank holding companies and banks are also reqtorethintain capital at a minimum level based oaltassets, which is known as the leverage ratie.ffimimum requirement for the leverage ratio is 84,all but the highest
rated institutions are required to maintain rafi68 to 200 basis points above the minimum. At Ddmam31, 2007, our leverage ratio was 10.8%.

FDICIA contains “prompt corrective action” provisie pursuant to which banks are to be classifiezlone of five categories based upon capital adgguacging from “well capitalized” to “critically ndercapitalized” and
which require (subject to certain exceptions) therapriate federal banking agency to take promptective action with respect to an institution whizecomes “significantly undercapitalized” or “willy undercapitalized.”

The OCC and the FDIC have issued regulations téeiment the “prompt corrective action” provisions/iICIA. In general, the regulations define theefvapital categories as follows:

. an institution is “well capitalized” if it has ated risk-based capital ratio of 10% or greater, &dser 1 risk-based capital ratio of 6% or gredters a leverage ratio of 5% or greater and isubject to any written
capital order or directive to meet and maintaipecific capital level for any capital measur

. an institution is*adequately capitaliz” if it has a total ris-based capital ratio of 8% or greater, has a Tigsk-based capital ratio of 4% or greater, and haseré@e ratio of 4% or greate

. an institution is*undercapitalize” if it has a total ris-based capital ratio of less than 8%, has a Tiesk-based capital ratio that is less than 4% or haserage ratio that is less than ¢

. an institution is“ significantly undercapitaliz¢” if it has a total ris-based capital ratio that is less than 6%, a Tigsk-based capital ratio that is less than 3% or a &geeratio that is less than 3%; ¢

. an institution i critically undercapitalize” if its “tangible equit” is equal to or less than 2% of its total ass

The OCC and the FDIC, after an opportunity for arfrey, have authority to downgrade an instituticonf “well capitalized” to “adequately capitalizedf to subject an “adequately capitalized” or “urudgnitalized"institution tc
the supervisory actions applicable to the next lowegegory, for supervisory concerns.

Generally, FDICIA requires that an “undercapitatizenstitution must submit an acceptable capitatoeation plan to the appropriate federal bankigenay within 45 days after the institution becorheslercapitalized’and the
agency must take action on the plan within 60 dafe. appropriate federal banking agency may nagtca capital restoration plan unless, among a#ggrirements, each company having control of thgtirion has guaranteed that the
institution will comply with the plan until the ititution has been adequately capitalized on avedageg each of the three consecutive calendartepsaand has provided adequate assurances ofrperfoe. The aggregate liability under
this provision of all companies having control afiastitution is limited to the lesser of:

. 5% of the institutio’s total assets at the time the institution becc*undercapitalize” or

. the amount which is necessary, or would have beeassary, to bring the institution into compliamgth all capital standards applicable to the insiiin as of the time the institution fails to complith the plan filed
pursuant to FDICI#

An “undercapitalized” institution may not acquine iaterest in any company or any other insured siépry institution, establish or acquire additiobeanch offices or engage in any new business sitihes
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appropriate federal banking agency has acceptedjiital restoration plan, the institution is implenting the plan, and the agency determines tegribposed action is consistent with and will fartthe achievement of the plan, or the
appropriate Federal banking agency determinesrtifoped action will further the purpose of the fpp corrective action” sections of FDICIA.

If an institution is “critically undercapitalizedit must comply with the restrictions describedadn addition, the appropriate Federal bankingnay is authorized to restrict the activities of &critically undercapitalized”
institution and to prohibit such an institution tldut the appropriate Federal banking agency's prittten approval, from:

. entering into any material transaction other thathe usual course of busine

. engaging in any covered transaction with affiligges defined in Section 23A(b) of the Federal Resért);

. paying excessive compensation or bonuses

. paying interest on new or renewed liabilities aa@ that would increase the institution’s weighaedrage costs of funds to a level significantlgezding the prevailing rates of interest on insutegbsits in the

institutior’s normal market area

The “prompt corrective action” provisions of FDICHiso provide that in general no institution maykena capital distribution if it would cause thetingion to become “undercapitalized.” Capital distitions include cash (but
not stock) dividends, stock purchases, redemptiams other distributions of capital to the owneraminstitution.

Additionally, FDICIA requires, among other thingbkat:
. only a“well capitalize” depository institution may accept brokered depasitisout prior regulatory approval ai
. the appropriate federal banking agency annuallynéxa all insured depository institutions, with soexeeptions for smal“well capitalize(” institutions and sta-chartered institutions examined by state regula
FDICIA also contains a number of consumer bankimyigions, including disclosure requirements anossantive contractual limitations with respect &pdsit accounts.
As of December 31, 2007, each of our subsidiarykBamet the capital requirements of a “well capitdi” institution.
Enforcement PowersCongress has provided the federal bank regul@geycies with an array of powers to enforce laules, regulations and orders. Among other thitigs agencies may require that institutions ceade an
desist from certain activities, may preclude pessoom participating in the affairs of insured dsjpory institutions, may suspend or remove depinsiirance, and may impose civil money penaltiesnagnstitution-affiliated parties for
certain violations.

Maximum Legal Interest Rateike the laws of many states, Florida law corgginovisions on interest rates that may be chabgdshnks and other lenders on certain types oflodomerous exceptions exist to the general
interest limitations imposed by Florida law. Thiatiwe importance of these interest limitation lawshe financial operations of the Banks will véiiym time to time, depending on a number of fagtarcluding conditions in the money
markets, the costs and availability of funds, arevailing interest rates.

Branch Banking Banks in Florida are permitted to branch staewSuch branch banking, however, is subject tr japproval by the bank regulatory agencies. Amhsapproval would take into consideration
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several factors, including the baskéevel of capital, the prospects and economich@proposed branch office, and other conditioresyi relevant by the bank regulatory agenciesdpgses of determining whether approval shoul
granted to open a branch office.

Change of Control Federal law restricts the amount of voting stotk bank holding company and a bank that a parsmnacquire without the prior approval of bankiegulators. The overall effect of such laws is tkena
more difficult to acquire a bank holding companyl @abank by tender offer or similar means thanigfhinbe to acquire control of another type of cogtion. Consequently, shareholders of the Compaay Ine less likely to benefit from
the rapid increases in stock prices that may résartt tender offers or similar efforts to acquimntrol of other companies. Federal law also impesssictions on acquisitions of stock in a banldimy company and a state bank. Under
the federal Change in Bank Control Act and the l&@ns thereunder, a person or group must givamek notice to the Federal Reserve before acquidngol of any bank holding company, the OCC befaequiring control of any
national bank and the FDIC and the Florida Depantrbefore acquiring control of a state bank. Upeeeipt of such notice, the bank regulatory agemoiag approve or disapprove the acquisition. Thengean Bank Control Act creat
a rebuttable presumption of control if a membegroup acquires a certain percentage or more ofi balding company'’s or state bank’s voting stamkif one or more other control factors set forttitie Act are present.

Interstate Banking Federal law provides for nationwide interstatekiag and branching. Under the law, interstate &itipns of banks or bank holding companies in state by bank holding companies in any other stae
permissible subject to certain limitations. Florttes a law that allows out-of-state bank holdingpanies (located in states that allow Florida bewiking companies to acquire banks and bank holdimgpanies in that state) to acquire
Florida banks and Florida bank holding companié® law essentially provides for out-of-state eibyyacquisition only (and not by interstate branghiand requires the acquired Florida bank to haentin existence for at least three
years.

Effect of Governmental Policie®ur earnings and businesses are affected byoliwes of various regulatory authorities of theitdd States, especially the Federal Reserve. THerBeReserve, among other things, regulates
the supply of credit and deals with general ecosaranditions within the United States. The instratseof monetary policy employed by the Federal Restor those purposes influence in various wagsaverall level of investments,
loans, other extensions of credit, and deposits tla interest rates paid on liabilities and reedion assets.

Sarbanes-Oxley Actin 2002, the Sarbanes-Oxley Act was enacted wimpioses a myriad of corporate governance and aticgumeasures designed that shareholders aredraat have full and accurate information about
the public companies in which they invest. All goldompanies are affected by the Act. Some of tirejpal provisions of the Act include:

. the creation of an independent accounting oversightd “PCAOE") to oversee the audit of public companies and arsiitdo perform such audit

. auditor independence provisions which restrict-audit services that independent accountants maxgdero their audit clients

. additional corporate governance and responsibiiliéasures which (a) require the chief executiveeffand chief financial officer to certify finanti&atements and internal controls and to forfeliaryy and bonuses in
certain situations, and (b) protect whistleblowand informants

. expansion of the authority and responsibilitiethef compan’s audit, nominating and compensation committ

. mandatory disclosure by analysts of potential ¢otsflof interest; an

. enhanced penalties for fraud and other violati
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USA Patriot Act In 2001, the USA Patriot Act was enacted. Ther@quires financial institutions to help prevergtett and prosecute international money laundemmfinancing of terrorism. The effectiveness fihancial
institution in combating money laundering actidtis a factor to be considered in any applicatidmstted by the financial institution with the barggulatory agencies. Our Banks have adopted sgstewh procedures designed to
comply with the USA Patriot Act and regulations ptéml thereunder by the Secretary of the Treasury.

Competition

We encounter strong competition both in making $oand in attracting deposits. The deregulatiomefttanking industry and the widespread enactmestaté laws which permit multi-bank holding comsnas well as an
increasing level of interstate banking have creatbigjhly competitive environment for commerciahkimg. In one or more aspects of its businessCmmpany competes with other commercial banks, gavémd loan associations,
credit unions, finance companies, mutual fundsyriznssce companies, brokerage and investment backimganies, and other financial intermediaries. Mdshese competitors, some of which are affiliatéth bank holding companies,
have substantially greater resources and lendini¢sliand may offer certain services that we docuotently provide. In addition, many of our norrkaompetitors are not subject to the same exterfsileral regulations that govern
bank holding companies and federally insured baRksent federal and state legislation has heightereecompetitive environment in which financiadtitutions must conduct their business, and thergial for competition among
financial institutions of all types has increaseghgicantly.

To compete, we rely upon specialized servicesoresipe handling of customer needs, and personaactanby its officers, directors, and staff. Langelti-branch banking competitors tend to compeimarily by rate and the
number and location of branches while smaller, prethelent financial institutions tend to compete prity by rate and personal service.

Employees
As of December 31, 2007, we had a total of appreséfy 371 full-time equivalent employees. The empts are not represented by a collective bargaimitgWe consider relations with employees to becy

Statistical Profile and Other Financial Data

Reference is hereby made to the statistical armahéiial data contained in the section captioned ‘dg@ment’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Gimdand Results of Operations,” for statisticatidinancial data
providing a review of our Company's business atiéisi

Availability of Reports furnished or filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC)

Our annual report on Form 10-K, quarterly reportd=orm 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K, and ameands to those reports filed or furnished pursta®ection 13(a) or 15(d) of the Exchange Act awélable on our
internet website at www.csflbanks.com.

Item 1A. Risk Factors

We have identified risk factors described belowiclilshould be viewed in conjunction with the otlrdormation contained in this document and inforioraincorporated by reference, including our coiukdéd financial
statements and related notes. If any of the follgwisks or other risks which have not been idettibr which we may believe are immaterial or velljk actually occur, our business, financial capdiand results of operations could be
harmed. As noted previously, this report contaore/érd-looking statements that involve risks andantainties, including statements about our fupleas, objectives, intentions and expectations.yMaators, including those described
below, could cause actual results to differ maligrfeom those discussed in forward-looking statetse
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Our business strategy includes the continuation afignificant growth plans, and our financial condition and results of operations could be negatively fefcted if we fail to grow or fail to manage our gravth effectively

We intend to continue pursuing a significant grostitategy for our business. Our prospects musbhsidered in light of the risks, expenses anddliffies frequently encountered by companies iniiggmt growth stages of
development. There is no assurance we will be tabd&pand our market presence in our existing nanesuccessfully enter new markets or that ash sxpansion will not adversely affect our resaftsperations. Failure to manage
our growth effectively could have a material adeezffect on our business, future prospects, firsmcindition or results of operations, and couldeasely affect our ability to successfully implerhenr business strategy. Also, if our
growth occurs more slowly than anticipated or dedj our operating results could be materially exblg affected.

Our ability to successfully grow will depend onariety of factors including the continued availépibf desirable business opportunities, the coitigetresponses from other financial institutionsour market areas and our
ability to manage our growth. While we believe veé the management resources and internal systepece to successfully manage our future grovsre can be no assurance growth opportunitieseilivailable or growth will be
successfully managed.

Our business is subject to the success of the loeglonomies where we operate

Our success significantly depends upon the growffopulation, income levels, deposits and housiagssin our primary and secondary markets. |fdbmunities in which we operate do not grow onévailing economic
conditions locally or nationally are unfavorabler dusiness may not succeed. Adverse economic tammslin our specific market area could reducegvowth rate, affect the ability of our customersepay their loans to us and
generally affect our financial condition and resuif operations. We are less able than a largétuitisn to spread the risks of unfavorable loazd®omic conditions across a large number of difiecseconomies. Moreover, we cannot
give any assurance we will benefit from any madeetvth or favorable economic conditions in our misnmarket areas if they do occur.

We may face risks with respect to future expansion

We may acquire other financial institutions or pa those institutions in the future and we magagye in additional de novo branch expansion. We afsy consider and enter into new lines of businessfer new products or
services. We also may receive future inquiriesfzae discussions with potential acquirors of ugjiéisitions and mergers involve a number of risksluding:

. the time and costs associated with identifying evaluating potential acquisitions and merger past

. the estimates and judgments used to evaluate copditations, management and market risks withetsp the target institution may not be accur

. the time and costs of evaluating new markets, dniexperienced local management and opening neeesffand the time lags between these activitiestendeneration of sufficient assets and depasissipport the
costs of the expansio

. our ability to finance an acquisition and possitilation to our existing shareholde

. the diversion of our managem’s attention to the negotiation of a transactiow, thve integration of the operations and personhitieocombining businesse

. entry into new markets where we lack experiel

. the introduction of new products and services mipbusiness
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. the incurrence and possible impairment of goodstiiociated with an acquisition and possible adwaee-term effects on our results of operations;
. the risk of loss of key employees and custorn

We may incur substantial costs to expand, and wegise no assurance such expansion will resuliénievels of profits we seek. There can be no asserintegration efforts for any future mergeraaquisitions will be
successful. Also, we may issue equity securitieduding common stock and securities convertible ghares of our common stock in connection withriziacquisitions, which could cause ownershipesahomic dilution to our curre
shareholders. There is no assurance that, folloaygfuture mergers or acquisition, our integragdforts will be successful or our company, aftieirgy effect to the acquisition, will achieve prisficomparable to or better than our
historical experience.

If the value of real estate in our core Florida maket were to decline further, a significant portionof our loan portfolio could become under-collateraked, which could have a material adverse effect ams

Any adverse market or economic conditions in Céiarida may disproportionately increase the sk borrowers will be unable to make their loanmants. In addition, the market value of the retdtessecuring loans as
collateral could be adversely affected by unfavtrahanges in market and economic conditions. ABemfember 31, 2007, approximately 84% of our Ideeid for investment were secured by real estat¢hi®mount, approximately
55% were commercial real estate loans, 30% weidemtsal real estate loans and 15% were constmictievelopment and land loans. Any sustained pefiaacreased payment delinquencies, foreclosuréssses caused by adverse
market or economic conditions in Central Floridaldeadversely affect the value of our assets, evemues, results of operations and financial candit

With most of our loans concentrated in Centralifleora decline in local economic conditions couddexsely affect the values of our real estate tmidd Consequently, a decline in local economiwitions may have a greater
effect on our earnings and capital than on theiegsrand capital of larger financial institutionbase real estate loan portfolios are geographiciiigrse.

In addition to the financial strength and cash fldvaracteristics of the borrower in each caseBtrgs often secure loans with real estate collatatddecember 31, 2007, approximately 84% of amans have real estate as a
primary or secondary component of collateral. Téad estate collateral in each case provides amattsource of repayment in the event of defauthb borrower and may deteriorate in value dutivggtime the credit is extended. If we
are required to liquidate the collateral securirigam to satisfy the debt during a period of redusl estate values, our earnings and capitatidmeiedversely affected.

An inadequate allowance for loan losses would rede®ur earnings

The risk of credit losses on loans varies with, agnother things, general economic conditions, ype bf loan being made, the creditworthiness ofitveower over the term of the loan and, in theeezsa collateralized loan,
the value and marketability of the collateral floe foan. We maintain an allowance for loan lossa®t upon, among other things, historical expeeieas evaluation of economic conditions and regeaiews of delinquencies and loan
portfolio quality. Based upon such factors, managgrmakes various assumptions and judgments abeudtimate collectibility of the loan portfolio drprovides an allowance for loan losses based agmrcentage of the outstanding
balances and for specific loans when their ultincaiéectibility is considered questionable. If mgeaent’s assumptions and judgments prove to beremtcand the allowance for loan losses is inadegueabsorb losses, or if the bank
regulatory authorities require the Banks to inceethe allowance for loan losses as a part of th@mination process, our earnings and capital doilsignificantly and adversely affected.
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The building of market share through our de novo banching strategy could cause our expenses to incezafaster than revenues

We intend to continue to build market share in @&rflorida through our de novo branching stratédyere are considerable costs involved in openiagdhes and new branches generally do not gersrfiigient revenues to
offset their costs until they have been in operafi at least a year or more. Accordingly, our ri@anches can be expected to negatively impaataunings for some period of time until the branaieesh certain economies of scale.
Our expenses could be further increased if we erteodlelays in the opening of any of our new brasclinally, we have no assurance our new braneiiidse successful even after they have been dstadl.

Our recent results may not be indicative of our futire results

We may not be able to sustain our historical régrawth or may not even be able to grow our bussret all. In addition, our recent and rapid gromthy distort some of our historical financial ratend statistics. In the future,
we may not have the benefit of several recentlpfable factors, such as a generally favorableéstarte environment or the ability to find suieabkpansion opportunities. Various factors, suckcasomic conditions, regulatory and
legislative considerations and competition, may @ispede or prohibit our ability to expand our netrgresence. If we experience a significant deergasur historical rate of growth, our resultsopkrations and financial condition may
be adversely affected due to a high percentagerobperating costs being fixed expenses.

Our continued pace of growth may require us to rais additional capital in the future, but that capita may not be available when it is needed
We are required by federal and state regulatorfyaaities to maintain adequate levels of capitalupport our operations. We anticipate our capésburces following this offering will satisfy ouaital requirements for the
foreseeable future. We may at some point, howexsd to raise additional capital to support outiocoed growth.

Our ability to raise additional capital, if neededl] depend on conditions in the capital marketthat time, which are outside our control, ancbanfinancial performance. Accordingly, we cannsswe you of our ability to
raise additional capital if needed on terms acdget® us. If we cannot raise additional capitaewimeeded, our ability to further expand our openatthrough internal growth and acquisitions cdugdmaterially impaired.

Changes in interest rates may negatively affect owgarnings and the value of our assets

Changes in interest rates may affect our levehigfrest income, the primary component of our gressnue, as well as the level of our interest egpeaur largest recurring expenditure. In a peoiodsing interest rates, our
interest expense could increase in different ansoand at different rates while the interest thaeamn on our assets may not change in the samengésnanat the same rates. Accordingly, increaséstémest rates could decrease our net
interest income.

Changes in the level of interest rates also maptegly affect our ability to originate real estéens, the value of our assets and our abilifg#dize gains from the sale of our assets, alllitvultimately affect our earnings.
A decline in the market value of our assets majt kiar ability to borrow additional funds or resirtour lenders requiring additional collateralrfrais under our loan agreements. As a result, wiel @murequired to sell some of our lo:
and investments under adverse market conditiorss) tggms that are not favorable to us, in ordenaintain our liquidity. If those sales are maderites lower than the amortized costs of the imaests, we will incur losses.

16



Table of Contents

Competition from financial institutions and other financial service providers may adversely affect ouprofitability

The banking business is highly competitive and wgeeence competition in each of our markets froemynother financial institutions. We compete withmenercial banks, credit unions, savings and loanaations, mortgac
banking firms, consumer finance companies, seesrfirokerage firms, insurance companies, moneyenarkds, and other mutual funds, as well as athper-regional, national and international finahicistitutions that operate offices
in our primary market areas and elsewhere.

We compete with these institutions both in attragtieposits and in making loans. In addition, weetta attract our customer base from other exidtimgncial institutions and from new residents. Maif our competitors are
well-established, larger financial institutions. Wéhwe believe we can and do successfully compétetivese other financial institutions in our primpanarkets, we may face a competitive disadvangesge result of our smaller size, lack
of geographic diversification and inability to spdeour marketing costs across a broader markétodth we compete by concentrating our marketingresfin our primary markets with local advertisetsepersonal contacts, and gre
flexibility and responsiveness in working with lbcastomers, we can give no assurance this stratéye successful.

We are subject to extensive regulation that couldrhit or restrict our activities

We operate in a highly regulated industry and algest to examination, supervision, and comprelvenggulation by various federal and state agen€ias compliance with these regulations is costigt eestricts certain of our
activities, including payment of dividends, mergansl acquisitions, investments, loans and intee¢es charged, interest rates paid on deposittoaations of offices. We are also subject to cdigidion guidelines established by our
regulators, which require us to maintain adequapital to support our growth.

The laws and regulations applicable to the bankidgstry could change at any time, and we canredipt the effects of these changes on our busemesgrofitability. Because government regulatiosagly affects the busine
and financial results of all commercial banks aadkbholding companies, our cost of compliance cadlgersely affect our ability to operate profitably

We are dependent upon the services of our managenteaam

Our future success and profitability is substahtidependent upon the management and bankingiebitif our senior executives. We believe that ature results will also depend in part upon ouraating and retaining highly
skilled and qualified management and sales andetiagkpersonnel. Competition for such personniltense, and we cannot assure you that we willibeessful in retaining such personnel. We also aiaguarantee that members of
our executive management team will remain withGlsanges in key personnel and their responsibilitiag be disruptive to our business and could havaterial adverse effect on our business, finamtiatition and results of
operations.

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments
None

Item 2. Properties

Our Holding Company owns no real property. We ogaaffice space in the main office building of Ceniate Bank, one of our subsidiary Banks, whidbésted at 1101 First Street South, Suite 202, &iHaven, Florida
33880. Our Company, through our Banks, currentirafes a total of 37 banking offices. Of theseceffithere are two “mini” offices in active adulnumunities. These offices are leased for nominaluartey and generally consist of a
room that is set aside for us in the community ¢lobse or community center. These offices are apéareabbreviated periods and cater to the residefthe gated community. Of the
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35 full service offices, we lease six, two of thesewe built the building but are leasing the laAtso, we are operating three offices in tempotacations during the construction of their permrsites (Crystal River, Deer Creek and
Eustis), and all the remaining offices (26) we omithout encumbranceSeeNote 4 to the Consolidated Financial StatementaiofCompany included in this Annual Report on FAOK beginning at page 67 for additional informatio
regarding our premises and equipment.
Item 3. Legal Proceedings

Our Banks are periodically parties to or othenits®lved in legal proceedings arising in the nore@irse of business, such as claims to enforcs, l#aims involving the making and servicing ofl i@@perty loans, and other
issues incident to their respective businessesdd\feot believe that there is any pending or threadteproceeding against the Banks which would havetarial adverse effect on our consolidated fifepmsition.
Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holder

No matters were submitted to a vote of our Compsawyrity holders during the fourth quarter of tiearyended December 31, 2007.
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PART Il

Item 5. Market for Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity Securitie

The shares of our Common Stock are traded on tisdddpNational Market System. The following setstfoine high and low trading prices for trades af Gommon Stock that occurred during 2007 and 2Blorical per
share data has been adjusted to reflect our Ma§ 806 for one stock split.

2007 2006
High Low High Low
1st Quarte $  21.5C $ 17.01 $ 1957 $ 17.0¢
2nd Quarte 19.9¢ 16.32 22.7¢ 17.8¢
3rd Quarte! 18.52 15.3¢ 21.0% 18.1¢
4th Quarte 16.1C 11.7¢ 22.2¢ 19.1C

As of December 31, 2007, there are 12,436,407 stiireommon stock outstanding. There were appraeiyd,054 registered shareholders as of that dategported by our transfer agent, ContinentatiStoansfer & Trust
Company.
Dividends

We have historically paid cash dividends on a guiyrbasis, on the last business day of the catequiarter. The following sets forth per share adisidends paid during 2007 and 2006. Historical gfere data has been
adjusted to reflect our May 2006 two for one stepkt.

2007 2006
1st Quarte $ 0.03¢t $ 0.03¢
2nd Quarte $ 0.03¢ $ 0.03¢
3rd Quarte! $ 0.04 $ 0.03t
4th Quarte $ 0.04 $ 0.03t

The payment of dividends is a decision of our BazrBirectors based upon then-existing circumstaniceluding our rate of growth, profitability, fincial condition, existing and anticipated capiéajuirements, the amount of
funds legally available for the payment of cashdénds, regulatory constraints and such other faets the Board determines relevant. The sourfinds for payment of dividends by our Holding Comypés dividends received from
our Banks, or excess cash available at the Hol@mmpany level. Payments by our subsidiary BanksutaHolding Company are limited by law and reguiasi of the bank regulatory authorities. There améous statutory and
contractual limitations on the ability of our Bartkspay dividends to our Holding Company. The beedulatory agencies also have the general authtorifynit the dividends paid by banks if such paymmay be deemed to constitute
unsafe and unsound practice. Our subsidiaries roapay dividends from their paid-in surplus. Alviiends must be paid out of undivided profits tberhand, after deducting expenses, including resefir losses and bad debts. In
addition, a national bank is prohibited from deicigra dividend on its shares of common stock uistéurplus equals its stated capital, unless thasebeen transferred to surplus no less thaneale/of the bank’s net profits of the
preceding two consecutive half-year periods (indhse of an annual dividend). The approval of ti&@s required if the total of all dividends deeldiby a national bank in any calendar year exctredotal of its net profits for that
year combined with its retained net profits for freceding two years, less any required transfessitplus. As to a state bank, no dividends mayatie at a time when the Bank’s net income frompifezeding two years is a loss or
which would cause the capital accounts of the Barflll below the minimum amount required by laegulation, order or any written agreement withFlezida Department or a Federal regulatory agency.
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Share Repurchases

We did not repurchase any shares of our commoik siaring 2007.

Stock Plans

With respect to information regarding our secusitgeithorized for issuance under equity incentie@gl the information contained in the section kextitEquity Compensation Plan Information” in ouefihitive Proxy
Statement for the 2008 Annual Meeting of Sharehsl@eincorporated herein by reference.

Performance Graph

Shares of our common stock are traded on the NASDA@pnal Market System. The following graph congsathe yearly percentage change in cumulative Isbiater return on the Company’s common stock, with t
cumulative total return of the SNL Southeast Bamdek and the NASDAQ Bank Index, since Decembe2802 (assuming a $100 investment on December P, 20d reinvestment of all dividends).
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Item 6. Selected Consolidated Financial Dat

The selected consolidated financial data presedretmiv should be read in conjunction with managefsetiscussion and analysis of financial conditionl aesults of operations, and the consolidatedfiiz statements and
footnotes thereto, of the Company at December @17 2nd 2006, and the three year period ended Dewedd, 2007, presented elsewhere herein.

(Dollars in thousands except for share and pe
share data)

SUMMARY OF OPERATIONS:
Total interest incom

Total interest expens

Net interest incom

Provision for loan losse

Net interest income after provision for loan los
Nor-interest income

Sale of bank she

Gain on sale of branch
Nor-interest expens

Income before income tax
Income taxe:

Net income

PER COMMON SHARE DATA:

Basic earnings per she

Diluted earnings per sha

Book value per shai

Tangible book value per she

Dividends per shar

Actual shares outstandi

Weighted average shares outstanc
Diluted weighted average shares outstan

BALANCE SHEET DATA:
Assets

Total loans

Allowance for loan los

Total depositt

Shor-term borrowings
Corporate debentu
Shareholder equity

Tangible capita

Goodwill

Core deposit intangible (CD
Average total asse

Average loan:

Average interest earning ass
Average deposit

Average interest bearing depos
Average interest bearing liabilitic
Average shareholde’ equity

Selected Consolidated Financial Data
For the twelve month period ending or as of Decemb&1

2007

2006

$ 75,17¢ $ 59,11¢
(32,829 (22,010

42,34¢ 37,10t
(2,799 (719)

39,55¢ 36,38t
7,332 6,13¢

1,00C —
(36,197 (29,204
11,69¢ 13,31¢
(3,897 (4,859
$ VoS $ 8,45¢
$ 0.64 $ 0.77
$ 0.62 $ 0.7t
$ 11.92 $ 10.5¢
$ 9.2¢ $ 9.3¢
$ 0.1t $ 0.1<
12,436,40 11,129,02
12,108,59 10,964,89
12,294,53 11,232,05
$  1,217,43 $  1,077,10
841,40t 657,96:
10,82¢ 7,35¢
972,62( 892,80¢
75,64¢ 52,79:
12,50( 10,00¢
148,28: 117,33:
115,43¢ 104,38t
28,11¢ 9,86:
4,72¢ 3,08t
1,189,26: 981,64(
791,88t 605,23t
1,068,59 894,28t
963,03! 807,47:
775,28 610,73.
854,25. 670,56
138,42¢ 109,79«
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2005 2004 2003

$ 40,26¢ $ 29,08¢ $ 25,80:
(11,72) (7,879 (7,539

28,54¢ 21,21« 18,27(

(1,065 (1,270 (1,249

27,47¢ 19,94« 17,027

5,38( 4,932 4,681

— 1,844 —

(22,809 (19,780 (17,54)

10,05« 6,94( 4,167
(3,729 (2,567 (1,547

$ 6,33( $ 4,37t $ 2,62¢
$ 0.6¢ $ 058 $ 0.3¢
$ 0.6€ $ 0.57 $ 0.3¢
$ 9.2¢ $ 7408 $ 6.2¢
$ 8.71 $ 6.4¢ $ 5.1¢
$ 0.1t $ 0.1z $ 0.11
10,500,77 8,137,42 6,738,76!
9,357,041 7,500,31 6,729,64:
9,629,19 7,656,30: 6,857,63

$ 871,52: $ 753,77t $ 608,89¢
516,65¢ 441,00! 413,89¢

6,491 5,68t 4,85(

717,33 659,63( 538,23!
42,81: 24,62 17,46¢

10,00¢ 10,00( 10,00(

97,24. 57,66¢ 41,96:

92,087 52,43¢ 36,65.

4,67¢ 4,67¢ 4,67¢

47¢ 551 637

808,17 673,66 550,86¢
482,81¢ 421,22¢ 374,56°
744,29¢ 618,58! 503,29.
678,14¢ 584,44; 488,95.
496,04t 445,35t 393,52¢
544,66! 481,46t 412,45

78,037 51,34( 40,95t
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Selected Consolidated Financial Data—continued
For the twelve month period ending or as of Decemb&1

(Dollars in thousands except for share and per

share data) 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
SELECTED FINANCIAL RATIOS:
Return on average ass 0.6€% 0.8% 0.7¢% 0.65% 0.4&%
Return on average equi 5.62% 7.7% 8.11% 8.52% 6.41%
Dividend payou 23% 18% 19% 21% 28%
Efficiency (1) 7% 68% 67% 7€% 76%
Net interest margin, tax equivalent basis ( 4.01% 4.17%% 3.8% 3.4% 3.6%
Net interest spread, tax equivalent basis ( 3.25% 3.35% 3.21% 3.0€% 3.3%
CAPITAL RATIOS:
Tier 1 leverage rati 10.7¢% 11.22% 12.35% 8.6(% 7.8%%
Risk-based capite
Tier 1 13.8(% 15.6(% 18.1(% 13.4(% 11.3%
Total 14.9% 16.6(% 19.2%% 14.61% 12.4¢%
Average equity to average ass 11.6% 11.18% 9.6€% 7.62% 7.4%
ASSET QUALITY RATIOS:
Net charg-offs to average loar 0.12% 0.0&% 0.05% 0.07% 0.12%
Allowance to period end loal 1.2% 1.12% 1.2€% 1.2¢% 1.17%
Allowance for loan losses to n-performing loan: 26€% 1,206% 43(% 634% 36€6%
Non-performing assets to total ass 0.4(% 0.0€% 0.1¢% 0.17% 0.27%
OTHER DATA:
Banking location: 37 3C 2€ 25 25
Full-time equivalent employet 371 32C 27t 257 254
1) Efficiency ratio is no-interest expense divided by the sum of net inténestme before the provision for loan losses plo-interest income, exclusive of r-recurring items
@) Net interest margin is net interest income dividgdotal average earning ass:
[€)) Net interest spread is the difference betweenkeage yield on earning assets and the averagkgiehverage interest bearing liabiliti

Quarterly Financial Information

The following table sets forth, for the periodsigaded, certain consolidated quarterly financigimation. This information is derived from our wnted financial statements which include, in tp@é@n of management, all
normal recurring adjustments which management densinecessary for a fair presentation of the t®fwil such periods. The sum of the four quartéesaings per share may not equal the total egsner share for the full year due to
rounding. This information should be read in coajion with our consolidated financial statementd #ire notes thereto included elsewhere in this whecu. The results for any quarter are not necégsadiicative of results for future
periods. Historical earnings per share data haee bejusted to reflect our May 2006 two for onelstsplit.
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Dollars in thousands except for per share data)

Selected Quarterly Data
(Dollars are in thousands)

2007

2006

4Q 3Q 2Q 1Q 4Q 3Q 2Q 1Q

Interest income $ 19,19: $ 1983¢ $ 1962¢ $ 1652( $ 16,26¢ $ 1593« $ 14,72« 12,191
Interest expens (8,586 (8,93¢) (8,37¢ (6,927) (6,647) (6,29¢) (5,149 (3.92)
Net interest incom 10,60¢ 10,901 11,24¢ 9,59¢ 9,622 9,63¢€ 9,581 8,26¢
Provision for loan losse (1,60%) (529 (376) (282) (142) (129 (206) (240
Net interest income aftt

Provision for loan losse 9,00C 10,372 10,86¢ 9,31¢ 9,48( 9,507 9,37¢ 8,02¢
Non-interest income 1,92¢ 1,95¢ 1,908 1,54(C 1,584 1,55(C 1,49C 1,498
Sale of bank she 1,00C — — — — — — —
Securities gain (lost 5 2 — — — — 17 —
Non-interest expense (9,31%) (9,449 (9,362) (8,079) (7,859 (7,469 (7,297) (6,590
Income before income tax exper 2,612 2,891 3,40¢ 2,78¢% 3,21(C 3,59« 3,58t 2,92¢
Income tax expens (854 (939) (1,129 (975) (1,019 (1,349 (1,37 (1,119
Net income $ 175¢ $ 1952 $ 228 $ 1806 $ 2191 $ 2251 $ 2,207 1,81C
Basic earnings per common sh $ 014 $ 0.1€ $ 0.1¢ $ 0.1€ $ 02 $ 02 $ 0.2C 0.17
Diluted earnings per common shi $ 014 $ 01t $ 0.1¢ $ 0.1€ $ 01¢ $ 02 $ 0.1¢ 0.17

Iltem 7. Managemen’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition ahResults of Operations

Some of the statements in this report constitutedad-looking statements, within the meaning of Bnivate Securities Litigation Reform Act of 199%dathe Securities Exchange Act of 1934. Theserstaiés related to future
events, other future financial performance or bessnstrategies, and include statements contaiaingrtology such as “may,” “will,” “should,” “expesf’ “scheduled,” “plans,” “intends,” “anticipates;believes,” “estimates,” “potential,”
or “continue” or the negative of such terms or ottemparable terminology. Actual events or resuigy differ materially from the results anticipaiadhese forward looking statements, due to a gagéfactors, including, without
limitation: the effects of future economic condit& governmental monetary and fiscal policies, el &s legislative and regulatory changes; thesrigkchanges in interest rates and the level angposition of deposits, loan demand,
the values of loan collateral; and the effectsarfipetition from other commercial banks, thriftsnsomer finance companies, and other financialtingins operating in our market area and elsewhédtéorward looking statements
attributable to our Company are expressly qualifietheir entirety by these cautionary statemems.disclaim any intent or obligation to update ¢éhsward looking statements, whether as a re$ulew information, future events or

otherwise. There is no assurance that future medeitels of activity, performance or goals will &ehieved.

Our discussion and analysis of earnings and refatadcial data are presented herein to assist
investors in understanding the financial condiéour Company at December 31, 2007 and 2006, lendesults of operations for the years ended Deeefth 2007, 2006 and 2005. This discussion shmilgtad in conjunction with
the consolidated financial statements and relatethbtes of our Company presented elsewhere héttarical per share data has been adjusted lectefur May 2006 two for one stock split.

Executive Summary

Our consolidated financial statements include twwants of CenterState Banks of Florida, Inc. {fPerent Company,” “Company,” “CenterState” or “CSJ;land our four wholly owned subsidiary banks, @neir wholly
owned subsidiary, C.S. Processing, Inc.
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Our subsidiary banks operate through 37 locatinmsrie counties throughout Central Florida, prawipiraditional deposit and lending products andises to its commercial and retail customers. €Bcessing is a wholly
owned subsidiary of our subsidiary Banks, whichvjites item processing services and certain infaomaechnology services for these subsidiary Banks.

On April 2, 2007, we closed on our acquisition @iNco Bancorp, Inc. (“VBI") and its wholly ownedibsidiary Valrico State Bank (“VSB”). The $36,10000purchase price was a combination of 65% stodk3&f6 cash.
Other costs including change of control paymentsekerated deferred compensation arrangementsthadtoansaction costs approximated $3,200,000tdtaécost of the transaction was approximatel§,$80,000. VSB opened for
business in 1989 and operated through four barlgiragions in Hillsborough County, Florida. A fiftacation, also in Hillsborough County, opened iny\2907. VSB is operating as a separate wholly ovsusidiary, similar to our
other subsidiary banks. This acquisition resulteddditional goodwill and core deposit intangiieR!I”) of approximately $18,256,000 and $2,484,065pectively. Refer to Note 21 in the Compamnytirrent year consolidated financ
statements for additional information.

We opened several new branch offices during 20@rinD February, we opened a new location in Osc€olanty (St. Cloud, Florida), during August we opémne in Hernando County (Brooksville, Floridaydas discussed
above, we opened a new VSB location in HillsboroGghunty during May. We have three branch officésagterating out of temporary locations while thpermanent facilities are being constructed. Torestruction of two of these
branch offices are very near completion, the otimer has barely begun construction.

On November 30 of this year we closed a set of related transastibat effectively resulted in combining two of @ubsidiary Banks into one and selling the shethefother. The two Banks that we combined were€@8tate
Bank West Florida, N.A. (‘“CSWFL") and CenterStaterik Mid Florida (“Mid FL"). CSWFL was the survivingank and its name was subsequently changed t@S¢ate Bank, N.A. We effectively sold the shelbaf Mid FL Bank to
an out of state bank for $1,000,000. The experedeted to this transaction were approximately $100,

With the acquisition of VSB, we were operating thgh five wholly owned subsidiary Banks. Subsequemepmbining CSWFL and Mid FL we are back to fodr December 31, 2007, our four subsidiary Banksogrerating an
aggregate of 37 banking locations in nine Couritieentral Florida as summarized in the table below

Subsidiary Banks ‘OE:“SIIS Counties

CenterState Bank Central Florida, N.“Centra”) 7 Osceola, Orang
CenterState Bank, N.A“CSB/Wes") 13 Pasco, Hernando, Citrus, Sumter, L
CenterState Bank of Florid“CSB/Poll") 12 Polk

Valrico State Bank“VSB") 5 Hillsborough

Our Company'’s principal asset is its ownershiphef Banks. Accordingly, our consolidated resultspérations are primarily dependent upon the resfiltgerations of the Banks. Through our subsidi&aypks, we conduct
commercial banking business consisting of attrgatieposits from the general public and applyingéhfunds to the origination of commercial, consuaret real estate loans (including commercial |l@afisteralized by real estate). C
profitability depends primarily on net interestamee, which is the difference between interest inegenerated from interest-earning assets (i.eslaad investments) less the interest expense @torm interest-bearing liabilities (i.e.
customer deposits and borrowed funds). Net intémesime is affected by the relative amounts ofregeearning assets and interest-bearing lialsjis@d the interest rate earned and paid on tfedaedes. Net interest income is
dependent upon the interest rate spread whicleigifference between the average yield earned pinterest-earning assets and the average ratepaidr interest-bearing liabilities. When intereatning assets approximate or exceed
interest-bearing liabilities, any positive intereste spread will generate net interest income.ifitegest rate spread is impacted by interest
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rates, deposit flows, and loan demand. Additionalhyd to a lesser extent, our profitability is aféel by such factors as the level of non-interestine and expenses, the provision for credit lossebthe effective tax rate. Non-interest
income consists primarily of service fees on depastounts and related services, and to a lessemtedommission earned on brokering single familgnk loans, and commissions earned on the sale tofaffunds, annuities and other
non traditional and non insured investments. Naerest expense consists of compensation, emplaresfits, occupancy and equipment expenses, andaikeating expenses.

Critical Accounting Policies

Our accounting policies are integral to understapdhe results reported. Accounting policies asedbed in detail in Note 1 of the notes to thesmidated financial statements. The critical actimgnpolicies require
management’s judgment to ascertain the valuatiasséts, liabilities, commitments and contingendalés have established policies and control procesitivat are intended to ensure valuation methadwelt controlled and applied
consistently from period to period. In additiore holicies and procedures are intended to ensatetté process for changing methodologies occuas iappropriate manner. The following is a briefafiption of our current accounting
policies involving significant management valuatjopdgments.

Allowance for Loan Losses

The allowance for loan losses represents our etiofgprobable incurred losses inherent in thetiexjdoan portfolio. The allowance for loan losseincreased by the provision for loan losses abeitg expense and reduced
loans charged off, net of recoveries. The allowdocéoan losses is determined based on our asses@fiseveral factors: reviews and evaluatiomdiiidual loans, changes in the nature and voluhtheoloan portfolio, current
economic conditions and the related impact on ipdmrrowers and industry concentrations, his@rioan loss experiences and the level of classiied nonperforming loans.

Changes in the financial condition of individuattmwers, in economic conditions, in historical lesperience and in the condition of the variouskerin which collateral may be sold may all affénet required level of the
allowance for loan losses and the associated poovisr loan losses.

A standardized loan grading system is utilizede&heof our subsidiary Banks. The grading systeimtégral to our risk nent function rel Jing. Loan officers of each Bank assign a Igeatle to their newly
originated loans in accordance with the standaad fgrades. Throughout the lending relationship|dha officer is responsible for periodic reviewsd if warranted he/she will downgrade or upgragaréicular loan based on specific
events and/or analyses. We use a loan gradingnsysté through 7. Grade 1 is “excellent” and gr@de “doubtful.” Loans graded 5 or higher are pthoe a watch list each month end and reportedagarticular Bank’s board of
directors. The Company'’s loan review officer, whdnidependent of the lending function and is notmployee of any subsidiary bank, periodically eeus each Bank’s loan portfolio and lending relathips. He may disagree with a
particular Bank’s grade on a particular loan artiseguently downgrade or upgrade such loan(s) laséds risk analysis. As such, our lending prodéestecentralized, but our credit review proces=igtralized.

We maintain an allowance for loan losses that wieweis adequate to absorb probable losses inhigremir loan portfolio. The allowance consistdwé components. The first component consists oftartespecifically
reserved (“specific allowance”) for specific loddentified as impaired, as defined by Statemerftioéncial Accounting Standard No. 114 (“SFAS 114f)paired loans are those loans that managemergstiasated will not repay as
agreed upon. Each of these loans is required te &avritten analysis supporting the amount of djpe@serve allocated to the particular loan, i afhat is to say, a loan may be impaired (i.e.expected to repay as agreed), but ma
sufficiently collateralized such that we expecteéoover all principle and interest eventually, #mefefore no specific reserve is warranted.

25



Table of Contents

The second component, which we refer to as Stateafiéfinancial Accounting Standard No. 5 (“SFAS@&ns, is a general reserve (“general allowance’albof the Company’s loans other than those ifledtas impaired.
We group these loans into categories with simiteracteristics and then apply a loss factor to gastp which is derived from our historical losstta for that category adjusted for current intéarad external environmental factors, as
well as for certain loan grading factors. The aggte of these two components results in our tdi@vance for loan losses.

Goodwill and Intangible Assets

Goodwill represents the excess of cost over fdirevaf assets of business acquired. Goodwill atahiible assets acquired in a purchase businedsircation and determined to have an indefinite Ud#éuare not amortized,
but instead tested for impairment at least annubitgngible assets with estimable useful livesaamertized over their respective estimated usefeklto their estimated residual values. We acquienterState Bank of Florida, in Win
Haven, Florida, on December 31, 2002, CenterState& B/lid Florida on March 31, 2006 and Valrico Stk on April 2, 2007. Consequently, we were regfito record the assets acquired, including ifledtintangible assets, and
liabilities assumed at their fair value, which ifwes estimates based on third party valuationd) sscappraisals, internal valuations based on diged cash flow analyses or other valuation teafesqThe determination of the useful
lives of intangible assets is subjective, as isajygropriate amortization period for such intangifsets. In addition, purchase acquisitions tipicesult in recording goodwill, which is subjetet ongoing periodic impairment tests based
on the fair value of the reporting unit comparedsaarrying amount, including goodwill. As of Nember 30, 2007, the required annual impairmenfegoodwill was performed and no impairment exisas of the valuation date. If 1
any future period we determine that there has bapairment in the carrying value of our goodwilldraces, we will record a charge to our earningschvbould have a material adverse effect on ouineetme. Goodwill and intangible
assets are described further in Note 5 of the rtoté®e consolidated financial statements.

COMPARISON OF RESULTS OF OPERATIONS FOR THE YEARSIEED DECEMBER 31, 2007 AND DECEMBER 31, 2006.

Net Income

Our net income for the year ended December 31, 2@@7$7,799,000 or $0.64 per share (basic) an@$&6share (diluted), compared to $8,459,000 o &per share (basic) and $0.75 per share (dilfitedhe year ended
December 31, 2006.

Our return on average assets (“ROA”) and returaverage equity (“ROE”) for the year ended Decen®ie2007 were 0.66% and 5.63%, as compared to@he &d ROE of 0.86% and 7.70%, for the year ended
December 31, 2006.

The significant items contributing to our 2007 imetome compared to 2006 are discussed below.
Net Interest Income/Margin
Net interest income consists of interest incomeegaed by earning assets, less interest expense.

Net interest income increased $5,245,000 or 14%4 348,000 during the year ended December 31, @@@pared to $37,103,000 for the same period it 20Be increase was the result of a $16,060,00@ase in interest
income less a $10,815,000 increase in interestresepe

Interest earning assets averaged $1,068,591,00@ydhe year ended December 31, 2007 as compaf&&bth 286,000 for the same period in 2006, an asEef $174,305,000, or 19%. The yield on averaigedst earning
assets increased 42 basis points (“bps”) to 7.083(s to 7.09% tax equivalent basis) during the yea
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ended December 31, 2007, compared to 6.61% (6.68%duivalent basis) for the same period in 200@ dombined net effects of the $174,305,000 inergaaverage interest earning assets and the 426pps tax equivalent basis)
increase in yield on average interest earning sisestilted in the $16,060,000 ($16,392,000 taxvedgrit basis) increase in interest income betweervto years.

Interest bearing liabilities averaged $854,251,800ng the year ended December 31, 2007 as compafi¥0,562,000 for the same period in 2006, arease of $183,689,000, or 27%. The cost of aveérdgeest bearing
liabilities increased 56bps to 3.84% during theryaraled December 31, 2007, compared to 3.28% éosdme period in 2006. The combined net effectisen$183,689,000 increase in average interestrigebabilities and the 56bps
increase in cost of average interest bearing itasilresulted in the $10,815,000 increase in @seexpense between the two years.

See the tables “Average Balances—Yields & Ratasf“@nalysis Of Changes In Interest Income And Ehges” below.
Average Balances—Yields & Rates
(Dollars are in thousands)

Years Ended December 31,

2007 2006
Average Interest Average Average Interest Average
Balance Inc / Exp Rate Balance Inc/ Exp Rate
ASSETS:
Loans (1) (2) (7 $ 791,88t $ 61,97 7.82% $  605,23¢ $  46,54¢ 7.69%
Securities available for si—taxable 191,67: 9,38¢ 4.9(% 217,70¢ 9,16¢ 4.21%
Securities available for s—tax exempt (7 35,93¢ 1,824 5.06% 8,542 46€ 5.4¢%
Federal funds sold and ott 49,09¢ 2,531 5.15% 62,79¢ 3,13¢ 4.9%
TOTAL INTEREST EARNING ASSET¢ $ 1,068,59 $ 7571 7.0¢% $  894,28¢ $ 59,320 6.65%
Allowance for loan losse (9,119 (7,130
All other asset: 129,79: 94,48¢
TOTAL ASSETS $ 1,189,26 $  981,64(
LIABILITIES & SHAREHOLDERS ' EQUITY
Deposits
Now $ 125,46t $ 137 1.1(% $  100,26¢ $ 65¢ 0.6€%
Money marke 114,45 3,31« 2.9(% 106,70° 2,651 2.48%
Savings 53,19¢ 431 0.81% 48,05 343 0.71%
Time deposit: 482,16: 23,57( 4.8%% 355,70« 15,331 4.31%
Repurchase agreeme 58,32¢ 2,582 4.4 % 49,83( 2,15¢ 4.32%
Other borrowed funds (¢ 8,76t 532 6.07% 0 0 0.0(%
Corporate debenture ( 11,87¢ 1,021 8.6(% 10,00¢ 864 8.6/%
TOTAL INTEREST BEARING LIABILITIES $ 854,25 $ 32,82t 3.84% $ 670,56: $ 22,01 3.2t%
Demand deposit 187,75 196,73¢
Other liabilities 8,841 4,54
Shareholder equity 138,42! 109,79«
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND
STOCKHOLDERY EQUITY $ 1,189,26: $  981,64(
NET INTEREST SPREAD (tax equivalent basis) 3.25% 3.3t%
NET INTEREST INCOME (tax equivalent bas $  42,88¢ $ 37,31
NET INTEREST MARGIN (tax equivalent basis) ( 4.01% 4.11%
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1) Loan balances are net of deferred origination &®scosts

) Interest income on average loans includes loanefe@gnition of $523 and $521 for the years endeckBwer 31, 2007 and 2006, respectiv

3) Includes sho-term (usually overnight) Federal Home Loan Bankaemtes and Federal Funds Purcha

4) Includes net amortization of origination costs ambrtization of purchase accounting adjustmentléf&nhd $38 during year ended December 31, 2002@0@| respectively

5) Represents the average rate earned on interegtg@assets minus the average rate paid on inteeesing liabilities

(6) Represents net interest income divided by totaliegrassets

@) Interest income and rates include the effectstakaquivalent adjustment using applicable stayutax rates to adjust tax exempt investment incomeax exempt investmesecurities and loans to a fully taxable ba

Analysis of Changes in Interest Income and Expenses
(Dollars are in thousands)

Net Change Dec 31, 2007 versus 20

Net

Volume Rate Change
INTEREST INCOME
Loans (tax equivalent basi $ 14,59¢ $ 82¢ $ 15,42:
Securities available for s—taxable (1,179) 1,391 21¢
Securities available for s—tax exemp 1,39: (37) 1,35¢€
Federal funds sold and otf (709 98 (605)
TOTAL INTEREST INCOME (tax equivalent basi $ 14111 $ 2,281 $ 16,39:
INTEREST EXPENSE
Deposits
NOW account: $ 19¢ $ 52C $ 71€
Money market accoun 20z 461 662
Savings 39 49 88
Time depositt 5,982 2,251 8,23t
Repurchase agreeme 37t 51 42€
Other borrowed fund 532 — 532
Corporate debentu 161 (4) 157
TOTAL INTEREST EXPENSE $ 7,481 $ 3,32¢ $ 10,81t
NET INTEREST INCOME (tax equivalent bas $ 6,624 $ (1,04) $ 557

The table above details the components of the @saimgnet interest income for the last two yeaos.gach major category of interest earning assetsraerest bearing liabilities, information is pided with respect to changes
due to average volume and changes due to ratéstheitthanges in both volumes and rates allocatéitese two categories based on the proportiohet@ite changes in each category.

Provision for Loan Losses

The provision for loan losses (expense) increae@7$,000, to $2,792,000 during the year endingeBer 31, 2007 compared to $717,000 for the corbfgperiod in 2006. Our policy is to maintain thiewance for loan
losses at a level sufficient to absorb probablerired losses inherent in the loan portfolio. THewance is increased by the provision for loandsssvhich is a charge to current period earnings j@decreased by charge-offs, net of
recoveries on prior loan charge-offs. Therefore,fhovision for loan losses
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(Income Statement effect) is a residual of managémeetermination of allowance for loan losses (BegaBheet approach). In determining the adequatheadllowance for loan losses, we consider thogeldemaintained by conditiot
of individual borrowers, the historical loan losgerience, the general economic environment, tleeadvportfolio composition, and other informatigks these factors change, the level of loan lossigion changes. See “credit quality
and allowance for loan losses” regarding the allovesfor loan losses for additional information.

Non-Interest Income

Non-interest income for the year ended Decembe2317 was $8,332,000 compared to $6,136,000 focdheparable period in 2006. This increase wasehelt of the following components listed in theléabelow (Amounts
listed are in thousands of dollars).

$increase % Increase
in thousands of dollars; 2007 2006 decrease decrease
Service charges on deposit accot $4,43¢ $3,401 $ 1,08t 30.2%
Commissions from mortgage broker activit 187 341 (154) (45.9%
Commissions from sale of mutual funds and annu 58€ 69t (10¢) (15.9)%
Debit card and ATM fee 90t 592 31z 52.9%
Loan related fee 381 31t 6€ 21.%
BOLI income 352 271 7€ 27.4%
Other service charges and f 497 451 4€ 10.2%
(Loss) gain on sale or disposition of fixed as: (20 47 (67) (142.0%
Gain on sale of securitit 7 17 10 (58.9%
Subtotal $7,332 $6,13¢ $ 1,19¢ 19.5%
Sale of bank charte 1,00¢ — 1,00¢ 100.(%
Total nor-interest incomi $8,33: $6,13¢ $ 2,19¢ 35.6%

As previously reported, the Company and two o$itssidiary banks, (CenterState Bank West Florida, §{CSWFL") and CenterState Bank Mid Florida (“MFL")), Atlantic Southern Financial Group, Inc.@eorgia
Corporation) and it's wholly owned subsidiary, Atle Southern Bank (collectively referred to asl&htic Southern”) entered into several related egrents (the “Transaction”) which closed on Noven8&r2007. In summary, a
description of the Transaction is as follows: CSW&Hectively purchased substantially all the asaatsassumed the liabilities of Mid FL, excepttfee Mid FL main office (a leased office) and a minim amount of deposits and capital
required by banking laws. Atlantic Southern thequaed Mid FL, through a merger. Atlantic Southeaid to the Company an amount equal to the rengiammount of capital of Mid FL (after the sale (ster) by Mid FL of its assets
and liabilities to CSWFL) plus an additional amooh1,000,000. Atlantic Southern then transfeiviid FL's main office to CSWFL. The Company recogetza gain on the sale of $1,000,000 (included minterest income) less
transaction expenses of approximately $100,00(sEetion expenses are included in non interestesepdhe Company continues to operate the samgilos@perated by CSWFL and Mid FL, except we ane nperating these
locations under one charter instead of two. Altemeer loan and deposit accounts/relationships haee retained by the Company. Following the Trams®cCSWFL changed its name to CenterState Bank, N

Excluding the sale of the Mid FL bank shell, ounegning non-interest income increased by $1,196(®.5% in 2007 compared to 2006. We acquired Rlien March 31, 2006, and, as such, we recogniizezl months of
non interest income generated by Mid FL in 200@ppared to twelve months in 2007. In addition, weua®d VSB on April 2, 2007, and, as such, in tEse, we recognized nine months of non interesniecgenerated by VSB in 20
compared to nothing in 2006. When removing thesesubsidiaries from the above nimterest income table, the remaining differencevieen the two years decreases from $1,196,000,.6%d.& approximately $439,000, or 7.4%. 1
remaining increase is primarily due to our genbtediness growth.
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Commissions from mortgage broker activities is dejfgat on market place forces including supply agmiahd of single family residential property in éagal markets, and the interest rate environmernthvprimarily effects

refinancing activity. As the residential real estatarket in Florida deteriorated, activity decreasesulting in decreased commissions earned i 26fhpared to 2006.

Sales of mutual funds and annuities are somewlparikent on market place forces, but primarily ddpahon the successful efforts of our investmeletssapresentatives.

Non-Interest Expense

Non-interest expense for the year ended December 8%, id@reased $6,988,000, or 23.9%, to $36,192 @f@pared to $29,204,000 for 2006. The table bel@aks down the individual components. Amounts at&éusand

of dollars.

in thousands of dollars; 2007 2006
Employee salaries and wag $14,82¢ $12,06¢
Employee incentive/bonus compensai 1,501 2,061
Employee stock option expen 50¢ 594
Health insurance and other employee ben 2,26¢€ 1,76(
Payroll taxes 1,12C 932
Other employee related expen 84C 647
Incremental direct cost of loan originati (1,039 (1,096
Total salaries, wages and employee ben $20,027 $16,96:
Occupancy expens 4,201 3,44
Depreciation of premises and equipm 2,30% 1,93t
Supplies, stationary and printil 69C 607
Marketing expense 1,09¢ 58t
Data processing expen 1,452 1,10%
Legal, auditing and other professional f 1,101 672
Bank regulatory related expens 46€ 32€
Postage and delive 30€ 27€
ATM related expense 49t 434
CDI amortizatior 84z 514
Other expense 3,207 2,34¢
Total nor-interest expens $36,19: $29,20¢

$ increase % Increase
decrease decrease)
$ 2,762 22.%%
(560) (27.2%
(85) (14.9%
50€ 28.8%
18¢ 20.2%
19z 29.8%
62 5.7%
$ 3,06¢€ 18.1%
75¢ 22.(%
37¢C 19.1%
83 13.7%
511 87.4%
347 31.%%
42¢ 63.€%
142 43.6%
32 11.€%
61 14.1%
32¢ 63.£%
862 36.8%
$ 6,98¢ 23.5%

From a macro viewpoint, the most significant congrus when comparing current year non-interest esgoemprior year are the acquisitions of Mid FL &8B. We acquired Mid FL on March 31, 2006, andswash, we
recognized nine months of non-interest expensergtteby Mid FL during 2006, compared to twelve therin 2007. We acquired VSB on April 2, 2007, amslsuch, we recognized nine months of non-intesgstnse generated by
VSB in 2007, compared to nothing in 2006. When reimpthese two subsidiaries from the above noréisteexpense table, the remaining difference betwlee two years decreases from $6,988,000, or 289%bproximately

$1,793,000, or 6.7%. This remaining increase imarily due to our general business growth. Theatiae below discusses changes in selected linesiterar to year.

Our largest non-interest expense is employee amplogee related expenses. Total salaries, wagesraptbyee benefits for 2007 accounted for 55% oftotal non-interest expense, compared to 58% f6620ooking at the
table above, employee salaries and wages incrég$@d762,000, or 22.9% to $14,825,000 for 2007, ganed to $12,063,000 for 2006. Removing the MidcBmponent (approximately $1,200,000 in 2007 anddX® in 2006) and tl

VSB component ($1,641,000 in 2007 and nothing id&30reduces the net
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increase from $2,762,000, or 22.9%, to $720,006,4%. This remaining increase of $720,000 wastdwecombination of increase in average FTEs (tfole equivalent employees) year to year (289 FidEsus 283 FTEs, excluding
Mid FL and VSB) and salary increases commensuréteour market environment.

We use a combination of performance incentive/b@uidelines to motivate our employees to perfortrese are primarily all tied to earnings performamegrics. As our net income increases and our agset, our employe
incentive/bonus compensation also increases. Athaurr total assets grew (primarily due to the \é8Buisition), our net income decreased by 7.8% tgegear. Although we have more employees in 2@%us 2006, primarily due to
the 60 FTEs we acquired with the VSB transactidmictvwould increase our incentive/bonus expenseactual incentive/bonus compensation decreasé&56,000, or 27.2% year to year, which is direalynconsistent with the
philosophy of our incentive/bonus guidelines.

Employee health insurance expense increased by ®806or 28.8% year to year as listed in the tableve. Removing VSB employee health insurance esep@approximately $175,000—VSB was not includedtin2006
expense) results in an adjusted increase of appedgly $331,000, or 18.8%. A small part of thisr@ase is related to the increase in FTEs (exclusfi%SB FTES), but the largest portion is refleetidf the increasing costs occurring in
the health insurance industry. We have been praatithis area during 2007. Effective Octoberd)2 we changed insurance company and third peryrastrators, and effective January 1, 2008, viteated a Health Savings Accot
plan (“HSA"), as well as other consumer driveniatives. We don't necessarily expect a decreaseniployee health insurance expense in 2008, butvexplect very little, if any, increase in this expe from our 2007 levels.

The acquisitions of Mid FL and VSB, as discusseavabsignificantly influenced our increase in oVlesperating expenses. In addition, but to a lesséent, our branching activity also had an indreneffect on operating
expenses. Below is a list of our branching actiditying 2006 and 2007.

A
date Dep\i)esrl{lisgeDec

Subsidiary Bank opened branch identification and comments 2007

CSB/West (formerly Mid FL Sel-06 Eustis offic—Lake Count—operating out of a temporary location, constructomew $ 6,532,001
permanent facility expected to start in first qgga2008

CSB/Polk Oct-06 South Lakeland offic—Polk Count—operating out of a permanent facility, n $ 11,619,00
constructior

CSB/Polk Oct-06 Deer Creek office—Polk County—operating out of mperary facility, construction on $ 1,128,001
new permanent office completed in January 2

Central Fet-07 Ashton office—Osceola Coun—operating out of a permanent facility, new congtac $ 5,933,001

VSB May-07 Fishhawk office—Hillsbhorough County—operating ofiegpermanent facility, new $ 2,380,001
constructior

CSB/West Aug-07 Brooksville office—Hernando County—operating outegpermanent facility—leased $ 519,00(
property
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As shown in the non-interest expense table aboaeketing expenses increased by $511,000, or 87etity year. VSB’s marketing expense represent$,800 of this $511,000 increase. The remainingeiase in this item
relates to the checking account marketing campaugrently in place at one of our banks. This campaitarted during the fourth quarter of 2006.

Legal, auditing and other professional fees in@eéds/ $428,000. The increase was a result of fegal of approximately $90,000 related to the shlmnk shell, $141,000 related to VSB and the reingiamount is due to the
continuing increase in bank regulation and requéets

The CDI amortization increase between the two yisadlsie to the April 2, 2007 acquisition of VSB amélll year of amortization versus nine month2@®6 for the March 31, 2006 acquisition of Mid FL.

Income Tax Provision

The income tax provision for the year ended Decer@bhe2007, was $3,897,000, an effective tax ra@8B%, as compared to $4,859,000 for the yeaeeimkecember 31, 2006, an effective tax rate of%86Ehis year we had
more tax exempt interest income from tax exempiisges than last year, which is a decreasing effecour effective tax rate. We also had more Bamlned Life Insurance (“BOLI") income this year thiast year, which is also tax
exempt and also results in a decreasing effecuoefect tax rate. In addition, we also had lesslsoption expense this year relating to incensiteek options which are not tax deductible expgnsssulting in a decreasing effect on our
effective tax rate. Income taxes are describeddésulissed further in Note 10 of our notes to omsotidated financial statements.

COMPARISON OF RESULTS OF OPERATIONS FOR THE YEARSIEED DECEMBER 31, 2006 AND DECEMBER 31, 2005.

Net Income
Our net income for the year ended December 31, 2@@6$8,459,000 or $0.77 per share (basic) and$@&i7share (diluted), compared to $6,330,000 &3 &per share (basic) and $0.655 per share (d)lfoe the year ended
December 31, 2005.

Our return on average assets (“ROA") and returawerage equity (‘ROE”) for the year ended Decen®ier2006 were 0.86% and 7.70%, as compared to@#e &d ROE of 0.78% and 8.11%, for the year ended
December 31, 2005.

Net income increased approximately $2,129,000 &6 8#$8,459,000 for the year ended December 316,2fiimpared to $6,330,000 for the same period gi@05. Earnings per share (basic) increased @$0or 14%
during this same period. We acquired the Mid FLibam March 31, 2006. Therefore, nine months of Midnet income (approximately $496,000) was inclutedur 2006 consolidated net income amount. Avesttares outstanding
during 2006 issued pursuant to the Mid FL transactvas approximately 416,000. Basic earnings peresi$0.77, would be reduced to approximately $@ifsout Mid FL. Mid FL appears to have been adueeto our basic earnings
per share in 2006 by approximately $0.02. All rammaj growth in net income and earnings per shaselted from the continuing growth of our businé=sped out by expansion in our net interest mairg2006 compared to 2005
(4.15% versus 3.84%). The significant line itemstdbuting to our 2006 net income compared to 28@5discussed below.

Net Interest Income/Margin
Net interest income consists of interest incomeegared by earning assets, less interest expense.

Net interest income increased $8,559,000 or 30$8%103,000 during the year ended December 31, @ddpared to $28,544,000 for the year ended DeceBihe005. The $8,559,000 increase was a combinafian
$18,847,000 increase in interest income offset $%&288,000 increase in interest expense.
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Average interest earning assets increased $149@88& $894,286,000 during the year ended DeceBhe2006, compared to $744,298,000 for the yeagaimbcember 31, 2005. The yield on average integesing assets
increased 120bps to 6.61% (121bps to 6.63% tawalguit basis) during the year ended December 316, 2mpared to 5.41% (5.42% tax equivalent bésishe same period in 2005. The combined net &ffetthe $149,988,000
increase in average interest earning assets ari€ps (121bps tax equivalent basis) increaseld gn average interest earning assets resultdukif18,847,000 ($18,986,000 tax equivalent barsis¢ase in interest income between
the two years.

Interest bearing liabilities averaged $670,562,8(0ng the year ended December 31, 2006 as compaf#4,663,000 for the same period in 2005, arease of $125,899,000, or 23%. The cost of avérageest bearing
liabilities increased 113bps to 3.28% during tharyended December 31, 2006, compared to 2.15%éasame period in 2005. The combined net effectisen$125,899,000 increase in average interesirtgeléabilities and the 113bps
increase in cost of average interest bearing itasilresulted in the $10,288,000 increase in @sieexpense between the two years.

See the tables “Average Balances—Yields & Ratagf"“Analysis Of Changes In Interest Income And Exes” below.
Average Balances—Yields & Rates
(Dollars are in thousands)

Years Ended December 31,

2006 2005
Average Interest Average Average Interest Average
Balance Inc / Exp Rate Balance Inc / Exp Rate
ASSETS:
Loans (1) (2) (7 $ 605,23t $  46,54¢ 7.6% $ 482,81¢ $  32,59( 6.75%
Securitie—taxable 217,70 9,16¢ 4.21% 206,11( 6,01¢ 2
Securitie—tax exempt (7 8,54: 46¢ 5.48% 244 13 5.32%
Federal funds sold and otf 62,79¢ 3,13¢ 4.9% 55,12¢ 1,71¢ 3.12%
TOTAL INTEREST EARNING ASSET¢ $ 894,28t $ 59,32 6.65% $ 744,29 $ 40,33¢ 5.42%
Allowance for loan losse (7,130) (6,149
All other asset: 94,48¢ 70,02:
TOTAL ASSETS $ 981,64( $ 808,17
LIABILITIES & SHAREHOLDERS ' EQUITY
Deposits
Now $ 100,26t $ 65¢ 0.6€6% $ 99,90¢ $ 317 0.32%
Money marke 106,70° 2,651 2.48% 105,62! 1,50¢ 1.42%
Savings 48,05 342 0.71% 48,73¢ 201 0.41%
Time deposits 355,70: 15,337 4.31% 241,77 7,98¢ 3.3(%
Repurchase agreeme 49,83( 2,15¢ 4.3%% 38,21( 1,018 2.65%
Other borrowed funds (¢ 0 0 0.0(% 407 1€ 3.99%
Corporate debenture ( 10,00( 864 8.64% 10,00( 682 6.82%
TOTAL INTEREST BEARING LIABILITIES $ 670,56: $  22,01( 3.2e% $ 544,66 $ 11,72 2.15%
Demand deposit 196,73¢ 182,10:
Other liabilities 4,54¢ 3,37«
Shareholder’ equity 109,79: 78,031
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND
STOCKHOLDERY EQUITY $ 981,64 $ 808,17
NET INTEREST SPREAD (tax equivalent basis) 3.35% 3.21%
NET INTEREST INCOME (tax equivalent bas $ 37,31 $ 28,61«
NET INTEREST MARGIN (tax equivalent basis) (€ 4.17% 3.8%

33



Table of Contents

1) Loan balances are net of deferred fees/cost ofnatign.

) Interest income on average loans includes fee retog of $521 and $269 for the years ended Dece®bg2006 and 2005, respective

3) Includes sho-term (usually overnight) Federal Home Loan Bankaemtes and Federal Funds Purcha

4) Includes amortization of origination costs of $3@1&38 during year ended December 31, 2006 and, 2698ectively

5) Represents the average rate earned on interegtg@assets minus the average rate paid on inteeesing liabilities

(6) Represents net interest income divided by totaliegrassets

@) Interest income and rates include the effectstakaquivalent adjustment using applicable stayutax rates to adjust tax exempt investment incomeax exempt investmesecurities and loans to a fully taxable ba

Analysis of Changes in Interest Income and Expenses
(Dollars are in thousands)

Net Change Dec 31, 2006 versus 20

Net

Volume Rate Change
INTEREST INCOME
Loans (tax equivalent basi $  9,00¢ $ 4,95: $ 13,95¢
Securities available for s—taxable S5 2,79¢ 3,15¢
Securities available for s—tax exemp 45¢ — 45¢E
Federal funds sold and otf 26€ 1,152 1,41¢
TOTAL INTEREST INCOME $ 10,08: $ 8,90« $ 18,98¢
INTEREST EXPENSE
Deposits
NOW account: $ 1 $ 341 $ 34z
Money market accoun 1€ 1,13(C 1,14¢
Savings 3) 14¢ 14z
Time depositt 4,461 2,88¢ 7,34¢
Repurchase agreeme 371 772 1,14
Other borrowed fund (16) — (16)
Corporate debentu — 182 182
TOTAL INTEREST EXPENSE $ 4,83 $ 5,45¢ $ 10,28t
NET INTEREST INCOME $ 5252 $ 3.44¢ $ 869¢

The table above details the components of the @saimgnet interest income for the last two yeaos.gach major category of interest earning assetsraerest bearing liabilities, information is pided with respect to changes
due to average volume and changes due to ratéstheitthanges in both volumes and rates allocatéitese two categories based on the proportiohet@ite changes in each category.

Provision for Loan Losses

The provision for loan losses is charged to eastndoring the total loan loss allowance to a leledmed appropriate by management and is basechigtorical experience, the volume and type of iegdonducted by us, the
amount of nonperforming loans, general economidlitimms, particularly as they relate to our markegas, and other environmental factors relatebet@ollectibility of our loan portfolio. As thesadtors change, the level of loan loss
allowance changes. As such, the provision for loaa (income statement) is the difference
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between the loan loss allowance (balance she#tgdteginning and end of the period, net of curpeniod loan charge-offs and recoveries of previoasarged off loans. The provision was $717,000tfie year ending December 31,
2006 compared to $1,065,000 for the same peri@d@5, a decrease of $348,000. There were sevetatdaeffecting the provision period to period (egt differences in net charge-offs and recovgrteswvever, the primary reason for
the decrease in the provision between the periadsdue to a decrease in specific reserves on iethlians of $645,000. The specific reserve on iregdbans at December 31, 2006 was $372,000 compaf&l,017,000 at

December 31, 2005.

Non-Interest Income

Non-interest income for the year ended Decembe2®16 was $6,136,000 compared to $5,380,000 focahgparable period in 2005. This increase waseheltr of the following components listed in theléabelow (Amounts
listed are in thousands of dollars).

|ncr§ase |nc:/eoase
in thousands of dollars; 2006 2005 decrease decrease
Service charges on deposit accot $3,401 $3,222 $ 17¢ 5.6%
Commissions from mortgage broker activit 341 49¢ (158) (BL)%
Loan related fee S 282 32 11.2%
Commissions from sale of mutual funds and annu 69t 321 374 116.5%
Rental income 20¢ 20¢ — — %
Debit card and ATM fee 592 50¢ 84 16.5%
BOLI income 271 43 234 544.2%
Other service charges and fi 24¢ 29¢ (50) (16.9%
Gain (loss) on sale of fixed ass 47 (%) 49 n/e
Gain (loss) on sale of securiti 17 ®3) 20 n/e
Gain on sale of other real estate ow — 8 8) n/s
Total not-interest incom« $6,13¢€ $5,38( $ 75€ 14.1%

Our general business growth helped increase feeiadn general. Mid FL's non-interest income idiiied in 2006 income, but not 2005. Mid Floridasgat non interest income contribution for 2006 \epproximately
$214,000, of which about $117,000 relates to serefmrges on deposit accounts. Partially off-spttiese increasing effects on our deposit accamice charges were rising interest rates andetfaged effect on the earnings credit on
our commercial (business) checking accounts. Ehatsi interest rates rise, the earnings credihenking accounts has increased thereby reducingkiclieaccount service fees, producing a decreasfegt in service charges on deposit
accounts. Another off-setting decreasing effectieposit account service charges was the mergeroodt our subsidiary banks in January 2006. Ona@thanks had been charging customers for cheekiogunts (i.e. non-business
checking accounts). Subsequent to the mergerpthdtict has been changed to free checking, whintiymed a decreasing effect on service chargesmosidl@ccounts. The reason we changed to free tigealas to conform to our
other banks and to better align ourselves to tbal lcompetition.

We purchased the majority of our BOLI on OctoberZ105. As such, we only had two months of incom2005, compared to twelve months of earnings 06280LI is single premium life insurance placedoentain Bank
officers. BOLI income is recognized as the casheswter value of the insurance policies grow. BQ@icoime is generally tax deferred indefinitely.

Commissions from mortgage broker activities is dejfgat on market place forces including supply agmiahd of single family residential property in tagal markets, and the interest rate environmernthvprimarily effects
refinancing activity.
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Sales of mutual funds and annuities are also degeruth market place forces including the succesdfatts of our investment sales representatives.
Non-Interest Expense

Non-interest expense for the year ended Decemhe&085 increased $6,399,000, or 28%, to $29,204 @ff@ipared to $22,805,000 for 2005. The table béimmks down the individual components. Amountsrateousands
of dollars.

$increase % increase
(in thousands of dollars) 2006 2005 (decrease _(decrease)
Employee salaries and wag $12,06: $10,00¢ $ 2,057 20.6%
Employee incentive/bonus compensai 2,061 1,23 82¢ 67.2%
Employee stock option expen 594 — 594 nle
Health insurance and other employee ben 1,76C 1,18( 58( 49.2%
Payroll taxes 932 75 17¢ 23.8%
Other employee related expen 647 44¢ 19¢ 44.%
Incremental direct cost of loan originati (1,096 (997) (99 9.5%
Total salaries, wages and employee ben $16,96: $12,62¢ $ 4,33¢ 34.5%
Occupancy expens 3,44 2,78 662 23.8%
Depreciation of premises and equipm 1,93¢ 1,64z 29z 17.&%
Supplies, stationary and printil 607 522 8t 16.2%
Marketing expense 58t 447 13¢ 30.%
Data processing expen 1,10& 961 144 15.C%
Legal, auditing and other professional f 672 577 9€ 16.6%
Bank regulatory related expens 32¢ 31€ 1c 3.2%
Postage and delive 27¢ 27C 6 2.2%
ATM related expense 434 39¢ 35 8.6%
CDI amortizatior 514 72 447 613.9%
Other expense 2,34 2,19¢ 14¢ 6.£%
Total nor-interest expens $ 29,20« $22,80¢ $ 6,39¢ 28.1%

The most significant component when comparing curyear non interest expense to prior year is thecki 31, 2006 acquisition of Mid FL. Mid FL nonenést expense is included in the current year duinn2005. Mid FL's
total 2006 non interest expense was approxima@9®,000. Excluding Mid FL, our net increase woaudjust from $6,399,000, or 28.1%, to $4,107,000,80% ($6,399,000 minus $2,292,000).

Our largest non-interest expense is employee ampdogee related expenses. Total salaries, wagesraptbyee benefits for 2006 accounted for 58% oftotal non-interest expense (57% excluding stodlonxpense),
compared to 55% for 2005. Effective January 1, 20@6were required to expense employee stock apponsuant to Statement of Financial Accountingn@ad No. 123(R). Prior to 2006, we were not regglito record an estimated
expense for stock options in our financial statetmee recorded an expense of $594,000 in 200&hwhias approximately 2% of our total non interegtemse.

Looking at the table above, employee salaries aagewincreased by 20.6% to $12,063,000 for 2006paced to $10,006,000 for 2005. To analyze thi@52,000 increase, removing the Mid FL componerstatdry expense
(approximately $799,000), results in an adjustedeiase of $1,258,000, or 12.6%. This increaseésult of an increase in average FTEs, exclusiWidfFL (291 in 2006 compared to 266 in 2005), &l &s salary increases
commensurate with our market environment.
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We use a combination of performance incentive Lisayuidelines to motivate our employees to perfarhese are primarily all tied to earnings performemetrics. As our net income increases, our eneglaycentive/bonus
compensation also increases.

Employee health insurance expense increased by ®BB0r 49.2% year to year as listed in the tableve. Removing Mid FL employee health insurangeege (approximately $121,000—Mid FL was not inehlih our
2005 expense) results in an adjusted increasepobzimately $459,000, or 38.9%. Part of this inseess related to the increase in FTEs (exclusiwdidfFL FTEs), and the remaining amount is refieetf the increasing costs occurring
in the health insurance industry.

Incremental direct cost of loan origination, rers direct incremental cost of originating loamsdur portfolio (successful efforts) that are riegd to be capitalized and amortized to interesbime over the life of the related
loan pursuant to Statement of Financial AccounStandard No. 91. The amount that we capitalizeeddent on not just the cost, but the volume aridcsuccessfully originated.

We added one new branch in October 2005 (CrystadrRiwhich is still operating out of a temporaogation until we complete the construction of a m@smanent facility. The new facility is expectedoe ready during the
first half of 2008. We opened a new office in Septer 2006 (Eustis) and one in October 2006 (Deeek)r both in temporary facilities until we constrpermanent facilities. The Deer Creek facilityswacently completed in January
2008. The Eustis facility just began constructiaminly January 2008. We also opened a new branamewly constructed permanent facility in Octob@d& This accounts for some of the additional F¥&ar to year, the rest is due to
the continual growth of our business. The incréaske remainder of our non-interest expense wiasapily due to the continual growth of our business

Income Tax Provision

The income tax provision for the year ended Decer@he2006, was $4,859,000, an effective tax ra@6cb%, as compared to $3,724,000 for the yeaeeimecember 31, 2005, an effective tax rate of%87 This year we had
more tax exempt interest income from tax exempursges than last year, which is a decreasing éffecour effective tax rate. We also had more Bidcbme this year than last year, which is alsceteampt and also results in a
decreasing effect on our effect tax rate. In teeotlirection, we had stock option expense this yedating to incentive stock options which are teot deductible expenses, resulting in an incregsifect on our effective tax rate. This
year we also crossed into a higher federal taxidetagvhich is an increasing effect on our effectiae rate. Income taxes are described and disciisger in Note 10 of our notes to our consoliddieancial statements.

COMPARISON OF BALANCE SHEETS AT DECEMBER 31, 200NER DECEMBER 31, 2006

Overview

Our total assets grew by $140,328,000, or 13%, 477,102,000 at December 31, 2006 to $1,217880%t December 31, 2007. The growth was due tadhaisition of VSB on April 2, 2007, as previousligcussed. At
the time of the transaction, VSB's total assetcauisition were approximately $184,090,000. Exicigdhe VSB acquisition, total assets decreaseapipyoximately $43,762,000, or 4%.
Securities

We account for our investments at fair value ardsify them as available for sale. Unrealized Imgidjains and losses are included as a separateonemtof shareholders’ equity, net of the effeaiefierred income taxes.
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A decline in the market value of any available$ate security below cost that is deemed to be «ttzr-temporary results in a reduction in carryamgount to fair value. The impairment is chargedamings and a new cost
basis for the security is established. To determihether an impairment is other-than-temporarycamsider whether we have the ability and interftall the investment until a market price recovergt aonsider whether evidence
indicating the cost of the investment is recovezahitweighs evidence to the contrary. Evidenceidensd in this assessment includes the reasorisdampairment, the severity and duration of thpairment, changes in value
subsequent to year end, and forecasted perfornudrbe security.

If a security has a decline in fair value belowaitsortized cost that is other than temporary, thersecurity will be written down to its new cossis by recording a loss in the statement of ojperstWe do not engage in
trading activities as defined in Statement of FaiahAccounting Standard Number 115.

Our available for sale portfolio totaled $199,430 @&t December 31, 2007 and $235,350,000 at Deae3db@006, or 16% and 22%, respectively, of tatslets. See the tables below for a summary ofigetye, maturity an
average yield distributions.

We use our security portfolio primarily as a sous€équidity and a base from which to pledge as$et repurchase agreements and public depositenWir liquidity position exceeds expected loan aled other investments
are considered as a secondary earnings altern@gipéally, we remain short-term in our decisioringest in certain securities. As these investmerature, they will be used to meet cash needslbbevireinvested to maintain a desired
liquidity position. We have designated all of oacarities as available for sale to provide flexipjlin case an immediate need for liquidity arisé& believe the composition of the portfolio offdiexibility in managing our liquidity
position and interest rate sensitivity, without edbely impacting our regulatory capital levels. Eieilable for sale portfolio is carried at fair ret value and had a net unrealized gain of appratély $1,135,000 at December 31, 2007,
compared to a net unrealized loss of approximéi|952,000 at December 31, 2006.

We invest primarily in direct obligations of the ithd States, obligations guaranteed as to theipehand interest by the United States, mortgagkéxhsecurities, Municipal securities and obligagiof agencies of the United
States. In addition, we enter into federal fundssactions with our principal correspondent baaks, act as a net seller of such funds. The FeBesdrve Bank and the Federal Home Loan Bank adgdresequity investments to be
maintained by us, which are shown separately irconsolidated balance sheet.

The tables below summarize the maturity distributié securities, weighted average yield by rangmafurities, and distribution of securities for fhexiods provided (dollars are in thousands).

Over five
One year Over one through through Over ten
or less five years ten years ears Total
_ s % s % s % _ s % s %
AVAILABLE -FOR-SALE

US treasury securitie $ 2,011 4.92% $ 1,023 4.81% — — % — $ 3,03¢ 4.88%
US government agenci 3,00z 4.48% 27,340 5.21% 6,092 5.64% 4,057 40,49¢ 5.28%
State, county, & municipi — — % 6,217 4.41% 8,24( 5.35% 23,72¢ 38,18: 5.3%%
Mortgagebacked securitie 14,09¢ 3.72% 93,39% 4.9% 6,187 4.66% 4,03¢€ 117,71¢

Total $ 19,10¢ 3.9%% $ 127,98t 5.01% $ 20,51¢ 5.22% $ 31,81¢ $ 199,43¢
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Distribution of Investment Securities
(Dollars are in thousands)

December 31, 2007 December 31, 2006 December 31, 2005
Amortized Fair Amortized Fair Amortized Fair
Cost Value Cost Value Cost Value
AVAILABLE -FOR-SALE
US treasury securitie $ 3,001 $ 303 % 40,428 $ 40,268  $ 94,39 $ 93,73¢
US government agenci 39,771 40,49¢ 38,78 38,73: 26,817 26,491
State, county, & municipi 38,32¢ 38,18: 27,837 27,981 1,13¢ 1,12¢
Mortgage-backed securitie 117,20: 117,71¢ 129,35] 128,37: 97,45: 95,61¢
Other investmer — — — — 40C 40C
Total $ 198,29¢ $ 19943: $ 236,40: $ 23535( $ 220,200  $ 217,36¢

Loans

Lending-related income is the most important congmbiof our net interest income and is a major doutor to profitability. The loan portfolio is tHargest component of earning assets, and it thergfenerates the largest
portion of revenues. The absolute volume of loartsthe volume of loans as a percentage of earrsisetsiis an important determinant of net interesgin as loans are expected to produce highers/telth securities and other earning
assets. Average loans during the year ended Dece3hh2007, were $791,886,000, or 74% of averaggmegassets, as compared to $605,236,000, or 6&eoage earning assets, for the year ending Dieeedi, 2006. Total loans,
net of unearned fees and cost, at December 31, 2002006 were $841,405,000 and $657,963,000,ateply, an increase of $183,442,000, or 28%. Thpsesents a loan to total asset ratio of 69% 4/t &nd a loan to deposit ratio
of 87% and 74%, at December 31, 2007 and 2006ectsply. The increase in loans during this peki@s partially attributable to our acquisition of B$approximately $121,842,000) and the remainingamhwas normal business
growth.

Total residential real estate loans totaled $2MM® and total commercial real estate loans wWth885,669,000, making up approximately 25% and 4&tbined total of approximately 71%) of the Iqaottfolio as of
December 31, 2007, respectively. Construction, ldgveent, land loans totaled $108,615,000, or 13%h@foan portfolio. Commercial loans totaled $38,200, or 9% of the loan portfolio. Consumer alhdther loans totaled
$60,687,000, or 7% of the loan portfolio.

Loan concentrations are considered to exist whenetare amounts loaned to multiple borrowers esdjagsimilar activities, which collectively couleé similarly impacted by economic or other condisi@and when the total of
such amounts would exceed 25% of total capital. Oube lack of diversified industry and the relatproximity of markets served, the Company hasentrations in geographic as well as in types afofunded.
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The tables below provide a summary of the loanfplistcomposition and maturities for the periodsyided below.

Types of Loans

at December 31
Real estate loan
Residentia
Commercia
Construction, development, la

Total real estate loar
Commercia

Consumer and other loa
Total loan—gross

Less: unearned fees/co
Total loans

Less: allowance for loan loss
Total loans, ne

The repayment of loans is a source of additiongiidiity for the Company. The following table setsth the loans maturing within specific intervalecember 31, 2007.

All loans other than constructic
Real esta—constructior

Total

Fixed interest rat

Variable interest rat

Total

Loan Portfolio Composition
(Dollars are in thousands)

Loan Maturity Schedule
(Dollars are in thousands)

2007

2006

2005

2004

2003

$ 209,18¢ $ 180,86¢ $  148,09( 129,79t 140,82¢
385,66¢ 291,53t 219,09: 179,84¢ 157,58t
108,61! 60,95( 36,35: 20,03: 16,93(
703,47( 533,35! 403,53¢ 329,67« 315,34:
78,23 68,94¢ 63,47¢ 64,98¢ 59,17¢
60,681 56,68¢ 50,41% 46,88! 39,90¢
842,38t 658,98" 517,42: 441,54: 414,42¢
(98%) (1,024 (76€) (53€) (527)
841,40! 657,96: 516,65¢ 441,00t 413,89¢
(10,829 (7,359 (6,49) (5,685 (4,850
$ 830,57 $ 650,60¢ $ 510,16 435,32( 409,04¢
December 31, 2007
0-12 1-5 Over 5
Months Years Years Total
$ 182,63t $ 338,821 $ 212,31( $ 733,770
59,74: 38,80% 10,06¢ 108,61¢
$ 242,37¢ $ 377,63¢ $ 222,37t $ 842,38t
$ 96,06¢ $ 299,69: $ 97,49! $ 493,24°
146,310 77,948 124,88! 349,14:
$ 242,37t $ 377,63¢ $ 222,37t $ 842,38t

The information presented in the above table isthagon the contractual maturities of the individaans, including loans which may be subject tesgal at their contractual maturity. Renewal oftslomns is subject to
review and credit approval, as well as modificatdéierms upon their maturity. Consequently, managyg believes this treatment presents fairly theurita structure of the loan portfoliGe€‘Liquidity and Market Risk Management”

for a discussion regarding the repricing structfrthe loan portfolio.
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Credit Quality and Allowance for Loan Losses
We maintain an allowance for loan losses that Wieweis adequate to absorb probable losses inhigrenr loan portfolio. The allowance is increasgtthe provision for loan losses, which is a cka@current period earnin
and decreased by loan charge-offs net of recovefipsor period loan charge-offs. Loans are chdragainst the allowance when management believiestion of the principal is unlikely.

The allowance consists of two components. The dibstponent consists of amounts reserved for imgéir@ns, as defined by Statement of Financial Anting Standard No. 114. Impaired loans are thoseddhat
management has estimated will not repay as agme®ul &Each of these loans is required to have aenriinalysis supporting the amount of specificriesallocated to the particular loan, if any. Tisab say, a loan may be impaired (i.e.
not expected to repay as agreed), but may be wmuffig collateralized such that we expect to recalkeprinciple and interest eventually, and therefno specific reserve is warranted.

The second component is a general reserve on tiled€ompany’s loans other than those identifieinpgired. We group these loans into five genestdgories with similar characteristics as listefbe

Residential real estate loans

Commercial real estate loans

Construction, development, land loans

Commercial loans (not collateralized by real ejtate

Consumer and all other loans (not collateralizedeay estate)
We then apply an adjusted loss factor to each godlgans to determine the total amount of thissselccomponent of our allowance for loan losses. &djested loss factor for each category of loaresdsrivative of our historical loss
factor for that category, adjusted for currentiing and external environmental factors, as wefbasertain loan grading factors. The environmefaetors that we consider are listed below.

We consider changes in the levels of and trengsét due loans, non-accrual loans and impaired)aard the volume and severity of adversely clessdr graded loans. Also, we consider changeseivalue of underlying
collateral for collateral-dependent loans.

We consider levels of and trends in charge-offsracdveries.
We consider changes in the nature and volume gidhigolio and in the terms of loans.

We consider changes in lending policies, procedanespractices, including changes in underwrititagndards and collection, charge-off, and recoveagtires not considered elsewhere in estimatingjtckesses. We also
consider changes in the quality of our loan revégatem.

We consider changes in the experience, ability,depih of our lending management and other relestafft

We consider changes in international, nationalioreaj, and local economic and business conditiosdevelopments that affect the collectibility loé tportfolio, including the condition of various rket segments (national and
local economic trends and conditions).

We consider the effect of other external factochsas competition and legal and regulatory requérasion the level of estimated credit losses ineaisting portfolio (industry conditions).
We consider the existence and effect of any conetmis of credit, and changes in the level of stmfcentrations.
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In the table below we have shown the two componestsiscussed above, of our allowance for loaselat December 31, 2007 and 2006.

December 31 increase
amounts are in thousands of dollars; 2007 2006 decrease)
Impaired loan: $ 11,80: $ 4,98¢ $ 6,811
Component 1 (specific allowanc 81z 37z 44C
Specific allowance as percentage of impaired It 6.86% 7.4€% (58bp)
Total loans other than impaired loe 829,60: 652,97° 176,62!
Component 2 (general allowanc 10,01¢ 6,98:% 3,03
General allowance as percentage of non impairets 1.21% 1.0™% 14bp:
Total loans 841,40! 657,96( 183,44:
Total allowance for loan loss: 10,82¢ 7,35¢ 3,47%

Allowance for loan losses as percentage of totai$ 1.2%% i.lz% 17bp:

During 2007, we observed increasing trends in oan ldelinquencies and non-accrual loans. We alsereéd a degradation of real estate values nalyanageneral, and within Florida specifically. Videlieve the changes in
these trends differ significantly enough from histal trends such that we have added additionklf&istors to specific loan categories.

As shown in the table above, our allowance for llnsses (“ALLL") as a percentage of total loansstanding was 1.29% at December 31, 2007 and 1.1 ®¥éa@mber 31, 2006. Our ALLL increased by $3,408,0uring this
twelve month period. Of this amount, $3,033,00@te to an increase in our Component 2, or gea#ioatance, of which $1,617,000 relates to the aitjoh of VSB and $1,416,000 is due to changeki:idomponent's risk factors, as
discussed above, and the growth in the loan patfol

The remaining $440,000 increase is due to an isergmour Component 1, or specific allowance. Tosponent is the result of specific allowance asedyprepared for each of our impaired loans.

We are committed to the early recognition of praideand to maintaining a sufficient allowance. Whelve our allowance for loan losses at Decembe2807 was adequate. The table below sets forthdtieity in the
allowance for loan losses for the periods presented
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Balance, beginning of ye

Loans charge-off:
Commercia
Real estate mortgar
Consumel

Total loans chargeoff

Recoveries on loans previously char-off:
Commercia
Real estate mortgat
Consumel
Total loan recoverie
Net loans charge-off
Provision for loan losses charged to expe
Adjustment relating to sale of branct
Acquisition of Mid FL
Acquisition of VSB
Balance, end of yei
Total loans at year er
Average loans outstandil

Allowance for loan losses to total loans at yeat
Net charg-offs to average loans outstand

Activity in Allowance for Loan Losses
(Dollars are in thousands)

2007
$ 7,35t

(206)
(386)
(409
(997)

1
16
44
61

(93€)
2,792

1,615
$ 10821
$841,40!
$791,88t
1.2%
0.12%

2006
$ 6,491

(36¢)
(131)

(99)
(59¢)

53

g
36
98

(500

$605,23¢

1.12%
0.08%

2005 2004 2003
$ 5,68t $ 4,85( $ 4,05t
(229 (139 (299)
— (112) (85)
(134 (108) (151)
(35¢) (350) (534)
52 7 29
31 3 24
17 35 33
10C 45 86
(25¢) (305) (448)
1,06t 1,27( 1,24¢
— (130) —
$ 6,491 $ 5,68¢ $ 4,85(
$516,65¢ $441,00! $413,89¢
$482,81¢ $421,22¢ $374,56°
1.26% 1.2%% 1.1%%
0.05% 0.0%% 0.12%

Non-performing loans consist of non-accrual loams laans past due 90 days or more and still acgrimiterest. Non-performing assets consist of naffiep@ing loans plus other real estate owned (“ORE&IiU repossessed
assets other than real estate. We place loansreacmwual status when they are past due 90 daymandgement believes the borrovedihancial condition, after giving consideratianeconomic conditions and collection efforts, iste
that collection of interest is doubtful. When weg® a loan on non-accrual status, interest acctealse and uncollected interest is reversed andedhagainst current income. Subsequent collectieshsce the principal balance of the

loan until the loan is returned to accrual status.

At December 31, 2007 we had 35 non-accrual loatfs aviotal aggregate balance of $3,797,000. Thyesadoan in the group is $1,170,000 and is sedoyeaicombination of commercial and residential estate. The average
size loan in this group is approximately $109,06Germs of dollars, approximately 52% of our naeraial loans are commercial and commercial reate@s84% is secured by residential real estateis4$écured by land and the
remaining 10% are consumer and other loans. Oreylman with a balance of less than $10,000 is wrsec At December 31, 2007, loans past due 90 oe ntays and still accruing interest totaled $2773,00

Other real estate owned (“OREQ?”) is real estatettiCompany has obtained ownership through foseck or other repossession process. At Decemb@08Z, the Company had four properties in OREGsisting of two
single family homes ($304,000 combined), one mdhiime with land ($46,000) and one commercial rette property with building ($233,000).

At December 31, 2007 repossessed assets otherethlagstate consisted of three mobile homes withggmegate balance of $170,000.
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Total non-performing assets as of December 31, 2807ased $4,182,000 or 648% to $4,827,000, coedpta $645,000 as of December 31, 2006. Non-peifay assets, as a percentage of total assets atribec 31, 2007
and December 31, 2006, were 0.40% and 0.06%, resgpigc

Non-performing loans as of December 31, 2007, msee $3,464,000 or 568% to $4,074,000, compar&é10,000 as of December 31, 2006. Non-performiagdpas a percentage of total loans at Decembe23a7 and
December 31, 2006, were 0.48% and 0.09%, respéct

Interest income not recognized on non-accrual leeasapproximately $78,000, $16,000 and $35,00€hfoyears ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and B&}fectively. Interest income recognized on imphklicens was
approximately $642,000, $363,000 and $18,000 fery#ars ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 20@@&ctagly. The average recorded investment in inggiioans during 2007, 2006 and 2005 were $8,305%8032,000 and
$987,000, respectively. The table below summarimesperforming assets for the periods provided.

Non-Performing Assets
(Dollars are in thousands)

December 31
2005

$ 852
65¢

Non-accrual loan:

Past due loans 90 days or more and still accruitegest
Total nor-performing loan:

Other real estate owne*OREC")

Repossessed assets other than real ¢

Total nor-performing asset

Total nor-performing loans as a percentage of total Ic
Total nor-performing assets as a percentage of total a
Allowance for loan losses as a percentage o-performing loan:
Restructured loar

Recorded investment in impaired lo:

Allowance for loan losses related to impaired lo

We are continually analyzing our loan portfolicain effort to recognize and resolve our problemtassequickly and efficiently as possible. While bedieve we use the best information availabldatiime to make a
determination with respect to the allowance fonlt@sses, we recognize that many factors can aglydrapact various segments of our markets, andement adjustments in the allowance may be negeg$ature economic
indications or other factors differ from the asstimps used in making the initial determination fareigulatory policies change. We continuously foous attention on promptly identifying and provigifor potential problem loans, as
they arise. Although the total allowance for loasses is available to absorb losses from all Icaasagement allocates the reserve among loan porttdegories for informational and regulatoryagjng purposes. Regulatory
examiners may require us to recognize additionlkeéallowance based upon the regulators’ judgmemtsit the information available to them at the tofhéheir examination, which may differ from oudgments about the allowance for
loan losses.
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While no portion of the allowance is in any waytriesed to any individual loan or group of loanedahe entire allowance is available to absorbds$om any and all loans, the following table swari@es our allocation of
allowance for loan losses by loan category anddaameach category as a percentage of total Iéanthe periods presented. Dollar amounts areongands.

December 31,

2007 2006 2005
Real estate loan
Residentia $ 1,441 25% $  99¢ 28% $ 99z 29%
Commercia 5,20z 46% 2,96¢ 44% 2,88¢ 42%
Construction, development, la 1,63€ 13% 1,21 9% 43E _ ™%
Total real estate loar 8,27¢ 84% 5,18( 81% 4,31¢ 78%
Commercial loan 1,412 9% 1,271 1C% 1,302 12%
Consumer and other loa 92¢ % 904 9% 841 10%
Unallocatec 207 — 32
Total $ 10,82¢ 10C% $ 7,35t 10(% $ 6491 _100%
December 31
2004 2003
Real estate loan
Residentia $ 87¢ 29% $ 81t 34%
Commercia 2,56 41% 1,927 38%
Construction, development, la 324 _ 4% 237 _ 4%
Total real estate loar 3,76 14% 2,97¢ 7€%
Commercial loan 1,18¢ 15% 1,301 14%
Consumer and other loa 66E 11% 57C 1%
Unallocatec 74 _ — _
Total $5,68¢ 10C% $4,85C 10(%

Bank Premises and Equipment

Bank premises and equipment was $55,458,000 amilzre31, 2007 compared to $39,879,000 at Decenihe?0®6, an increase of $15,579,000 or 39%. Ofatrieunt, $9,289,000 represents the purchase ofiggsrand
equipment pursuant to the April 2, 2007 acquisitbéVSB as discussed previously. The remaining arofithe increase ($6,290,000) is the result ofpases and construction costs totaling $8,599¢30%$2,305,000 of depreciation
expense. Most of these costs relate to the comistnuaf the two branch offices completed in thstfinalf of 2007 (Ashton in Osceola County and FisWhK in Hillsborough County) and two branch offieesrently under construction
(Deer Creek in Polk County and Crystal River inr@tCounty).

We operate from 37 banking locations in nine céfffarida Counties. Three of these locations arerafing out of temporary facilities while their pganent offices are under construction. The conitnués almost complete ¢
two, and the other one just began constructionlugiieg these temporary facilities, which are rentee lease seven of our banking offices and owneheinder. See Note 4 to our consolidated findistzements for additional
information.

Deposits

Total deposits increased $79,814,000, or 9%, t@ $#D,000 as of December 31, 2007, compared to,886D00 at December 31, 2006. The increase insitsmturing this period was attributable to ourusigion of VSB
(approximately $130,614,000). Excluding the deosétquired pursuant to the VSB
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transaction, the Company’s deposits decreased ®pB86,000, or 5.7%. Deposit growth, especiallydreadeposits (i.e. non time deposit accounts) naat to be a challenge. Our subsidiary Presidenvs initiated various incentive
programs throughout their Banks as well as otheketimg efforts targeted at deposit growth. Weéadithere are several forces causing this slow dowleposit growth, including the interest rateiemvment which may have enticed
customers to shift from lower yielding accountigher yielding time deposits and the slow downeial estate activity in Florida, which translate®iless transactions which equates to lower bakheld in title company accounts and
other real estate related accounts.

The generation of deposits within our market asyaes as our primary source of funds for investnpeincipally in loans. The tables below summarietested deposit information for the periods indécat

Average deposit balance by type and average intetesites
(Dollars are in thousands)

2007 2006 2005
Average Average Average Average Average Average
__Balance __Rate __Balance __Rate __Balance __Rate
Non interest bearing demand depo $ 187,75 0.0(% $  196,73¢ 0.0(% $ 182,10¢ 0.0(%
NOW account: 125,46t 1.1(% 100,26t 0.6€6% 99,90¢ 0.32%
Money market accoun 114,45 2.9(% 106,70° 2.48% 105,62! 1.42%
Savings accouni 53,19¢ 0.81% 48,05: 0.71% 48,73¢ 0.41%
Time deposit: 482,16: 4.8%% 355,70¢ 4.31% 241,77¢ 3.3%
Total $ 963,03 2.9¢% $ 80747 2.35%% $ 678,14 1.48%

Maturity of time deposits of $100,000 or more
(Dollars are in thousands)

December 31,

2007 2006 2005
Three months or les $ 98,75: $ 60,49t $ 28,10¢
Three through six montt 88,22« 68,047 24,057
Six through twelve montt 76,65: 60,31: 31,36¢
Over twelve month 33,67 38,78( 46,67:
Total $ 297,30: $ 227,630 $ 130,19¢

Repurchase Agreements

We enter into borrowing arrangements with retadibaess customers by agreements to repurchase (¢regae agreements”) under which we pledge investsesurities owned and under our control as cobihtainst the one-
day borrowing arrangement. These arrangementsoateamsactions with investment bankers or brokefags, but rather, with several of our larger coencial customers who periodically have excess batdnces and do not want to
keep those balances in non interest bearing chgelkicounts. Because our Banks are not permittpeytanterest on commercial checking accounts, vier ah arrangement via a repurchase agreement yhbadances are transferred
from their checking account into a repurchase agese arrangement which we will pay a daily adjulstaiterest rate of the federal fund rate minusia@ount that generally ranges between 0.35% and®.75
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The daily average balance of these short-term tdmgagreements for the years ended December 8%, 2006 and 2005, was approximately $58,329,089,880,000 and $38,210,000, respectively. Intengsénse for the
same periods was approximately $2,582,000, $2,0860d $1,013,000, respectively, resulting in aerage rate paid of 4.43%, 4.33% and 2.65% for &zesyended December 31, 2007, 2006, and 2005 cteghe The table below
summarizes our repurchase agreements for the pggiedented.

Schedule of short-term borrowing (1)
(Dollars are in thousands)

Average Weighted
Maximum
outstanding interest Average
rate interest
at any Average during Ending rate at
month end balance the year Balance year end
Year ended December &
2007 $ 74,52¢ $58,32¢ 4.4% $33,12¢ 2.9%
2006 54,81: 49,83( 4.3 % 52,79: 4.3%
2005 49,04¢ 38,21( 2.6% 41,81! 3.3¢%

1) Consist of securities sold under agreements torcbpse

Other borrowed funds

From time to time we borrow on a short-term basssially over-night, either through Federal HomerL8ank advances or Federal Funds Purchased. Tleebiglow summarizes our repurchase agreementsdqeriods
presented.

Schedule of short-term borrowing (1)
(Dollars are in thousands)

Average Weighted
Maximum
outstanding interest Average
Average rate interest
at any during Ending rate at
month end balance the year Balance year end
Year ended December &
2007 $ 42,51¢ $8,76¢ 6.07% $42,51¢ 4.4%%
2006 = = — % = — %
2005 4,50( 407 3.9%% 1,00 4.5(%

1) Consist of Federal Home Loan Bank advances andr&ieiends Purchase

Corporate debenture

We formed CenterState Banks of Florida StatutonysTt (the “Trust”) for the purpose of issuing trpseferred securities. On September 22, 2003 swugeid a floating rate corporate debenture in theuatof $10,000,000. The
Trust used the proceeds from the issuance of agraterred security to acquire the corporate delrerof the Company. The trust preferred secusseatially mirrors the corporate debenture, caggircumulative preferred dividend &
variable rate equal to the interest rate on thparate debenture (three month LIBOR plus 305 haiists). The rate is subject to change quartette flate in effect during the quarter ended Decer@beP007 was 8.28%. The corporate
debenture and the trust preferred security each B@wear lives. The trust preferred security dveddorporate debenture are callable by the Compathe Trust, at their respective option after fygars, and sooner in specific events,
subject to prior approval by the Federal Reservar@df then required. Related debt issuance @is$488,000 were capitalized and are being amattiae
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interest expense over a five year period. The Compas treated the trust preferred security as Tpital up to the maximum amount allowed unterRederal Reserve guidelines for federal reguylgiorposes.

In September 2004, Valrico Bancorp Inc. (“VBI") foed Valrico Capital Statutory Trust (“Valrico Trijsfor the purpose of issuing trust preferred seasitOn September 9, 2004, VBI issued a floating catporate debentu
in the amount of $2,500,000. The Trust used theqeds from the issuance of a trust preferred sgdoracquire the corporate debenture. The triefepred security essentially mirrors the corpodskenture, carrying a cumulative
preferred dividend at a variable rate equal tarkerest rate on the corporate debenture (threelmdBOR plus 270 basis points). The rate is sutiechange quarterly. The rate in effect during dgiarter that included December 31,
2007 was 7.82%. The corporate debenture and teepreferred security each have 30-year lives.tiitist preferred security and the corporate deberste callable by VBI or the Valrico Trust, at theispective option after five years,
and sooner in specific events, subject to priorayg by the Federal Reserve, if then required April 2, 2007, the Company acquired all the asaatbassumed all the liabilities of VBI pursuanthe merger agreement, including V8I’
corporate debenture and related trust preferreatisediscussed above. The Company has treatetlusepreferred security as Tier 1 capital up ®reximum amount allowed under the Federal Reggrnglines for federal regulatory
purposes.

Liquidity and Market Risk Management
Market and public confidence in our financial sggmand financial institutions in general will lalyg determine our access to appropriate levelgofdity. This confidence is significantly dependien our ability to maintain
sound asset quality and appropriate levels of abpgserves.

Liquidity is defined as the ability to meet antiaipd customer demands for funds under credit comenits and deposit withdrawals at a reasonableacason a timely basis. We measure our liquidityitsby giving
consideration to both on- and off-balance sheetcssuwf and demands for funds on a daily and wesddys.

Liquidity risk involves the risk of being unablefund assets with the appropriate duration andbaged liabilities, as well as the risk of not lgeéble to meet unexpected cash needs. Liquiditynplg and management are
necessary to ensure the ability to fund operatimss-effectively and to meet current and futureeptial obligations such as loan commitments, |eddigations, and unexpected deposit outflows. is phocess, we focus on both assets
and liabilities and on the manner in which they bar to provide adequate liquidity to meet our reeed

Interest rate sensitivity refers to the responsesrof interest-earning assets and interest-belglnilities to changes in market interest ratefse Tate sensitive position, or gap, is the diffeeeim the volume of rate-sensitive
assets and liabilities, at a given time intervad)uding both floating rate instruments and insteats which are approaching maturity. The measureofesur interest rate sensitivity, or gap, is afi¢he principal techniques we use in our
asset/liability management effort. Each of our Bamjenerally attempts to maintain a range, setligyp between rate-sensitive assets and liatslitig repricing periods. Each of our Banks set tbein range, approved by their board of
directors. If any of our Banks fall outside theiegapproved range, it requires board action anddomaproval, by that particular Bank’s board okdiors. The asset mix of our balance sheet is atedicontinually in terms of several
variables: yield, credit quality, and appropriateding sources and liquidity. Management of thieiliz mix of the balance sheet focuses on expamdire various funding sources.

Our gap and liquidity positions are reviewed peigatly to determine whether or not changes in pedi@and procedures are necessary to achieve falaoals. At December 31, 2007, approximately 413l gross loans
were adjustable rate. Approximately 59% of our stweent securities ($117,716,000 fair value) aresied in U.S. Government Agency mortgage backadfisies. Although most of these have maturitiessxuess of five years, these are
amortizing instruments that generate cash flowh ezanth. The duration (average life of expected dmsvs) of our securities at December 31, 2007 agzoximately 3.4 years. Deposit
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liabilities, at that date, consisted of approxinha®1 35,442,000 (14%) in NOW accounts, $142,203,A@%%) in money market accounts and savings, $885080 (55%) in time deposits and $159,089,000 (li6%on-interest bearing
demand accounts.

The table below presents the market risk associaitbdour financial instruments. In the “Rate Séinty Analysis” table, rate sensitive assets andilities are shown by repricing periods. Therestied fair value of each
instrument category is also shown in the table.|g\Mhiese estimates of fair value are based onudignjent of the most appropriate factors, ther@iagsurance that, if we had to dispose of suctuiments at December 31, 2007, the
estimated fair values would necessarily have bebieaed at that date, since market values mayrdiffpending on various circumstances. The estinfatedalues at December 31, 2007, should not reeci#g be considered to apply at
subsequent dates.

RATE SENSITIVITY ANALYSIS

December 31, 2007
(Dollars are in thousands)

Est. Fair
0-1Yr 1-2Yrs 2-3Yrs 3-4Yrs 4-5Yrs 5Ys+ TOTAL Value

I NTEREST EARNING ASSETS
Fixed rate loans (2 $
Average interest rate
Variable rate loans (3)
Average interest rate
Investment securities (.
Average interest rate
Federal funds sold and other
Average interest rate
Total interes-earning asse! $

$ 69,75¢ $ 72,99¢ $ 74,067 $ 82,87( $ 97,492 $ 493,24, $ 495,88¢
7.19% 7.92% 7.7% 7.45% K
13,69¢ 15,76 21,200 13,51¢ 17,71C 349,14 349,14
6.7¢% 6. 6.67 6.8(% y K
18,83t 17,69: 25,131 4,082 114,63t 198,29¢ 199,43«
4.71%

4.22% 4.61% 5.08% 4.61% 4.95%
— 47,56: 47,56:
B!

$ 102,29( $ 106,45t $ 120,39¢ $  100,47: $ 229,83 $ 1,088,25! $ 1,092,02
6.55% 6.82% 7.1(% SR 6.14% 6.81%

INTEREST BEARING
LIABILITIES
NOW account: $
Average interest rate
Money Market Account
Average interest rate
Savings Account
Average interest rate
Time deposits
Average interest rate
Securities sold under repurchase agreen
Average interest rate
Other borrowed funds (¢
Average interest rates
Corporate debentu
Average interest rate
Total Interes-Bearing Liabilities $

135,44;
93,07¢
49,127

44,49 12,87
4.62% 4.51%

5,68¢ —
4.7(%

536,60(

33,12¢
42,51¢

12,500

$ 44,49¢ $ 12,87; $ $ 5,68¢ $ 115 $ 901,67 $ 902,39:
4.62% 4.51% 4.70% 0.91% 3.8(%

Interest sensitivity ga (404,43) 57,79 93,58 115,01¢ 94,78 229,72

Cumulative gaj (404,43) (346,647 (253,06) (138,040 (43,269 186,57¢

Cumulative gap (RSA/RSL) (¢ 051 0.61 0.7z 0.8¢ 0.9¢ 121

(1) Securities are shown at amortized cost. Includds £D2 (amortized cost basis) of mortgage backedriies of which the majority are fixed rate. Adtigh most have maturities greater than five yehese are amortizing instruments which generate flaws on a monthly basi
) Includes federal funds sold and interest earnirdpFa@ Reserve stock and Federal Home Loan Bank.s

3) Loans are shown at gross value.

(4) Includes federal funds purchased and Federal Homa@ Bank advance

(5) Rate sensitive assets (RSA) divided by rate seeditabilities (RSL), cumulative basi
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As stated earlier, the rate sensitivity table abswamarizes our interest earning assets and intazasing liabilities by repricing periods at aquin time. It does not include assumptions abeusgivity to changes in various
interest rates by asset or liability type, corietabetween macro environment market rates andfgppmduct types, lag periods, cash flows or othgesumptions and projections. However, in additiostatic gap analysis, our Banks ¢
use simple simulation models to estimate the seitgiof their net interest income to changes iterest rates. Simulation is a better technique ¢zgnanalysis because variables are changed foatfmis rate conditions. Each categery’
interest change is calculated as rates ramp ugl@nrd. In addition, the repayment speeds and regrispeeds are changed. Rate Shock is a methotless sesting the net interest margin over the feaxtquarters under several rate
change levels. These levels span in 100bps incrsnuerand down from the current interest ratesrdfer to simulate activity, maturing balances amaced with the new balances at the new rate,lenel repricing balances are adjusted
to the new rate shock level. The interest is retated for each level along with the new averagddyiNet interest margin is then calculated andaegin risk profile is developed. The results ofsaealculations, as of December 31, 2
looking four quarters into the future, for our camdd Banks, are summarized in the table below.

change in interest rats -400 bp. -300 bp. -200 bp. -100 bp. 0 bp. +100 bp| +200 bp| +300 bp| +400 bps
resulting effect on ne

interest income (& -1.18Y -0.53Y -0.05Y 0.16Y curren| -0.38Y -0.90 -1.45Y -1.96%

(a) The percentage change in each of these bopessents a percentage change from the net inteceshe (dollars) that the models projected forrieet four quarters. To put this in perspectiveam&xample, our net interest

income for 2007 was $42,348,000. Assuming a 10@epsease in rates, our models are suggesting thateo interest income would increase by 0.16%pproximately $68,000. Likewise, assuming a 100bpase in rates,
our models are suggesting that our net interesnilecwould decrease by 0.38%, or approximately S8, |t is important to reiterate again, that themelels are built on a multitude of assumptions grediictions. This is not
an exact science. The benefit that we see is miegsour overall interest rate risk profile. Althdugve are by no means suggesting the exactness afithbers above, what we see as a take away iegwtlless of a plus or
minus 400 bps changes in interest rates, the nesudit catastrophic to our future earnings. Weéebelthat our interest rate risk is manageabletamfitr control as of December 31, 20

Simulation and rate shock stress testing our netest income (“NIM”) is a forward looking analysEhat is, it estimates, based on various assumgtishat the effect on our NIM might be given vasahanges in future
interest rates. Another way of analyzing our inserate risk profile is looking at history. The lbelow measures the correlation between our Nilfiraarket interest rates over an eight year pesading at the beginning of 2000 and
ending on December 31, 2007. We used Prime ag@gsie for market interest rates. This simple dati@n is not perfect because we ignore changesiiation of our asset/liability portfolio over tina@d changes in the slope of the
yield curve over time. However, it will demonstr#tat over time our asset/liability portfolio geally tended to be asset sensitive. That is, in ggnever this historical period, when market ierrates increased, our NIM increased,
when market interest rates decreased, our NIM dsetk In the table below, the Prime rate is medswyehe vertical bars, and their scale is on dfieHand side of the graph. Each bar representsrahmOur NIM is represented by the
line graph and its scale is on the right hand efdée graph. The line graph is connecting a see®ts, which represents our NIM for a given gerar
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Net Interest Margin vs. Prime
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Although the graph above and our earlier discussiaticates that we have historically been asseigee, we believe we are less asset sensitivattitat in the past and could be approaching atdiagpility sensitive position.
The reason for this statement is as follows. Feary ago (2003) 55% of our loan portfolio was \@eaate of which most were tied to Prime and adjlislaily or monthly. Today, December 31, 2007y @Hl% of our loan portfolio is
variable rate. The result is that our loan portfddi not as sensitive to interest rate changeytagdt was in the past. In the past, our investreeaurities were very short term. We invested grilyin short-term U.S. Treasuries with
terms generally less than two years. Today, 59%ubfnvestment securities are U.S. Government Agemartgage backed securities and 19% are tax exempicipal securities which tend to be fixed rated term. Four years ago, the
duration of our investment securities portfolio veggproximately 1.6 years. Today (December 31, 200i8) approximately 3.4 years. By lengthening diueation of our investment securities, we haveerthis portfolio less sensitive to
changes in interest rates today, than it was ipése. In terms of the liability side of the balarsheet, consider two funding sources. First, #posit funding source least sensitive to changé@génest rates is non interest bearing
checking accounts. Four years ago, non interesirfgeehecking accounts represented approximately @2our total deposits. Today, at December 3172€tey represent only about 16% of our total dépoSecond, consider the
deposit funding source most sensitive to interast changes, time deposits. Four years ago timesiepvere about 40% of our total deposits, twayeago they were about 37% of our total depositd,fed been as low as 32%. At
December 31, 2007 time deposits represented appatedy 55% of our total deposits.

Managing interest rate risk is a dynamic process.ilosophy is to not try to guess the marketither direction. We do not want to be exc iealsets sensitive or excessively liability sensitide try to manage our
asset/liability portfolio with the goal of optimizy our yield without taking on excessive interesemisk.

Contractual Obligations

While our liquidity monitoring and management caless both present and future demands for and soofdiguidity, the following table of contractuedbmmitments focuses only on our future obligatidnghe table, all
deposits with indeterminate maturities, such asatehtleposits, checking accounts, savings accondtmianey market accounts, are presented as havireguaity of one year or less.
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December 31, 2007

Due over Due over

one year three

and less years

Due in one than and less Due over
year or three than five five

in thousands of dollars; Total less years years Years
Contractual commitment
Deposit maturitie: $ 972,62( $ 904,09! $ 54,14¢ $ 14,382 $ —
Securities sold under agreements to repurc 33,12¢ 33,12¢ — — —
Corporate debentul 12,500 — — — 12,500
Other borrowed fund 42,51¢ 42,51¢ — — —
Deferred compensatic 1,85¢ 1,55¢ 30z — —
Operating lease obligatiol 1,97 56€ 58¢ 49€ 324
Total $ 1,064,59 $ 981,86 $ 55,03¢ $ 14,87¢ $ 12,82«

Primary Sources and Uses of Funds

Our primary sources of funds during the year eridlecember 31, 2007 included a $47,425,000 decredsedstments and securities net of maturitiesésa@é11,854,000 increase in borrowings, $8,665/0@Mnds provided b
operations, net cash from the acquisition of VSB%650,000, $675,000 of proceeds received uportisgeof stock options by our employees, $210,d0fraceeds from the sale of OREO, and a $47,573je@fease in federal funds
sold and other cash items.

Our primary uses of funds during 2007 included 2,880,000 increase in net loans outstanding, 7830000 net decrease in deposits, $8,615,000 metg@ses of premises and equipment including coet&rucosts, and
$1,820,000 in dividends paid to our shareholders.

Capital Resources

Total stockholders’ equity at December 31, 2007 848,282,000, or 12.2% of total assets compar&d 13,332,000, or 10.9% of total assets at Dece@he2006. The $30,950,000 increase was primaréyrésult of the
following items: common stock issued pursuant tahquisition of VSB ($22,443,000), plus net incd$i799,000), plus exercise of stock options ($606), plus stock based compensation expense purtsustatement of
Accounting Standard No. 123(R) ($509,000), pluscheinge of unrealized gain in securities avail&lesale ($1,343,000), less dividends paid ($1.820).

The bank regulatory agencies have establishechaskd capital requirements for banks. These gniehre intended to provide an additional meaduaebank’s capital adequacy by assigning weigheedlk of risk to asset
categories. Banks are also required to systemigtitalintain capital against such “off- balance sheetivities as loans sold with recourse, loan ntitments, guarantees and standby letters of crBlése guidelines are intended to
strengthen the quality of capital by increasingehghasis on common equity and restricting the amnoflloan loss reserves and other forms of ecgiigh as preferred stock that may be included iitalafach of our Company’s
subsidiary Banks’ objective is to maintain its entrstatus as a “well-capitalized institution” hattterm is defined by its regulators.

Under the terms of the guidelines, banks must méimum capital adequacy based upon both totaksssel risk-adjusted assets. All banks are requiredaintain a minimum ratio of total capital tekiweighted assets of 8
and a minimum ratio of Tier 1 capital to risk-weligth assets of 4%. Adherence to these guidelinesdtdsad an adverse impact on our Company.
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Selected consolidated capital ratios at Decembe2@®17, and 2006 were as follows:

Capital Ratios
(Dollars are in thousands)

Actual Well Capitalized Excess
Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount
As of December 31, 2007
Total capital: (to risk weighted asset $ 138,07( 15.(% $ 92,23 10.(% $ 45,83¢
Tier 1 capital: (to risk weighted assel $ 127,24 13.8% $ 55,33¢ 6.C% $ 71,90¢
Tier 1 capital: (to average asse $ 127,24 10.8% $ 58,99t 5.0% $ 68,247
As of December 31, 200¢
Total capital: (to risk weighted asset $ 122,38° 16.€% $ 73,71¢ 10.(% $ 48,67!
Tier 1 capital: (to risk weighted asset $ 115,03 15.€% $ 44,23( 6.C% $ 70,80:
Tier 1 capital: (to average asse $ 115,03 11.2% $ 51,23¢ 5.(% $ 63,79¢

Effects of Inflation and Changing Prices

The accompanying consolidated financial statemiesée been prepared in accordance with generalpaed accounting principles, which require the naezment of financial position and operating resinteerms of historice
dollars without considering the change in the retapurchasing power of money over time due taaitdh. Unlike most industrial companies, virtuadly of the assets and liabilities of a financiadtitution are monetary in nature. As a
result, interest rates generally have a more sagmif impact on the performance of a financialiinson than the effects of general levels of itifia. Although interest rates do not necessarilyenio the same direction or to the same
extent as the prices of goods and services, inesdasnflation generally have resulted in increbisgerest rates. In addition, inflation affectsefncial institutions’ increased cost of goods amtises purchased, the cost of salaries and
benefits, occupancy expense, and similar itemfatioh and related increases in interest ratesrgépelecrease the market value of investmentda@ents held and may adversely affect liquidity, @ags, and shareholders’ equity.
Commercial and other loan originations and refiirage tend to slow as interest rates increase, andeziuce our earnings from such activities.
Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We do not currently have any off-balance sheengements, other than approved and unfunded loahketars and lines of credit to our customersidrdinary course of business.

Accounting Pronouncements
Refer to Note 1(x) in our Notes to ConsolidatedaRitial Statements for a discussion on the effdatew accounting pronouncements.
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Item 7A. Quantitative and qualitative disclosures about marlet risk.

Market risk is the risk of economic loss from adeechanges in the fair value of financial instrutaefue to changes in (a) interest rates, (b) fareighange rates, or (c) other factors that rétatearket volatility of the rate,
index, or price underlying the financial instrume@ur market risk is composed primarily of intenete risk. Each of our subsidiary Banks has aretiissbility Committee (“ALCO") which is responsiblfor reviewing the interest rate
sensitivity position, and establishing policiesrtonitor and limit the exposure to interest rat& fa their specific Bank. Substantially all of onterest rate risk exposure relates to the fireriostrument activity of each of our subsidiary
Banks. As such, the board of directors of eachidigrg Bank is responsible to review and approephlicies and guidelines established by their BaAkCO.

The primary objective of asset/liability managemisrtb provide an optimum and stable net interemtgin, after-tax return on assets and return oftyeqapital, as well as adequate liquidity and tapinterest rate risk is
measured and monitored through gap analysis, whigisures the amount of repricing risk associatéttve balance sheet at specific points in time. ‘&ejuidity and Market Risk Management” preseniredtem 7 above for
quantitative disclosures in tabular format, as welhdditional qualitative disclosures.

Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Dat
The financial statements of our Company as of Déegr81, 2007 and 2006 and for the years ended DOredd, 2007, 2006 and 2005 are set forth in thisnFL0-K at page 67.

Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Aeunting and Financial Disclosure
None.
Item 9A. Controls and Procedures
(a) Evaluation of disclosure controls and procedu. The Company maintains controls and procedureigmiesd to ensure that information required to beldied in the reports that the Company files onstsunder the

Securities Exchange Act of 1934 is recorded, pse@ssummarized and reported within the time perspeécified in the rules and forms of the Secwritied Exchange Commission. Based upon their evatuait
those controls and procedures performed within8@& af the filing date of this report, the Chiefeextive and Chief Financial officers of the Compaowpcluded that the Company'’s disclosure controtsocedures
were adequatt

(b) Changes in internal control The Company made no significant changes in itsrialecontrols or in other factors that could sigraintly affect these controls subsequent to the dithe evaluation of those controls
the Chief Executive and Chief Financial office
(©) Managemer's report on internal control over financial reparg. The effectiveness of the Compi’s internal control over financial reporting as afdember 31, 2007 has been audited by Crowe Chimtkampany

LLC, an independent registered public accounting,fias stated in their report which is includedeherManagement is responsible for establishingraaihtaining adequate internal control over finahaéporting, as
such term is defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a}16(fider the supervision and with the participatiérour management, including our Chief Executiféa®r and Chief Financial Officer, we conductedearaluation
of the effectiveness of our internal control ovieefcial reporting based on the frameworknternal Control — Integrated Frameworgsued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatialse referred to as the
Treadway Commission. Based upon our evaluation hesframework irinternal Control — Integrated Frameworinanagement concluded that our internal control éimancial reporting was effective as of
December 31, 200°

Item 9B. Other Information.
Not applicable.
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PART Ill

Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governace

Our Company has a Code of Ethics that appliestpritcipal executive officer and principal
financial officer (who is also its principal accdiny officer), a copy of which is included with ghi
Form 10-K as Exhibit 14.1. The information containader the sections captioned “Directors” and
“Executive Officers” under “Proposal One—ElectionDirectors,” and in the sections captioned “Aud@mmittee Report” and “Section 16(a) Reporting Renents,” in the registrant’s definitive Proxy ®taent for the Annual
Meeting of Shareholders to be held on April 29,82a6 be filed with the SEC pursuant to Regulafidi within 120 days of their registrant’s fiscalyeend (the “Proxy Statement”), is incorporatecefreby reference.

Item 11. Executive Compensatior

The information contained in the sections captictiefbrmation About the Board of Directors and @@mmittees” under “Proposal One—Election of Direstband the sections captioned “Executive Compimsand
Benefits,” and “Compensation Committee Report,thie Proxy Statement, is incorporated herein byreefee.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners andMlanagement and Related Stockholder Matter:

Information contained in the section captioned &dtors” and “Management and Principal
Stock Ownership” under “Election of Directors,” amdder the table captioned “Equity Compensatiom Riformation,” in the Proxy Statement, is incorged herein by reference.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, an®irector Independence

The information contained in the section entitl€#ftain Transactions” under “Executive
Compensation and Benefits” and the section entfilécector Independence” in the Proxy Statemerd®rporated herein by reference.

Iltem 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Service

The information contained in the section captiotiedependent Auditors” in the Proxy
Statement is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedule
(a) The following documents are filed as part of this eport:
1. Financial Statements

Reports of Independent Registered Public Accourfiing Consolidated Balance Sheets as of Decemhe28F and 2006

Consolidated Statements of Operations for the yeded December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the ye@ied December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005

Consolidated Statement of changes in stockhold#gsity and Comprehensive Income for the years efgmber 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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2. Financial Statement Schedule
All schedules have been omitted as the requirestrimdtion is either inapplicable or included in tetes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

3. Exhibits

3.1- Articles of Incorporation of CenterState Banks tfrféla, Inc. (Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 3.1 to the Compar's Registration Statement No. :-95087 (the“Registration Stateme”))
3.2 - Bylaws of CenterState Banks of Florida, Inc. (Ipmmated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to the RediistnaStatement
3.2 - Amendments to Articles of Incorporation of Centet8tBanks of Florida, Inc. (Incorporated by refeeeto the Compar's Form i-K dated April 25, 2006)
3.4 - Amendment to bylaws of CenterState Banks of Florie
4.1 - Specimen Stock Certificate of CenterState Bankdarida, Inc. (Incorporated by reference to ExhibR to the Registration Stateme
10.1 - CenterState Banks of Florida, Inc. Stock OptiomRlacorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Registration Statement
10.z - CenterState Banks of Florida, Inc. Employee StasicRase Plan (Incorporated by reference to AppeAdixthe Compar’s Proxy Statement dated March 25, 200
10.2 - Form of CenterState Banks of Florida, Inc. SplillBroAgreement (Incorporated by reference to ExHibi1 to the Compar's Form {-K dated January 11, 2006
10.4 - Form of CenterState Banks of Florida, Inc. Chamg€dntrol and Severance Agreement for Ernest SiePjiPresident, CEO and Chairman of the Board, gaméntal, Senior Vice President, CFO and Corgogatcretary (Incorj
10.£ - Form of CenterState Banks of Florida, Inc. Chamg€adntrol and Severance Agreement for George HefBat, Senior Vice President, Treasurer and Chjgdr&ions Officer, and the Comp¢'s four subsidiary bank Presidents
10.€ - CenterState Banks of Florida, Inc. 2007 Equity ise Plan (Incorporated by reference to Appenditothe Compar’s Proxy Statement dated March 30, 20C
10.7 - Noncompete and Nonsolicitation Agreement betweerte@8tate Banks of Florida, Inc. and subsidiarykhanesident Timothy A. Pierso
14.1 - Code of Ethics (Incorporated by reference to ExHiBil to the Compar's December 31, 2003 Form-K dated March 26, 200«
21.1 - List of Subsidiaries of CenterState Banks of Flayichc.
23.1- Consent of Crowe Chizek and Company L
23.2 - Consent of KPMG LLF
31.1 - Certification of President and Chief Executive ©éfi under Sectio
302 of the Sarban—Oxley Act of 2002
31.z - Certification of Chief Financial Officer under Siect 302 of the
Sarbane-Oxley Act of 200z
32.1 - Certification of President and Chief Executive ©éfi under Section
906 of the Sarban—Oxley Act of 2002
32.z - Certification of Chief Financial Officer under Siect 906 of the
Sarbane-Oxley Act of 200z

* Represents a management contract or compensatarpphrrangement required to be filed as an etx|
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

Board of Directors and Shareholders
CenterState Banks of Florida, Inc.
Winter Haven, Florida

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balsineets of CenterState Banks of Florida, Inof &ecember 31, 2007 and 2006, and the relatecblidaged statements of operations, changes in btddkrs’ equity, and
cash flows for each of the years then ended. Wetalse audited the Company’s internal control divemcial reporting as of December 31, 2007, basedriteria established in Internal Control — Im#gd Framework issued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Tred@ommission (COSO). The Company’s managemessisonsible for these financial statements, for taaimg effective internal control over financialporting, and for its
assessment of the effectiveness of internal cootrel financial reporting, included in Managememn&port on internal control over financial repogticontained in Item 9A.(c) of the accompanying FA®rK. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on these financial statememtsiaropinion on the Company'’s internal control dirancial reporting based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstats of the Public Company Accounting OversighafioqUnited States). Those standards require tbgilan and perform the audits to obtain reasoredsarance about
whether the financial statements are free of nalterisstatement and whether effective internalmmbmver financial reporting was maintained inrathterial respects. Our audits of the financialestents included examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and diselssn the financial statements, assessing theuatiog principles used and significant estimatesleriay management, and evaluating the overall fiahstatement presentation. Our
audit of internal control over financial reportiimgluded obtaining an understanding of internaltadrover financial reporting, assessing the risktia material weakness exists, and testing arldatireg the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control based on thesseskrisk. Our audits also included performing satbler procedures as we considered necessary airthenstances. We believe that our audits progideasonable basis for our opinions.

A company'’s internal control over financial repogiis a process designed to provide reasonablesassuregarding the reliability of financial repogtand the preparation of financial statementsefdernal purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting ipieez A company'’s internal control over finanaieporting includes those policies and proceduras(tt) pertain to the maintenance of records thagasonable detail, accurately and
fairly reflect the transactions and dispositionshef assets of the company; (2) provide reasorsssierance that transactions are recorded as ngcesparmit preparation of financial statementadeordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and exjperes of the company are being made only in acmued with authorizations of management and direabthe company; and (3) provide reasonable assenggarding prevention or
timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, usedisposition of the company’s assets that coaleeha material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohaver financial reporting may not prevent or @etmisstatements. Also, projections of any evaturedf effectiveness to future periods are subjethé risk that controls may
become inadequate because of changes in conditiotigat the degree of compliance with the policieprocedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, the 2007 and 2006 consolidatedrfane statements referred to above present fairlg/l material respects, the financial positiorCemnterState Banks of Florida, Inc. as of DecerBlie2007 and 2006, and the
results of its operations and its cash flows faheaf the years then ended, in conformity with actimg principles generally accepted in the Unigdtes of America. Also in our opinion, the Compamintained, in all material respec
effective internal control over financial reporting of December 31, 2007, based on criteria estadaliin Internal Control—Integrated Framework isslie the Committee of Sponsoring Organizationgieffreadway Commission
(COS0).

Crowe Chizek and Company LLC

Fort Lauderdale, Florida
March 6, 2008
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountindrirm

The Board of Directors and Shareholders
CenterState Banks of Florida, Inc.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidatednséatts of operations, changes in stockholders’ g@uitl comprehensive income, and cash flows of €8s Banks of Florida, Inc. and subsidiariestieryear ended December 31,
2005. These consolidated financial statementshareesponsibility of the Company’s management. @sponsibility is to express an opinion on thesesobidated financial statements based on our audits

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstats of the Public Company Accounting OversighafiqUnited States). Those standards require tbgilan and perform the audit to obtain reasonasarance about whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatgmAn audit includes examining, on a test basiilence supporting the amounts and disclosuréifinancial statements. An audit also includegssing the accounting principles
used and significant estimates made by managementell as evaluating the overall financial statenpeesentation. We believe that our audits proeideasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statetegaferred to above represent fairly, in all mateespects, the results the operations and tble ftaws of CenterState Banks of Florida, Inc. anbsidiaries for the year ended
December 31, 2005, in conformity with U.S. gengrattcepted accounting principles.

KPMG LLP

March 10, 2006
Certified Public Accountants
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CENTERSTATE BANKS OF FLORIDA, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Balance Sheets

December 31, 2007 and 2006
(in thousands of dollars, except per share data)

Assets
Cash and due from ban
Federal funds sold and money market acc
Cash and cash equivalel

Investment securities available for sale, at faiue

Loans
Less allowance for loan loss
Net loans

Accrued interest receivab
Federal Home Loan Bank and Federal Reserve Bank
Bank premises and equipment,
Deferred income taxes, r
Goodwill
Core deposit intangibl
Bank owned life insuranc
Other real estate own
Prepaid expenses and other as
Total asset

Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity
Deposits
Interest bearin:
Noninterest bearin

Total depositt

Securities sold under agreement to repurc
Corporate debentur:
Other borrowed fund
Accrued interest payab
Accounts payable and accrued expel
Total liabilities
Stockholder equity:
Preferred stock, $.01 par value; 5,000,000 sharé®ezed, no shares issued or outstan
Common stock, $.01 par value: 40,000,000 sharémened; 12,436,407 and 11,129,020 shares isswbdwstanding at December 31, 2007 and 2006, régekc
Additional paic-in capital
Retained earning
Accumulated other comprehensive income (It
Total stockholder’ equity
Total liabilities and stockholde' equity

See accompanying notes to the consolidated finbsteiements
60

2007

2006

30,29: $ 40,38¢
42,15¢ 79,63¢
72,44¢ 120,02:
199,43« 235,35(
841,40t 657,961
(10,829 (7,355
830,57° 650,60¢
5,84% 5,03t
5,40¢ 2,66¢
55,45¢ 39,87¢
1,12C 1,89¢
28,11¢ 9,862
4,72¢ 3,082
9,72¢ 7,320
582 —
3,98¢ 1,38
1,217,430 $ 1,077,10:
813,53: $ 669,20«
159,08¢ 223,60:
972,62( 892,80¢
33,12¢ 52,79:
12,50( 10,00¢
42,51¢ —
1,94C 992
6,442 3,17¢
1,069,14: 959,77(
124 111
110,60« 86,98¢
36,851 30,87¢
697 (646)
148,28 117,33:
1,217,430 $ 1,077,10:
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Interest income
Loans
Investment securities available for s¢
Taxable

em
Federal funds sold and ot"

Interest expense
Deposits
Securities sold under agreement to repurc!
Corporate debentures
Other borrowing

Net interest incom
Provision for loan losse
Net interest income after provision for loan losses
Other income
Service charges on deposit accot
Commissions from mortgage broker activit
Commissions from sale of mutual funds and annuities
Debit card and ATM fee
Loan related fee
Sale of bank she
BOLI income
Gain (loss) on sale of securities.
(Loss) gain on sale of other real estate ow
Other service charges and f¢

Other expense:
Salaries, wages and employee bent
Occupancy expens
Depreciation of premises and equipm
Supplies, stationary and printing
Marketing expense
Data processing expen
Legal, audit and other professional fi
Core deposit intangible (CDI) amortizati
Bank regulatory expenses
ATM related expense
Postage and delive
Other expense
Total other expenses
Income before provision for income ta
Provision for income taxe
Net income
Earnings per shar
Basic

Diluted

Common shares used in the calculation of earniegsipare
Basic

Diluted

CENTERSTATE BANKS OF FLORIDA, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Operations

Years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005
(in thousands of dollars, except per share data)

See accompanying notes to the consolidated finbsteiments.
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2007
$ 61,87¢

9,38¢
1,381

2,531

75,17

28,69(
2,58
1,021

53z

32,820

20,02;
4,201
2,30

69C
1,09¢
1,45;
1,101
84z
46¢
49¢
30¢
3,200
36,19
11,69
3,801

12,108,59

2006 2005
46,46¢ $ 3252
9,16¢ 6,01¢
33¢ 9
3,13¢ 1,71¢
59,11 40,26¢
18,99( 10,011
2,15¢ 1,01
864 682
— 16
22,01( 11,72
37,10: 28,54
717 1,06¢
36,38¢ 27,47¢
3,401 3,22:
341 49¢
695 321
592 50¢
31€ 282
277 43
17 @
— 8
49€ 49¢
6,13¢ 5,38
16,96
3,44
1,93
607
58¢
1,10¢
672
514
32€
434
27€
2,34
29,20¢
13,31¢

077 $ 0.6¢
0.7¢ $ 0.6€
10,964,89 9,357,041
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Balances at January 1, 20
Comprehensive incom
Net income
Unrealized holding loss on available for sale sitieis:, net of deferred income taxes of $t
Total comprehensive incon
Dividends paid ($0.13 per shal
Stock options exercise
Public stock offering (net of cos
Balances at December 31, 2C
Comprehensive incom
Net income
Unrealized holding gain on available for sale sities, net of deferred income taxes of $659
Total comprehensive incon
Dividends paid ($0.14 per shal
Stock options exercised, including tax ben
Stock based compensation expense
Shares issued pursuant to the acquisition of Mit
Stock split
Balances at December 31, 2C
Comprehensive income:
Net income
Unrealized holding gain on available for sale s, net of deferred income taxes of $t
Total comprehensive income
Dividends paid ($0.15 per shal
Stock options exercised, including tax ben
Stock based compensation expe
Shares issued pursuant to the acquisition
of VSB
Balances at December 31, 2(

Disclosure of reclassification amoun
Unrealized holding gain (loss) arising during thea;, net of income taxes

CENTERSTATE BANKS OF FLORIDA, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockhol&epsity

Years ended December 31, 2007, 2006, and 2005
(in thousands of dollars)

Number of
Shares

2,068,71

31,67¢
1,150,001

5,250,381

46,57¢

277,304
5,554,75(

11,129,02/

67,47¢

1,239,091

12,436,40

Add: reclassified adjustments for (gain) loss inield in net income, net of income taxes, at Decer@be2007, 2006 and 2005 of $3, $6 and $1, respeg!

Net unrealized gain (loss) on securities, net obime taxe:

See accompanying notes to the consolidated finbsteiements.

62

Retainec

earnings
$ 18,84¢

6,33(
(1,225
$ 23,950
8,45¢

(1,538

$ 30,87¢

78S

(1,820

2005

$ (997
2

$_ (999

117,330

[738s

1,348

9,14
(1,820
67€

50¢

22,44
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CENTERSTATE BANKS OF FLORIDA, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005
(in thousands of dollars)

2007 2006 2005
Cash flows from operating activitie
Net income $ 7,79¢ $ 8,45¢ $ 6,33C
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cashvigesl by operating activitie:
Provision for loan losses 2,792 717 1,06¢
Depreciation of premises and equipm 2,308 1,93¢ 1,642
Amortization of purchase accounting adjustme 512 444 4
Net izati ion of il 1t securi iy 162 378
Net deferred loan origination fe (250) 78 231
Loss (gain) on sale of other real estate owned 5 — )
Loss (gain) on sale or disposal of fixed as 20 (10
Deferred income taxe (1,36€) 158 (2298)
Realized (gain) loss on sale or call of availablesiale securitie () 17) 3
Stock based compensation expe 50¢ 594 —
Bank owned life insurance incor (35%) (277 43
Gain on sale of bank shell (1,000) — —
Cash provided by (used in) changes
Net change in accrued interest receivable, prepgitnses, and other ass (2,33%) (1,517 (989)
Net change in interest payable, accounts payall@acrued expens: (1,087 (99 2,27¢
Net cash provided by operating activit 7,664 10,62 10,662
Cash flows from investing activitie
Purchases of investment securities available fier (16,617 (56,239 (61,849
Purchases of mortgage backed securities availablsafe (16,819 (56,587) (78,570
Purchases of FHLB and FRB stc (1,981) (388) (1,05€)
Proceeds from callable investment securities avilor sale 1,25( — —
from ities of i itiezs for sale 38,000 78,25( 81,500
Proceeds from pi-downs of mortgage backed securities available dte 32,48¢ 28,38t 27,55¢
Proceeds from sales of investment securities aJeilor sale 10,96¢ 117 2,99t
Proceeds from sales of FHLB and FRB st 13t — —
Purchase of bank owned life insura — (1,000 (6,000
Increase in loans, net of repayme (62,840 (88,549 (76,147
Purchases of premises and equipment (8,615) (9,550 (4,884
Proceeds from sale of bank st 1,000 — —
Proceeds from sale of other real estate ov 21C — 392
Net cash from acquisition of Valrico State b 7,65( — —
Net cash from acquisition of Mid FL bai — 13,64¢ —
Net cash used in investing activit! (15,170 (91,909 (116,059
Cash flows from financing activitie
Net (decrease) increase in depo (50,777) 97,437 57,77¢
Net increase in i sold to rep! (19,669 10,981 17,18¢
Net increase (decrease) in other borrowed funds 31,51¢ (1,000 1,00C
Net proceeds from common stock issua — — 34,85¢
Stock options exercised, including tax benefit@2 and 200t 67€ 488 613
Dividends paic (1,820 (1,535 (1,228
Net cash (used in ) provided by financing actig (40,067 106,37 110,20:
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equis. (47,579 25,09¢ 4,811
Cash and cash equivalents, at beginning of 120,02: 94,92¢ 90,11¢
Cash and cash equivalents, at end of $ 72,44¢ $ 120,02: $ 94,92¢
Transfer of loans to other real estate ow $ 79¢ $ — $ —
Shares issued pursuant to acquisiti $ 22,44% $ 10,96t $ =
Cash paid during the year fc
Interest $ 32,56t $ 21,561 $ 11,47¢
Income taxe: $ 4,297 $ 6,48° $ 2,56(

See accompanying notes to the consolidated finbsteiments.
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CENTERSTATE BANKS OF FLORIDA, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(amounts are in thousands of dollars, except penestiata)
December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005

Nature of Operations and Summary of Significant Acounting Policies

The consolidated financial statements of CenteeSanks of Florida, Inc. (the “Company”) include taccounts of CenterState Banks of Florida, Ite {Parent Company”jis four wholly owned subsidiary banks (Centers
Bank of Florida, CenterState Bank, CenterState Ezertral Florida and Valrico State Bank) and theiolly owned subsidiary, C. S. Processing.

During 2007, the Company combined two of its suibsjdbanks, CenterState Bank of West Florida anuté€&tate Bank Mid Florida, and changed the nanteeo€ombined bank to CenterState Bank. Also du2dy, the
Company acquired Valrico State Bank as describembia 21 of these financial statements.

The Company, through its subsidiary banks, opetatesigh 37 locations in nine Counties throughoemt€al Florida, providing traditional deposit aethding products and services to its commercialratail customers. C.S.
Processing is a 100% owned subsidiary at Decenthe20®7, which provides information technology @ech processing services for the Company’s fousiliry banks.

The following is a description of the basis of gnemtion and the significant accounting and repgrgolicies, which the Company follows in preparargl presenting its consolidated financial statemen

@

(b)

(©

Principles of consolidation

The accompanying consolidated financial statemientsde the accounts of the Parent Company, its\idwlly owned banking subsidiaries (the “Banksfidaheir wholly owned subsidiary, C.S. Processirtge
operations of the Company currently consist pritpari the operations of each of the four banks.sigificant intercompany accounts and transacti@e been eliminated in consolidation.

Use of estimates

The preparation of the consolidated financial statets in conformity with accounting principles geaily accepted in the United States of America nregumanagement to make estimates and assumptisinaffect
the reported amounts of assets and liabilitiesdaseiosure of contingent assets and liabilitiethatdate of the financial statements and the regamount of revenues and expenses during thetirgpperiod.
Significant items subject to estimates and assumstinclude allowance for loan losses, fair valofeinancial instruments, useful life of intangibland valuation of goodwill, and fair value estiesabf stock-based
compensation. Actual results could differ from thestimates.

Cash flow reporting

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, thefgamy considers cash and due from banks, federdsfsold, money market and non interest bearingsisin other banks with a purchased maturitthoée¢ months
or less to be cash equivalents. Net cash flowsegarted for customer loan and deposit transactioterest bearing deposits in other financialitosbns, and federal funds purchased and repuecageeements.
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CENTERSTATE BANKS OF FLORIDA, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements—(Coatiju
(amounts are in thousands of dollars, except penestiata)
December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005

Investment securities available for sale

The Company accounts for its investments at fdirevand classifies them as available for sale. &lized holding gains and losses are included aparate component of stockholders’ equity, nehefeffect of
deferred income taxes.

Interest income includes amortization of purchasenum or discount. Premiums and discounts on &ésiare amortized on the level-yield method withanticipating prepayments, except for mortgagekéd
securities where prepayments are anticipated. Gaiddosses on sales are recorded on the tradanthetermined using the specific identificatioetinod.

A decline in the fair value of any available-follesaecurity below cost that is deemed to be othentemporary results in a reduction in carryingoant to fair value. The impairment is charged tmegs and a new
cost basis for the security is established. Tordetee whether an impairment is other-than-tempqrémy Company considers whether it has the algility intent to hold the investment until a markéterecovery and
considers whether evidence indicating the cosh@frivestment is recoverable outweighs evidendeet@ontrary. Evidence considered in this assessimendes the reasons for the impairment, the rsggvand
duration of the impairment, changes in value subseqto year-end, and forecasted performance afeberity.

Loans

Loans receivable that management has the intenthendompany has the ability to hold for the foeedse future or payoff are reported at their ontditeg unpaid principal balance, less the allowdncéoan losses
and deferred fees on originated loans.

Loan origination fees and the incremental direst o loan origination, are capitalized and recagdiin income over the contractual life of the kafthe loan is prepaid, the remaining unamodifeees and costs are
charged or credited to interest income. Amortizatieases for non-accrual loans.

Loans are placed on nonaccrual status when thebleesmes 90 days past due as to interest or paincipwhen the full timely collection of interest principal becomes uncertain, unless the lo&oik well secured
and in the process of collection. When a loanaedl on nonaccrual status, the accrued and unger@st receivable is written off and accretionhef net deferred loan origination fees cease. & is accounted for
on the cash or cost recovery method thereafter queiifying for return to accrual status.

The Company, considering current information anehé regarding the borrower’s ability to repay thdiligations, considers a loan to be impaired wihénprobable that the Company will be unableadect all
amounts due according to the contractual termkefdan agreement. When a loan is considered itmjb&ired, the amount of the impairment is measbesid on the present value of expected futurefeash
discounted at the loan’s effective interest rdte,g4econdary market value of the loan, or thevigire of the collateral for collateral dependeainis. Impaired loans are written down to the exteait principal is judged
to be uncollectible and, in the case of impairethteral dependent loans where repayment is exgeotbe provided solely by the underlying collaterad there is no other available and reliable sesiof repayment,
are written down to the lower of cost or collateralue. Impairment losses are included in the alove for loan losses. Large groups of smaller lsalflomogeneous loans, such as consumer and résideat estate
loans, are collectively evaluated for impairment accordingly, they are not separately identif@dmpairment disclosures.
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CENTERSTATE BANKS OF FLORIDA, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements—(Coatiju
(amounts are in thousands of dollars, except penestiata)
December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005

Allowance for loan losses

The allowance for loan losses is a valuation allowesfor probable incurred credit losses. Loan bsse charged against the allowance when managémkates the uncollectibility of a loan balancedmfirmed.
Subsequent recoveries, if any, are credited talibezance. Management estimates the allowance tal@guired using past loan loss experience, theenand volume of the portfolio, information abspecific
borrower situations and estimated collateral valeesnomic conditions, and other factors. Allocasiof the allowance may be made for specific loBasthe entire allowance is available for any |¢zat, in
management’s judgment, should be charged-off.

The allowance consists of specific and general aomapts. The specific component relates to loartsatiesindividually classified as impaired. The gaheomponent covers loans that are not indiviguelthssified as
impaired and is based on historical loss experiewipested for current factors.

Premises and equipment

Company premises and equipment are stated atesssatcumulated depreciation. Depreciation is geavbn a straight-line basis over the estimatefiilibees of the related assets (3 to 40 yearsasehold
improvements are depreciated over the shortereif tiseful lives or the term of the lease. Majarewals and betterments of property are capitalizedntenance, repairs, and minor renewals andrbegtes are
expensed in the period incurred. Upon retiremerttioer disposition of the asset, the asset costelated accumulated depreciation are removed fhenaccounts, and gains or losses are includetanie.

Federal Home Loan Bank (FHLB) and Federal Reserve Bank (FRB) stock

Several of the Company’s banks are members of theBFand FRB system. Members are required to owertain amount of stock based on the level of boimg®and other factors, and may invest in additiona
amounts. FHLB and FRB stock is carried at cosssifeed as a restricted security, and periodicallgluated for impairment based on ultimate recoeépar value. Dividends are reported as income.

Bank owned lifeinsurance (BOLI)

The Company, through its subsidiary banks, hashased life insurance policies on certain key exeest Upon adoption of EITF 06-5, which is discus&&ther below, bank owned life insurance is reledrat the
amount that can be realized under the insuranceamrat the balance sheet date, which is the sasender value adjusted for other charges or aimaunts due that are probable at settlement. riadoption of
EITF 06-5, the Company recorded bank owned liferiasce at its cash surrender value.

In September 2006, the FASB Emerging Issues TasteRmalized Issue No. 06-Bccounting for Purchases of Life Insurance—Deteimgithe Amount That Could Be Realized in Accordavite FASB Technical
Bulletin No. 85-4 (Accounting for Purchases of Lifeurance){IssueThis Issue requires that a policyholder considetrextual terms of a life insurance policy in detgring the amount that could be realized under
the insurance contract. It also requires thatef¢bntract provides for a greater surrender vdlak individual policies in a group are surrendeg the same time, that
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CENTERSTATE BANKS OF FLORIDA, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements—(Coatiju
(amounts are in thousands of dollars, except penestiata)
December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005

the surrender value be determined based on thenpsisn that policies will be surrendered on anwilial basis. Lastly, the Issue requires disclosifien there are contractual restrictions on the @omy's ability to
surrender a policy. The adoption of EITF 06-5 omuzay 1, 2007 had no impact on the Company’s fitzeondition or results of operation.

Impairment of long-lived assets

In accordance with SFAS No. 144ccounting for Impairment or Disposal of Long-Livislsets assets, such as premises and equipment, andaparthntangibles subject to amortization, are restikefor impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances irdilat the carrying amount of the assets may noedmverable. Recoverability of assets to be hettsed is measured by a comparison of the cargrimgunt of an
asset to estimated undiscounted future cash flaysated to be generated by the asset. If the cgrgmount of an asset exceeds its estimated foasteflows, an impairment charge is recognizechbyamount by
which the carrying amount of the asset exceedfathealue of the asset. Assets to be disposedooidvbe separately presented in the balance shdetported at the lower of the carrying amourfaorvalue less
costs to sell, and are no longer depreciated. $hets.and liabilities of a disposed group classidie held for sale would be presented separatéheiappropriate asset and liability sections eflialance sheet.

Goodwill and intangible assets

Goodwill represents the excess of costs over fliresof assets of businesses acquired. Goodwillreadgible assets acquired in a purchase busgmsbination and determined to have an indefinigfuldife are not
amortized, but instead tested for impairment attleanually. Intangible assets with estimable udivies are amortized over their respective estadatseful lives to their estimated residual valaesl, reviewed for
impairment in accordance with SFAS No. 1Adcounting for Impairment or Disposal of Long-Liv&ssets.

The core deposit intangible is amortized over ayar period on an accelerated basis using thegiry decay rates of the underlying core deposits.

Other real estate owned

Real estate acquired in the settlement of loarecisrded at the lower of cost (principal balancéhefformer loan plus costs of obtaining title gadsession) or estimated fair value, less estinsstidg costs. Costs
relating to development and improvement of the priypare capitalized, whereas those relating tdihglthe property are charged to operations.

Loan commitments and related financial instruments

Financial instruments include off-balance sheeditiastruments, such as commitments to make laadscommercial letters of credit, issued to mestaer financing needs. The face amount for thesesi
represents the exposure to loss, before consideustpmer collateral or ability to repay. Such ficial instruments are recorded when they are funded
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CENTERSTATE BANKS OF FLORIDA, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements—(Coatiju
(amounts are in thousands of dollars, except penestiata)
December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005

Stock based compensation

Effective January 1, 2006, the Company adoptec @&t of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”). MB3(R),Share-based Paymentising the modified prospective transition methaccordingly, the Company
has recorded stock-based employee compensationsiogtthe fair value method starting in 2006.

Prior to January 1, 2006, employee compensatioeresgounder stock options was reported using thiesitt value method; therefore, no stock-based @sation cost is reflected in net income for tharyending
December 31, 2005, as all options granted had ercige price equal to or greater than the markee mf the underlying common stock at date of grant

The following table illustrates the effect on netéame and earnings per share if expense was mdassirg the fair value recognition provision of S-ANo. 123 Accounting for Stock-Based Compensatiéor the
year ending December 31, 2005:

2005

Net income as reporte $ 6,33(
Deduct: Stoc-based compensation expel

Determined under fair value based met (369
Pro forma net incom $ 5,961
Basic earnings per share as repo $ 0.6¢
Pro forma basic earnings per sh $ 064
Diluted earnings per share as repol $ 0.6€
Pro forma diluted earnings per sh $ 0.6z

Marketing and advertising costs
Marketing and advertising costs are expensed asrizat.

Income taxes

Income tax expense is the total of the current ire@me tax due or refundable and the change iercef tax assets and liabilities. Deferred taxtassed liabilities are the expected future tax am®tor the temporary
differences between carrying amounts and tax hafsessets and liabilities, computed using enacteddtes. A valuation allowance, if needed, redaegerred tax assets to the amount expected tediieed

The Company adopted FASB Interpretation A& ounting for Uncertainty in Income TaxgBIN 48"), as of January 1, 2007. A tax positigrécognized as a benefit only if it is “more likéhan not” that the tax
position would be sustained in a tax examinatiath & tax examination being presumed to occur. deunt recognized is the largest amount of taxfitehat is greater than 50% likely of being reetizon
examination. For tax positions not meeting the “enliitely than not” test, no tax benefit is record&te adoption had no affect on the Company’s fiferstatements.

The Company recognizes interest and/or penaltlagerkto income tax matters in income tax expense
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CENTERSTATE BANKS OF FLORIDA, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements—(Coatiju
(amounts are in thousands of dollars, except penestiata)
December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005
Earnings per common share

Basic earnings per common share is net incomeetivily the weighted average number of common sleatsganding during the period. Diluted earningsqeenmon share includes the dilutive effect of addal
potential common shares issuable under stock aptldistorical earnings and dividends per share haea adjusted to reflect the two for one stock gyflich occurred in May 2006.

Comprehensive income

Comprehensive income consists of net income aret etimprehensive income. Other comprehensive indochedes unrealized gains and losses on secuaitigifable for sale, which are also recognizedepasate
components of shareholders’ equity.

Loss contingencies

Loss contingencies, including claims and legalaastiarising in the ordinary course of businessrererded as liabilities when the likelihood ofdds probable and an amount or range of loss caeasenably
estimated. Management does not believe there newueh matters that will have a material effectt@nfinancial statements.

Restrictions on cash
Cash on hand or on deposit with the Federal Redtam& was required to meet regulatory reserve &eating requirements. These balances do not etrest.

Dividend restriction
Banking regulations require maintaining certainipevels and may limit the dividends paid by trenks to the holding company or by the holding pany to stockholders.

Fair value of financial instruments
Fair values of financial instruments are estimatsidg relevant market information and other assionpt as more fully disclosed in a separate naig.\alue estimates involve uncertainties and matésignificant

judgment regarding interest rates, credit riskppyenents, and other factors, especially in theratesef broad markets for particular items. Chargessumptions or in market conditions could sigaiitly affect the
estimates.

Segment reporting

The Company follows SFAS No. 13Dijsclosures about Segments of an Enterprise andt&elnformation SFAS No. 131 establishes standards for repoiifagmation about segments in financial statements.
Operating segments are defined as componentseiftarprise about which separate financial inforamais available and that is evaluated regularlyhigychief operating decision maker in deciding howllocate
resources and in assessing performance. The Condjgaivgs its revenues from providing similar bagikproducts and services to customers located thautghe Central Florida Region through similatritisition
channels and processes. Operating segments cohtist
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CENTERSTATE BANKS OF FLORIDA, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements—(Coatiju
(amounts are in thousands of dollars, except penestiata)
December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005

Company’s banking subsidiaries. Management belithegsthe Company meets the aggregation critesidefined by SFAS No. 131, for aggregating its apeg segments into the bank segment.

Reclassifications
Some items in the prior year financial statemergseweclassified to conform to the current presanta

Effect of new pronouncements

In February 2006, the FASB issued Statement ofrféiiah Accounting Standards No. 15&counting for Certain Hybrid Financial Instrume@&FAS No. 155), which permits fair value remeasuaenfor hybrid
financial instruments that contain an embeddeddévie that otherwise would require bifurcation.dkibnally, SFAS No. 155 clarifies the accountingidance for beneficial interests in securitizatiddeder SFAS
No. 155, all beneficial interests in a securitiaativill require an assessment in accordance withSSNo. 133 to determine if an embedded derivatkiste within the instrument. In January 2007, thsSB issued
Derivatives Implementation Group Issue BA@plication of Paragraph 13(b) to Securitized Irests in Prepayable Financial Ass¢BG Issue B40). DIG Issue B40 provides an exenmpfiom the embedded
derivative test of paragraph 13(b) of SFAS No. ft83nstruments that would otherwise require biéitien if the test is met solely because of a prepay feature included within the securitized inséand prepayme
is not controlled by the security holder. SFAS 185 and DIG Issue B40 are effective for fiscal gdagginning after September 15, 2006. The adopfiG+AS No. 155 and DIG Issue B40 did not have tene
impact on the Company’s consolidated financial fmsior results of operations.

Effect of newly issued but not yet effective actiogrstandards:

In September 2006, the FASB issued Statement Ng.Rdir Value Measurements. This Statement defaiesalue, establishes a framework for measuraigwvalue and expands disclosures about fair value
measurements. This Statement establishes a faie hétrarchy about the assumptions used to metsuralue and clarifies assumptions about risk duedeffect of a restriction on the sale or usaroisset. The
standard is effective for fiscal years beginningrNovember 15, 2007. The impact of adoption watshmaterial.

In February 2007, the FASB issued Statement No, TB8 Fair Value Option for Financial Assets anddficial Liabilities. The standard provides compsmiéh an option to report selected financial assed
liabilities at fair value and establishes presénteand disclosure requirements designed to fatslicomparisons between companies that chooseetliffemeasurement attributes for similar types sétssand liabilities.
The new standard is effective for the Company ondey 1, 2008. The Company did not elect the faiue option for any financial assets or finandabilities as of January 1, 2008.

In September 2006, the FASB Emerging Issues TasteRmalized Issue No. 06-4, Accounting for DeéehiCompensation and Postretirement Benefit Aspédsdorsement Splibollar Life Insurance Arrangemen
This issue requires that a liability be recordedrdythe service period when a split-dollar lifsimance agreement continues after participantsli@myent or retirement. The required accrued ligpilill be based on
either the post-employment benefit cost for thetioning life insurance or based on the future déehefit depending on the contractual terms otiaerlying agreement. This issue is effective fstdl years
beginning after December 15, 2007. The impact optidn was not material.
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December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005

On November 5, 2007, the SEC issued Staff AccogrBinlletin No. 109, Written Loan Commitments Recamtdat Fair Value through Earnings (“SAB 109”). Roesly, SAB 105, Application of Accounting Princgsl
to Loan Commitments, stated that in measuringaireviilue of a derivative loan commitment, a compsimould not incorporate the expected net futush déws related to the associated servicing ofdaa. SAB 10’
supersedes SAB 105 and indicates that the expeetefdture cash flows related to the associatedaeg of the loan should be included in measufaigvalue for all written loan commitments thae accounted for
fair value through earnings. SAB 105 also indicateat internally-developed intangible assets shaolbe recorded as part of the fair value of aeéve loan commitment, and SAB 109 retains thetw SAB 109 is
effective for derivative loan commitments issuednmdified in fiscal quarters beginning after Decemb5, 2007. The Company does not expect the ingfdbts standard to be material.

The amortized cost and estimated fair values afstment securities available for sale at Decembg2@)7 and 2006, are as follows:

U.S. treasury securitie

Obligations of U.S. government agenc
Mortgage backed securiti

Municipal securitie:

U.S. treasury securitie

Obligations of U.S. government agenc
Mortgage backed securiti

Municipal securitie:

December 31, 2007

Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Estimated
Cost Gains Losses Fair Value
$ 3,001 $ 37 $ 0 $ 3,03¢
39,77: 72¢ 1) 40,49¢
117,20: 832 (31¢) 117,71¢
38,32¢ 131 (274 38,18:
$ 198,29¢ $ 172 $ (599 $ 199,43¢

December 31, 2006

Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Estimated
Cost Gains Losses Fair Value
$ 40,42t $ 6 $  (166) $ 40,26
38,78¢ 132 (184) 38,73:
129,35° 274 (1,25¢) 128,37:
27,831 217 73 27,98!
$ 236,40. $ 63C $ (1,689 $ 235,35(
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The estimated fair value of investment securitieslable for sale at December 31, 2007, by contadanaturity, are shown below. Actual maturitiedl differ from contractual maturities because beress may have the right
call or prepay obligations with or without call mrepayment penalties. Securities not due at aesimglurity date, primarily mortgage backed seasitare shown separately:

Estimated
Fair Value
Investment securities available for s

Due in one year or let $ 5,01:
Due after one year through five ye 34,591
Due after five years through ten ye 14,332
Due after ten years through thirty ye 27,78:
Mortgage backed securiti 117,71¢
$ 199,43¢

Securities pledged at December 31, 2007 and 200@ lsarrying amount (estimated fair value) of $568,and $168,338, respectively. These securities pledged to secure public deposits and repurcdgsements.

Proceeds from sales of investment securities aleifar sale were $10,966, $117 and $2,993 foy#sas ending December 31, 2007, 2006 and 200%ctsely. Gross realized gains (losses) on salésvestment securities
available for sale during 2007, 2006 and 2005 W&e$17 and ($3), respectively.

The following tables show the Company’s investmegrsss unrealized losses and fair value, aggregayenvestment category and length of time thdividual securities have been in a continuous Uineghloss position, at
December 31, 2007 and 2006.

December 31, 200

Less than 12 months 12 months or more Total

Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized

Value Losses Value Losses Value Losses
U.S. Treasury securitie $ — $ — $ — $ — $ = $ —
Obligations of U.S. government agenc — — 99¢ 1 99¢ 1
Mortgage backed securiti 3,892 49 35,02¢ 26¢ 38,92: 31¢&
Municipal securitie 17,14¢ 157 5,80( 117 22,94¢ 274
Total temporarily impaired securiti: $ 21,04( $ 20€ $  41.82¢ $ 387 $ 62,86¢ $ 592
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December 31, 2006

less than 12 montht 12 months or more Total

Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized

value Losses value Losses Value Losses
U.S. Treasury securities $ 16,87 $ 7C $ 20,391 $ 96 $ 37,26 $ 166
Obligations of U.S. government agenc 3,98¢ 12 12,81¢ 17z 16,807 184
Mortgage backed securitit 39,25¢ 33¢ 54,21¢ 921 93,47« 1,25¢
Municipal securitiet 5,37C 7C 497 3 5,861 73
Total temporarily impaired securitit $ 65,48t $ 49C $ 87,927 $ 1,19: $  153,40¢ $ 1,682

U.S. Treasury securities and obligations of U.S:egoment agencies: The unrealized losses on ineestnn U.S. Treasury securities and obligations.&f government agencies were caused by intettesin@eases. The
contractual terms of these investments do not gehmiissuer to settle the securities at a prise fean the par value of the investment. Becaws€tmpany has the ability and intent to hold thegestments until a market pri
recovery or maturity, these investments are nosiclemed other-than-temporarily impaired.

Mortgage-backed securities: The unrealized loseésw@stments in mortgage-backed securities warsezhby interest rate increases. Fannie Mae geastiie contractual cash flows of these securitiesexpected that the
securities would not be settled at a price less the par value of the investment. Because therdeitl fair value is attributable to changes ireiest rates and not credit quality, and becaus€anepany has the ability and
intent to hold these investments until a marketeprecovery or maturity, these investments areansidered other-than-temporarily impaired.

Municipal securities: Unrealized losses on municgeurities have not been recognized into incoembse the issuers bonds are of high quality, nesmewgt has the intent and ability to hold for theeéeeable future, and the
decline in fair value is largely due to changemtierest rates. The fair value is expected to recas the securities approach maturity.

(3) Loans
Major categories of loans included in the loan fotic as of December 31, 2007 and 2006 are:

December 31,

2007 2006

Real estate
Residentia $ 209,18t $ 180,86¢
Commercial 385,66¢ 291,53¢
Construction, development, la 108,61¢ 60,95(
Total real estat 703,47( 533,35¢
Commercial 78,23! 68,94¢
Consumer and other loa 60,681 56,68¢
842,38t 658,981
Less: Deferred loan origination fees, 982 1,02¢
Total loans 841,40t 657,96¢
Less: Allowance for loan losses 10,82¢ 7,35¢
Total net loan: $ 830,57 $ 650,60¢
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The following is a summary of information regardingpaired loans at December 31, 2007 and 2006:

Individually impaired loans were as follows:

December 31,

2007 2006
Impaired loans with no allocated allowance for |t@sses $ 9,68¢ $ 252
Impaired loans with allocated allowance for loasskex 2,11f 2,464
Total $ 11,.80: $  4,98¢
Amount of the allowance for loan losses allocateiipaired loan $ 81z $ 372
2007 2006 2005
Average of impaired loans during the y: $ 6,09 $ 5,24t $ 987

Interest income recognized on impaired loans dutiegmpairment period during 2007 was $492. Casisinterest income recognized during this samegevas $432.
Non performing loans include both smaller balanesbdgeneous loans that are collectively evaluatedrfpairment and individually classified impairezhhs.

Non performing loans were as follows:
Non accrual loan

Loans past due over 90 days and still accruingest $

Certain principal stockholders, directors and @fficand their related interests were indebtede®mpany as summarized below, for the periodsngridecember 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005:

December 31

2007 2006 2005

Balance, beginning of ye. $ 14,470 $  13,53¢ $ 11,030
Additional new loan: 15,45: 11,49: 9,91¢
Repayments on outstanding lo: (7,985 (10,557 (7,419
Balance, end of ye: $ 21,94 $ 14,47 $ 13,53¢

At December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, certain graiatockholders, directors and officers of the @any and their related interests had $11,702, $T4ahd $5,541, respectively, available in linesreflit.
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Changes in the allowance for loan losses for tla@syended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, éodaaes:

Balance, beginning of ye
Provision charged to operatio
Loans charge-off

Recoveries of previous cha-offs

Acquisition of Mid FL Bank

Acquisition of Valrico State Ban
Balance, end of yei

Bank Premises and Equipmen
A summary of bank premises and equipment as of @bee31, 2007 and 2006, is as follows:

Land

Land improvement

Buildings

Leasehold improvemen
Furniture, fixtures and equipme
Construction in progres

Less: Accumulated depreciati

Goodwill and Intangible Assets
The change in balance for goodwill during the ye&287 and 2006 is as follows:

Beginning of yea
Acquired goodwill
Impairment
End of yeal

75

December 31,

2006

2005

$ 7,35t $ 6,491 $ 5,68t
2,792 717 1,06¢
(997) (599) (359)
61 98 10C
— 647 —
1,617 = =
$ 10,82¢ $ 7,35t $ 6,491
December 31
2007 2006
22,51¢ $ 16,61!
60€ 591
26,087 20,08(
1,291 1,164
11,97¢ 10,76(
6,15¢ 2,064
68,63: 51,27(
13,17¢ 11,39!
55,45¢ $ 39,87¢
2007 2006
$ 9,86 $ 4,67
18,25¢ 5,18¢
$ 28,11¢ $ 986
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Acquired intangible assets were as followed foryemded December 31, 2007 and 2006:

Amortized intangible assel

Core deposit intangible

Estimated amortization expense for each of the fiextyears:

2008
2009
2010
2011
2012

Deposits

A detail of deposits at December 31, 2007 and 20@8 follows:

Norr-interest bearing depos
Interest bearing deposit

Interest bearing demand depo:
Savings deposit

Money market accoun

Time deposits less than $100,(
Time deposits of $100,000 or grea

December 31, 2007

Gross

December 31, 2006

Gross

Carrying Accumulated Carrying Accumulated
Amount Amortization Amount Amortization
$ 6,34 $ 1,61¢ $ 3,85 $ 774
$ 771
64%
54¢
52€
52€
December 31

Weighted Weighted

Average Average

Interest Interest

2007 Rate 2006 Rate

$159,08¢ — % $223,60: — %
135,44: 0.€% 110,627 0.8%
49,127 0.7% 46,80¢ 0.¢%
93,07¢ 2.€% 100,52¢ 2.8%
238,58! 4.&% 183,61( 4.6%
297,30: 5.(% 227,630 4.%
$972,62( 3.1% $892,80¢ %

The following table presents the amount of cerificaccounts at December 31, 2007, maturing dtimgeriods reflected below:

Year
2008
2009
2010
2011
2012
Total

76

Amount
$ 467,35¢
38,83t
15,31
6,441
7,941
$ 535,88¢
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A summary of interest expense on deposits for #eyended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005fafi@ss:

December 31,

2007 2006 2005
Interes-bearing demand depos $ 1,37t $ 65¢ $ 317
Savings deposi 431 342 201
Money market accoun 3,31« 2,651 1,50¢
Time deposits less than $100,( 10,24« 6,99 4,392
Time deposits of $100,000 or grea 13,32¢ 8,34« 3,59¢

$ 28,69( $ 18,99( $ 10,011

The Company had deposits from certain principatidtolders, directors and officers and their relateerests of approximately $35,180, and $64,313eatember 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively.

@) Securities Sold Under Agreements to Repurchas

The Company'’s subsidiary banks enter into borroveirrgngements with their retail business customg@greements to repurchase (“repurchase agreeinentier which the banks pledge investment seesribwned and
under its control as collateral against the onefgtayowing arrangement.

At December 31, 2007 and 2006, the Company had.$83nd $52,792 in repurchase agreements with tegigtverage interest rates of 2.93% and 4.39%ectisply. Repurchase agreements are secured bylte&sury
securities and government agency securities withvédues of $99,888 and $116,857 at December @17 2nd 2006, respectively.

Repurchase agreements averaged $58,329, $49,8%B8/210 for the years ended December 31, 2008 200 2005, respectively. The maximum amount outiétg at any month-end for the corresponding perigds
$74,526, $54,812 and $49,046, respectively. Tatatést expense paid on repurchase agreementefgears ending December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2G85$%,582, $2,156 and $1,013, respectively, whictates to weighted
average interest rates of 4.43%, 4.33% and 2.688pectively.

®) Other Borrowed Funds
From time to time the Company will borrow shortrteeither through Federal Home Loan Bank advanc&gderal Funds Purchased. At year end, advanaestfie Federal Home Loan Bank were as follows:

2007 2006
Daily overnight advances, at December 31, 2007ntleeest rate was 4.4 $  36,00( $ —
Matures January 2, 2008, interest rate is fixetl &% 1,51¢ —
Matures March 28, 2008, interest rate is fixed.81% 2,00C —
Matures December 31, 2008, interest rate is fixedll % 3,00¢

Total $ 4251¢

Each advance is payable at its maturity date, aviphepayment penalty for fixed rate advances. Thareces were collateralized by $183,250 of firsttgame loans under a blanket lien arrangementaatgred. Based on this
collateral and the Company’s holdings of FHLB stdatle Company is eligible to borrow up to $141,22@ear end 2007.
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Corporate Debenture

In September 2003, the Company formed CenterStmtéBof Florida Statutory Trust | (the “Trust”) fitve purpose of issuing trust preferred securi®@sSeptember 22, 2003, the Company issued arftpedie corporate
debenture in the amount of $10,000. The Trust tisegroceeds from the issuance of a trust prefexeedrity to acquire the corporate debenture. Tkt preferred security essentially mirrors thepooate debenture, carrying a
cumulative preferred dividend at a variable rateattp the interest rate on the corporate debeigtaree month LIBOR plus 305 basis points). Thepooate debenture and the trust preferred secuattly bave 30-year lives. The
trust preferred security and the corporate deberste callable by the Company or the Trust, at tiespective option after five years, and soonepiecific events, subject to prior approval byFeeleral Reserve, if then
required. The Company has treated the trust peefesecurity as Tier 1 capital up to the maximum amallowed under the Federal Reserve guidelinetetteral regulatory purposes.

In September 2004, Valrico Bancorp Inc. (“VBI") foed Valrico Capital Statutory Trust (“Valrico Trisfor the purpose of issuing trust preferred seasitOn September 9, 2004, VBI issued a floating catporate debentu
in the amount of $2,500. The Trust used the prazéredn the issuance of a trust preferred secuigctjuire the corporate debenture. On April 2, 2808 Company acquired all the assets and assuiirté dabilities of VBI
pursuant to the merger agreement, including VBdiporate debenture and related trust preferredigdiscussed above. The trust preferred secesgentially mirrors the corporate debenture, cagrgi cumulative preferred
dividend at a variable rate equal to the interat& on the corporate debenture (three month LIBDR 270 basis points). The corporate debenturatenttust preferred security each have 30-yeas.iVae trust preferred
security and the corporate debenture are callabthdbCompany or the Valrico Trust, at their resjpecoption after five years, and sooner in speafients, subject to prior approval by the FedRealerve, if then required. The
Company has treated the trust preferred securifyeasl capital up to the maximum amount allowedenthe Federal Reserve guidelines for federallaggiy purposes.

Income Taxes
Allocation of federal and state income taxes betwaerent and deferred portions for the years edszember 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, is as follows:

Current Deferred Total
December 31, 2007
Federa $ 4,42t $ (1,179 $ 3,25¢
State 83¢ (195) 642
$ 5,268 $ (1,360 $ 3,891
December 31, 200€
Federa $ 3,98¢ $ 132 $ 4,121
State 71€ 22 73¢
$ 4,70« $ 15t $ 4,85¢
December 31, 2005
Federa $ 3,37¢ $ (199 $ 3,18
State 577 (33) 544
$ 3,952 $ (229 $ 3,72
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The tax effect of temporary differences that gige to significant portions of the deferred taxedssind deferred tax liabilities at December 30;728nd 2006, are presented below:

Deferred tax asset
Allowance for loan losse
Deferred loan fee
Stock based compensati
Deferred compensatic
Intangible asset

Unrealized loss on investment securities avail&iisale
Net operating loss carryforwa

Other
Total deferred tax ass
Deferred tax liabilities

Premises and equipment, due to differences in digi@n methods and useful liv

Fair value adjustmen
Like kind exchangr

Unrealized gain on investment securities availéneale
Accretion of discounts on investmel

Other
Total deferred tax liabilit
Net deferred tax ass

December 31,

2007

2006

$ 4,11( $ 2,76(
32( 398
228 11€
728 =
48 9
= 40¢
26 18¢

77 =
5,53; 3,951
(2,237 (595)
(1,376 (1,076)
(300) (300)

(43¢) —
(66) (83)
— 5
(4,410) (2,059
$ 1,12 $ 1,89¢

At December 31, 2007 the Company had approxim&@#yof net operating loss carryforwards, federal state, available to offset future taxable incoffeese carryforwards will begin to expire in 2024.

In assessing the realizability of deferred tax &ssseranagement considers whether it is more littedy not that some portion or all of the deferedassets will not be realized. The ultimate regin of deferred tax assets is
dependent upon the generation of future taxablenigcduring the periods in which those temporarfedéhces become deductible. Management considessctieduled reversal of deferred tax liabilitiesjgrted future taxable

income, and tax planning strategies in makingaksessment. Based upon the level of historicabtesitacome and projections for future taxable ineaswer the periods in which the deferred tax assetsleductible,
management believes it is more likely than not thatCompany will realize the benefits of theseuditile differences.

The Company and its subsidiaries are subject tofédgral income tax as well as income tax of tagesof Florida. The Company is no longer subje@tamination by taxing authorities for the yeagfobe 2004.

79



Table of Contents

CENTERSTATE BANKS OF FLORIDA, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements—(Coatiju
(amounts are in thousands of dollars, except penestiata)
December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005

A reconciliation between the actual tax expensethadexpected” tax expense, computed by applyliegt.S. federal corporate rate of 35 percent (3dgme for 2005) is as follows:

December 31,

2007 2006 2005

“Expecter” tax expens: $ 4,09¢ $ 4,661 $ 3,41¢
Tax exempt interest, n (515) 174 (79
Bank owned life insuranc 127 97) (15)
State income taxes, net of federal income tax litsr 41¢ 48C 36€
Other, ne 27 (11) 34
$ 3,897 $ 4,85¢ $3,72¢

(11) Rent
The Company leases land and certain facilities undecancellable operating leases. The following s€hedule of future minimum annual rentals utideinoncancellable operating leases:

Year ending December 31,

2008 $ 56€
2009 317
2010 27z
2011 274
2012 22z
Thereaftel 324

$  197F

Rent expense for the years ended December 31, 2008,and 2005, was $626, $555 and $403, respBgtarel is included in occupancy expense in th@apanying Consolidated Statements of Operations.

12) Fair Value of Financial Instruments
The methods and assumptions used to estimatesiaie are described as follows:
Carrying amount is the estimated fair value foihcaisd cash equivalents, interest bearing depasitsued interest receivable and payable, demanusidepshort-term debt, and variable rate loardeposits that reprice
frequently and fully. Security fair values are tthea market prices or dealer quotes, and if no sufohmation is available, on the rate and ternthef security and information about the issuer.fixed rate loans or deposits and
for variable rate loans or deposits with infrequemtricing or repricing limits, fair value is based discounted cash flows using current markesrapplied to the estimated life and credit riskr #alues for impaired loans are
estimated using discounted cash flow analysis detlying collateral values. Fair value of loansthielr sale is based on market quotes. Fair valuiebf is based on current rates for similar finagclt was not practicable to
determine the fair value of Federal Home Loan Bstokk or Federal Reserve Bank stock due to resmiplaced on its transferability. The fair vabfeoff-balance-sheet items is not considered melteri
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The following tables present the carrying amounts estimated fair values of the Company’s finanitisfruments:

December 31, 2007

Carrying
Amount Fair Value
Financial asset:
Cash and cash equivalel $ 72,44¢ $ 72,44¢
Investment securities available for s 199,43: 199,43:
FHLB and FRB stocl 5,40¢ n/e
Loans, less allowance for loan losses of $10 830,57° 833,21!
Accrued interest receivab 5,84% 5,84¢%
Financial liabilities:
Deposits
Without stated maturitie $ 436,73¢ $ 436,73¢
With stated maturitie 535,88t 536,60(
Securities sold under agreement to repurc 33,12¢ 33,12¢
Corporate debentu 12,50( 12,50C
Other borrowed fund 42,51¢ 42,51¢
Accrued interest payab 1,94( 1,94C
December 31, 2006
Carrying
Amount Fair Value
Financial asset:
Cash and cash equivalel $ 120,02: $ 120,02:
Investment securities available for s 235,35( 235,35(
FHLB and FRB stocl! 2,66t n/e
Loans, less allowance for loan losses of $7 650,60¢ 648,51(
Accrued interest receivah 5,03t 5,03t
Financial liabilities:
Deposits
Without stated maturitie $ 481,56 $ 481,56!
With stated maturitie 411,24 411,93(
Securities sold under agreement to repurc 52,79: 52,79:
Corporate debentu 10,00( 10,23¢
Accrued interest payab 992 992

(13) Regulatory Capital

The Company and the Banks are subject to variaudatory capital requirements administered by #defal banking agencies. Failure to meet minimupitalarequirements can initiate certain mandataorg possibly
additional discretionary actions by regulators tifatndertaken, could have a direct material éftecthe Company’s consolidated financial statesiddihder capital adequacy guidelines and the remyléramework for prompt
corrective action, the Company and the Banks mest specific capital guidelines that involve quiartitre measures of assets, liabilities and centfibalance-sheet items as calculated under regylaiccounting practices.
The capital amounts and classification are alsgestibo qualitative judgments by the regulatorsuatmmmponents, risk weightings and other factors.
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Quantitative measures established by regulati@nsore capital adequacy require the Company totaiaiminimum amounts and ratios (set forth in diglé below) of total and Tier | capital (as defirnedhe regulations) to
risk-weighted assets. Management believes, as eébker 31, 2007, that the Company meets all caguieduacy requirements to which it is subject.

As of December 31, 2007, the most recent notificefiom the Office of Comptroller of the Currenaydsthe FDIC categorized the Banks as well capidliander the regulatory framework for prompt cdivecaction. To be
categorized as well capitalized, the Banks mushtai total risk-based, Tier | risk-based and Tilewerage ratios as set forth in the table. Ttaeeeno conditions or events since that notificatiat management believes have
changed the institution’s category.

A summary of actual, required, and capital levelsassary to be considered well-capitalized foGbmpany as of December 31, 2007 and 2006, arerpieekian the table below.

To be well
capitalized under
For capital Prompt corrective
Actual adequacy purposes action provision
Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio
December 31, 2007
Total capital (to risk weighted assets) $ 138,07( 15.(% $ 73,78t 2 % $ 92,23 2 10%
Tier 1 capital (to risk weighted assets) 127,24: 13.8% 36,89¢ > 4% 55,33¢ 2 6%
Tier 1 capital (to average asse 127,24; 10.% 47,19¢ 2 4% 58,99t > 5%
December 31, 200€
Total capital (to risk weighted assets) $ 122,38 16.6% $ 58,98¢ > 8% $ 73,71t > 10%
Tier 1 capital (to risk weighted asse 115,03: 15.6% 29,49: 2 4% 44,23( > 6%
Tier 1 capital (to average asse 115,03: 11.2% 40,98¢ > 4% 51,23¢ > 5%

A summary of actual, required, and capital levelsassary to be considered well-capitalized for @hthe Company’s subsidiary Banks as of DecemliefB07 and 2006, are presented in the table b&owing January 2006,
First National Bank of Polk County, N.A. and Cette Bank of Florida, N.A. were merged together March 31, 2006, the Company acquired Center8até Mid Florida. On November 30, 2007, CenterSBatak Mid
Florida was combined with CenterState Bank Westidido N.A., after which the combined bank name wlzanged to CenterState Bank, N.A.
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December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005

For capital

Actual adequacy purposes
Amount Ratio Amount Ratio
December 31, 2007
CenterState Bank Central Florida, N
Total capital (to risk weighted asse $ 25,46¢ 12.% $ 15,82¢ 2 %
Tier 1 capital (to risk weighted asse 23,14¢ 11.7% 7,914 > 4%
Tier 1 capital (to average assets) 23,14¢ 9.2% 10,05: > 4%
CenterState Bank, N./
Total capital (to risk weighted asse 39,62 12.5% 25,438 2 %
Tier 1 capital (to risk weighted assets) 35,73« 11.2% 12,710 2 4%
Tier 1 capital (to average assets) 35,73¢ 12.2% 11,73% 2 4%
CenterState Bank of Florida, N.
Total capital (to risk weighted asse 35,83¢ 12.<% 22,19( 2 %
Tier 1 capital (to risk weighted assets) 33,04t 11.% 11,09¢ 2 4%
Tier 1 capital (to average assets) 33,04t 8.1% 16,41 > 4%
Valrico State Banl
Total capital (to risk weighted assets) 19,83¢ 14.5% 10,93« 2 %
Tier 1 capital (to risk weighted assets) 18,11¢ 13.2% 5,461 > 4%
Tier 1 capital (to average asse 18,11¢ 11.2% 6,394 2 4%
December 31, 200€
CenterState Bank Central Florida, N
Total capital (to risk weighted assets) $ 22,63t 13.(% $ 13,98 > %
Tier 1 capital (to risk weighted asse 20,877 11.9% 6,992 > 4%
Tier 1 capital (to average assets) 20,87% 8.2% 10,07( 2 4%
CenterState Bank West Florida, N
Total capital (to risk weighted asse 25,69¢ 11.1% 18,481 2 8%
Tier 1 capital (to risk weighted asse 23,25( 10.1% 9,24 2 4%
Tier 1 capital (to average assets) 23,25( 8.5% 10,94¢ 2 4%
CenterState Bank of Florida, N.
Total capital (to risk weighted asse 32,27t 12.%% 21,00¢ > %
Tier 1 capital (to risk weighted assets) 29,767 11.2% 10,50% 2 4%
Tier 1 capital (to average assets) 29,797 7.40% 16,00¢ > 4%
CenterState Bank Mid Floric
Total capital (to risk weighted assets) 8,751 12.7% 5,512 2 8%
Tier 1 capital (to risk weighted assets) 8,23¢ 12.(% 2,75¢ > 4%
Tier 1 capital (to average assets) 8,23¢ 9.5% 3,451 2 4%

(14) Dividends

To be well

capitalized under

prompt corrective

action provision
Ratio

Amount

$  19,78¢
11,87
12,56+«

31,79:
19,07¢
14,667

27,73}
16,64:
20,51¢

13,661
8,20
7,992

$  17,47¢
10,487
12,58¢

23,10¢
13,86¢
13,68¢

26,25¢
15,75¢
20,007

6,88¢
4,13
4,31

AR\ A\ v v v AR\

v v v

v v v v v v v v v

v v v

1%
6%
5%

1%
6%
5%

1%
6%
5%

1%
6%
5%

1%
6%
5%

1%
6%
5%

1%
6%
5%

1C%
6%
5%

The Company declared and paid cash dividends 8291 $1,535 and $1,225 during the years ended Dieeed1, 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively. Bankeégglations limit the amount of dividends that nieeypaid by the
subsidiary banks to the Company without prior apptof the Bank's regulatory agency. At December2107, dividends from the subsidiary banks avéelab be paid to the Company, without prior appt@fahe Banks’

regulatory agency, was $28,480, subject to the Bambeting or exceeding regulatory capital requirgse
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December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005

Stock Option Plans

On April 24, 2007, the Company'’s shareholders apguidhe CenterState 2007 Equity Incentive Plan‘@087 Plan”). The 2007 Plan replaces the 1999 Riscussed below. The 2007 Plan authorizes tharnssuof up to
700,000 shares of the Company stock. Of this am@@@,000 shares are allocated to employees, alhwh may be issued as incentive stock optiond, 180,000 shares are allocated to directors. D@y, the Company
granted employee incentive stock options for 84 gltdres, with a weighted average exercise priéd 832 per share, pursuant to this plan. Optiorre weanted at fair market value of the underlyitugk at date of grant. Each
option expires ten years from the date of granesghoptions vest at a rate of 10% per year fofisteeight years and 20% during the ninth year.

In 1999, the Company authorized 730,000 commorestfar employees of the Company under an incestivek option and non-statutory stock option pléwe (11999 Plan”). Options were granted at fair maueue of the
underlying stock at date of grant. Each option egten years from the date of grant. Options bec2®ft vested immediately as of the grant date antinued to vest at a rate of 25% on each anniwetse thereafter until
fully vested. At December 31, 2006, there were 16@ shares available for future grants. There werstock options granted pursuant to the 1999 éliaimg 2007. The 2007 Plan, discussed above, reglée 1999 Plan. At
December 31, 2007 there were 478,074 stock optiotstanding which were granted pursuant to the F388, of which 456,074 were currently exercisalie future stock options will be granted from tRisn.

In addition to the 1999 Plan, the Company assumectanverted the stock option plans of its subsydi@nks consistent with the terms and conditidrtheir respective merger agreements. These opéimnall vested and
exercisable. At December 31, 2007, they represetettisable options on 182,100 shares of the Coypaommon stock.

In 2004, the Company'’s shareholders authorizedrapl@ee Stock Purchase Plan (“‘ESPRHe number of shares of common stock for whichasystimay be granted under the ESPP is 400,000, wamciunt shall be increas
on December 31 of each calendar year. At Decenmhe2@®?7, there were no options outstanding pursiaethis plan, and no activity occurred during tivelve month periods ending December 31, 2007 &6 2elating to our
ESPP.

The Company'’s stock-based compensation consistlysaflexpense related to stock options. Duringtitelve month period ended December 31, 2007, thrapany recognized approximately $509 of stbeked compensati
expense. As of December 31, 2007, the total remginirecognized compensation cost related to netedlestock options, net of estimated forfeituress approximately $548. The weighted average pened which this
expense is expected to be recognized is 4.6 years.

The Company granted stock options for 84,000, 31L& 41,000 shares of common stock during thevevmlonth periods ending December 31, 2007, 200628608, respectively. The Company also acquirecksiptions for
77,456 shares of common stock pursuant to the meiigfe CenterState Bank Mid Florida (“Mid FL3s of the close of business March 31, 2006. Thpsers vested immediately upon change of contrad, their fair value wa
included as a portion of the purchase price paidvfid FL.
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The estimated fair value of options granted dutirese periods were calculated as of the grant(datef the merger date for those options acquiesiyant to the merger of Mid FL) using the Blacki&es option-pricing
model. The weighted-average assumptions as ofrtité date, and as of the merger date in the catedflid FL transaction, are as follows:

2007 2006 2005
Expected option lift 6.4 year 6.9 year 10 year
Risk-free interest rat 4.7%% 4.91% 4.3%
Expected volatility 29.1% 29.6% 31.5%
Dividend yield 0.82% 0.7¢% 0.71%

In 2006, the Company determined the expected fitaestock options using the simplified methodrapph allowed for plain-vanilla share options geahprior to December 31, 2007 as described in SBB Eor options
granted during 2007 and prior to 2006, the Comptetgrmined the expected life of the stock optiosisgihistorical data adjusted for known factorg thauld alter historical exercise behavior incluglemnounced retirement
dates. The risk-free interest rate is based otJtBe Treasury yield curve in effect as of the gidate. Expected volatility was determined usingohisal volatility.

SFAS 123R requires the recognition of stock-basedpensation for the number of awards that are atéify expected to vest. As a result, for most agaretognized stock compensation would be redumeelstimated
forfeitures prior to vesting. Based on historicatal the Company expects the annual forfeitures tatée immaterial. Estimated forfeitures will lrassessed in subsequent periods and may changedbasew facts and
circumstances. Prior to January 1, 2006, actuéifares were accounted for as they occurred fopgaes of required pro forma stock compensatioriatisres.

The weighted-average estimated fair value of samtlons granted during the twelve month periodsedridecember 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005 were $6.38haee, $8.35 per share and $8.07 per share raspecti
The table below present’s information related axktoption activity for the years ended December28D7, 2006 and 2005 (in thousands of dollars):

2007 2006 2005
Total intrinsic value of stock options exercis $ 68¢ $ 91C $ 172
Cash received from stock options exerci 55C 467 15€
Gross income tax benefit from the exercise of styations 12€ 22 —
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A summary of stock option activity for the yearsled December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005 is as fol{delars are in thousands, except for per shar&)dat

December 31, 2007 December 31, 2006 December 31, 2005
Weighted- Weighted- Weighted-
Average Average Average
Number of Exercise Number of Exercise Number of Exercise
Options Price Options Price Options Price
Options outstanding, beginning of peri 742,23¢ $ 11.41 706,91¢ $ 10.4: 688,66¢ $ 9.9¢
Options grante: 84,00( $ 17.3: 31,50( $ 18.5¢€ 41,00( $ 17.0C
Options exercise (67,470 $ 8.1« (73,63¢) $ 6.34 (18,24%) $ 8.5E
Options forfeitec (21,097 $ 15.4% — — (4,500 $ 9.17
Options issued pursuant to Mid FL mer = = 77,45¢ $ 12.62 = =
Options outstanding, end of peri 737,67« $ 12.2¢ 742,231 $ 11.4] 706,91¢ $ 10.4:
Weighted- Weighted-
Average Average Aggregate
Number of Exercise Contractual Intrinsic
Options Price Term Value
Options outstanding, December 31, 2! 737,67 $ 12.2¢ 5.7 year $ 1,42¢
Options fully vested and expected to vest, Decer8be007 737,67 $ 12.2¢ 5.7 year $ 1,42¢
Options exercisable, December 31, 2! 638,17« $ 11.4¢ 5.2 year $ 1,42¢

(16) Employee Benefit Plar

Substantially all of the subsidiary banks’ emplayaee covered under the Company’s 401(k) compemsatid incentive plan. Employees are eligible tbigipate in the plan after completing six montfi€ontinuous
employment. The Company contributes an amount @quatertain percentage of the employees’ corttabs based on the discretion of the Board of Dinec In addition, the Company may also make aufufiii contributions
to the plan each year, subject to profitability atlder factors, and based solely on the discretfahe Board of Directors. For the years ended b 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, the Company's cauttaibs to the plan were
$668, $842 and $650, respectively, which are iredlid salary and benefits on the Consolidated Sités of Operations.
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Parent Company Only Financial Statement:
Condensed financial statements of CenterState Bafriki®rida, Inc. (parent company only) follow:

Condensed Balance Sheet
December 31, 2007 and 2006

Assets:
Cash and due from ban
Inter-company receivable from bank subsidia
Investment in wholl-owned bank subsidiari¢
Prepaid expenses and other as
Total asset
Liabilities:

Accounts payable and accrued expel
Corporate debentul
Total liabilities

Stockholders' Equity:
Common stocl
Additional paic-in capital
Retained earning
Accumulated other comprehensive |
Total stockholder equity
Total liabilities and stockholde’ equity

Condensed Statements of Operations
Years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005

Other income

Interest expens

Operating expens¢

Loss before equity in net earnings of subsidie

Equity in net earnings of subsidiaries (net of imeotax expense of $5,213, $6,010 and $4,457 atrble®e31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectiv
Net income before income tax bent

Income tax benef

Net income

87

2007

2006

$ 52¢ 1,27¢
17,00( 32,00(

144,76¢ 94,42¢

2,03¢ 717

$ 164,32 128,42

$ 3,54¢ 1,08¢
12,50( 10,00(

16,04t 11,08¢

124 111

110,60 86,98¢

36,85' 30,87¢

697 64€)

148,28; 117,33:

$ 16432 128 42
2007 2006 2005

$ § 22 § 21

1,021 864 682

2,721 2,581 1,30¢

(3,739 (3,429 (1,969

10,22 10,73 7,561

6,48t 7,30¢ 5,59

(1,319 (1,159) (739)

$ 7,79¢ $ 8,45¢ $ 6,33(
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Condensed Statements of Cash Flows
Years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005

2007 2006 2005
Cash flows from operating activitie
Net income $ 7,79¢ $ 8,45¢ $ 6,33(
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cashl irseperating activities
Equity in net earnings of subsidiar (10,229 (10,73)) (7,56))
Increase (decrease) in payables and accrued ex 307 34 12C
(Increase) decrease in other as (279) (189 117
Stock based compensation expe 50¢ 594 —
Realized gain on sale of available for sale seiesi — 17 —
Net cash flows used in operating activil (1,886 (1,456 (999
Cash flows from investing activitie
Inter-company receivables from subsidiary ba 15,00( 5,00C (37,000
Cash payments for merger transaction ¢ (454) (279) —
Cash payments to VSB shareholc (12,229 — —
Cash payments to Mid FL sharehold 47 (4,207)
Proceeds from maturities of investment securitie$ — 30C —
Proceeds from sales of investment securities dlaifar sale — 117 —
Investment in subsidiarie — (1,000 (3,000
Net cash flows used in investing activit 2,27¢ (69 40,000
Cash flows from financing activitie
Stock options exercised, net of tax benefit in 286@ 200¢ 67€ 48¢ 612
Dividends paid to shareholde (1,820) (1,53%) (1,22¢
Net proceeds from common stock issua — — 34,85«
Net cash flows provided by financing activit (1,149 (1,049 34,24:
Net (decrease )increase in cash and cash equis (754) (2,579) (6,752)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of 1,27¢ 3,85( 10,60:
Cash and cash equivalents at end of $ 524 $ 1,27¢ $ 3,85(
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Credit Commitments

The Company has outstanding at any time a signifiscamber of commitments to extend credit. Thesengements are subject to strict credit contraésssents and each customer’s credit worthinesalsaed on a case-by-
case basis. A summary of commitments to extendtaed standby letters of credit written at Decengifg 2007 and 2006, are as follows:

December 31

2007 2006
Standby letters of crec $ 4481 $ 3,90z
Available lines of credi 127,07¢ 122,43:
Unfunded loan commitmer—fixed 15,04« 10,49¢
Unfunded loan commitmer—variable 9,12¢ 10,98t

Because many commitments expire without being fdridavhole or part, the contract amounts are nneses of future cash flows.

Credit risk represents the accounting loss thatldvba recognized at the reporting date if counteigmfailed completely to perform as contractelde Tredit risk amounts are equal to the contraetoedunts, assuming that the
amounts are fully advanced and that the collamrather security is of no value.

The Company'’s policy is to require customers tovjute collateral prior to the disbursement of ap@ioans. The amount of collateral obtained, i§ deemed necessary by the Company upon extensavadit, is based on
management’s credit evaluation of the counterp@tylateral held varies but may include accounteirable, inventory, real estate and income progidiommercial properties.

Standby letters of credit are contractual commitimésued by the Company to guarantee the perfarenaina customer to a third party. The credit islolved in issuing letters of credit is essenyidhe same as that involvec
extending loan facilities to customers.

Outstanding commitments are deemed to approxinaatedlue due to the variable nature of the inter@®s involved and the short-term nature of tramitments.

Concentrations of Credit Risk

Most of the Company’s business activity is withtomsers located within Osceola, Orange, Pasco, HemeCitrus, Sumter, Lake, Hillsborough and Polluf@es of the State of Florida and portions of eelfg counties. The
majority of commercial and mortgage loans are gmutd customers doing business or residing in theses. Generally, commercial loans are secureddestate, and mortgage loans are secured ke éitt or second
mortgages on residential or commercial propertyofA®ecember 31, 2007, substantially all of the @any’s loan portfolio was secured. Although the @any has a diversified loan portfolio, a substaiation of its
debtors’ ability to honor their contracts is depemupon the economy of Osceola, Orange, Pascoaheo, Citrus, Sumter, Lake, Hillsborough and Raxkinties and portions of adjacent counties. The fizowy does not have
significant exposure to any individual customecounterparty.
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Basic and Diluted Earnings Per Shar¢

Basic earnings per share is based on the weightedge number of common shares outstanding dunmgeriods. Diluted earnings per share includesviiighted average number of common shares outsiguadiring the
periods and the further dilution from stock optiarsing the treasury method. There were 138,00%k stptions that were anti dilutive at December 3102 The following is a reconciliation of the nura@rs and denominators
of the basic and diluted earnings per share cortipngafor the periods presented. All per share Hatgbeen adjusted to reflect the Company’s May 280 for one stock split.

2007 2006 2005
Numerator for basic and diluted earnings per st
Net income $ 7,79¢ $ 8,45¢ $ 6,33
Denominator
Denominator for basic earnings per st

—weightec-average share 12,108,59 10,964,89 9,357,041
Effect of dilutive securities
Employee stock optior 185,94° 267,16¢ 272,14¢
Denominator for diluted earnings per sh
—adjusted weighte-average share 12,294,53 11,232,05 9,629,19.
Basic earnings per she $ 0.64 $ 0.77 $ 0.6€
Diluted earnings per sha $ 0.62 $ 0.7¢ $ 0.6€

Business combination:

On March 31, 2006, the Company acquired 100% obthstanding shares of CenterState Bank Mid Flofitie purchase price consisted of cash and staath Bhare of Mid FL common stock was exchange®4@5 cash
and 0.2774 shares of the Company’s common stodedan the closing price of the Company’s commooksbn March 31, 2006, the resulting purchase wige $14,559. Other costs include the value oéthployee stock
options acquired (approximately $760) and traneaatixpenses of approximately $279. Total cost@frtansaction was approximately $15,598. Operagnglts of CenterState Bank Mid Florida are inctitethe consolidated
financial statements since the date of the aciisifs a result of this acquisition, the Companrpegts to further solidify its market share in thake County, Florida market, expand its customeelia enhance deposit fee
income, and reduce operating costs through ecorsoofiiscale.

90



Table of Contents

CENTERSTATE BANKS OF FLORIDA, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements—(Coatiju
(amounts are in thousands of dollars, except penestiata)
December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005

The following table summarizes the fair valueshef assets acquired and liabilities assumed atateead acquisition:

March 31,
2006

Fair Value
Assets:
Cash and due from ban $ 1,81
Federal funds sol 16,24(
Securities available for sa 11,09
Loans—net 52,68¢
Premises and equipme 3,34t
Goodwill 5,18¢
Core deposit intangibl 3,11¢
Other asset 53§
Total asset $ 94,01¢
Liabilities:
Deposits $ 78,30z
Other liabilities 11€
Total liabilities 78,41¢
Net assets acquire 15,59¢
Total liabilities and net assets acqui $ 94,01¢

On April 2, 2007, the Company acquired 100% ofdhtstanding shares of Valrico Bancorp, Inc. (“VBéid its wholly owned subsidiary, Valrico State B£VSB"). The $36,100 purchase price was a comtiimeof 65%
stock and 35% cash. Other cost including chang®wfrol payments, accelerated deferred compensatiangements and other transaction costs appriedn$3,200. The total cost of the transaction vgsaimately
$39,300. Operating results of VSB are includechin¢onsolidated financial statements since theafatee acquisition. As a result of this acquisitithe Company expects to further solidify its nearghare in the Hillsborough
County, Florida market, expand its customer basmt@mnce deposit fee income, and reduce operaistg through economies of scale.
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The following table summarizes the fair valueshef assets acquired and liabilities assumed atateead acquisition:

April 2,
2007
Fair Value

Assets:
Cash and due from ban $ 6,78¢
Federal funds sol 13,03¢
Securities available for sa 12,177
Loans—net 120,22¢
Premises and equipme 9,28¢
Goodwill 18,25¢
Core deposit intangibl 2,48¢
Other asset 1,83(C
Total asset $ 184,09(
Liabilities:
Deposits $ 130,61«
Other liabilities 16,89¢
Total liabilities 147,51:
Net assets acquire 36,57¢
Total liabilities and net assets acqui $ 184,09(

(22) Sale of bank shel

On November 30, 2007 the Company closed a setaibretransactions that effectively resulted in borimg two of the Company’s subsidiary Banks inte@nd selling the shell of the other. The two Bathiat we combined
were CenterState Bank West Florida, N.A. (“CSWFarid CenterState Bank Mid Florida (“Mid FL"). CSWHlas the surviving bank and its name was subsequeiminged to CenterState Bank, N.A. The Comparectfkely
sold the shell of the Mid FL subsidiary Bank toar of state bank for $1,000,000.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&{(t)e Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Regyisthas caused this report to be duly signedsobeihalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly autedriin the City of Winter
Haven, State of Florida, on the 7th day of Mar@0&

CenterState BANKS OF FLORIDA, INC

/sl __ERNESTS. PINNER

Ernest S. Pinner
Chairman of the Board,
President and Chief Executive Officer

/sl JAMES J. ANTAL

James J. Antal
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
(Principal financial officer and principal accounting officer)

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, this report has been signed belpthe following persons on behalf of the Registend in the capacities and on March 7, 2008.

Signature Title
/s| _E. S "ERNIE” P INNER Chairman of the Board
E. S.“Emie” Pinner President and Chief Executive Offic
/sl __James H. B INGHAM Director

James H. Bingham

/s|__G. ROBERTB LANCHARD , JR. Director
G. Robert Blanchard, Jr.

/'s/ _TERRYW. D ONLEY Director
Terry W. Donley

/'s/ _FRANK M. FOSTER, JR. Director
Frank M. Foster, Jr.

/sl __GaiL E. GREGG-S TRIMENOS Director
Gail E. Gregg-Strimenos

/sl __BRYAN W. JUDGE Director
Bryan W. Judge

/sl SamuEL L. L UPFER, IV Director
Samuel L. Lupfer, IV

/sl __LAWRENCEW. M AXWELL Director
Lawrence W. Maxwell

/sl _RuLonD. M UNNs Director
Rulon D. Munns
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I's/ _THomas E. OAKLEY

Thomas E. Oakley

/'s/__J. THOMAS R OCKER

J. Thomas Rocker

Title
Director

Director

Director
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Exhibit 3.4
CERTIFICATE

The undersigned does hereby certify that he i€Ctreirman, President and Chief Executive Office€efterState Banks of Florida, Inc. (the “Corporgtjpand that the following resolution was duly atied by the Board of
Directors at a meeting held on November 6, 2007:

AMENDMENT TO BYLAWS
BE IT RESOLVED, that Article V is hereby amendeddsleting such text in its entirety and insertihg following in lieu thereof:

ARTICLE V
Stock Certificates

Section 1 Certificates of StockShares of the capital stock of the Corporatioy becertificated or uncertificated, as providedemFlorida law. Any certificates representing sisanf stock shall be in such form as the Board of
Directors shall prescribe, certifying the numbed afass of shares of stock of the Corporation owmethe shareholder. Any certificates issued tostrgreholder of the Corporation shall bear the naftiee Corporation and state that it
is organized under the laws of the State of Flgride name of the shareholder, and the numberlasd @nd the designation of the Series, if angh@fhares represented. Each certificate shaigned either manually or by facsimile,
by (i) the Chairman of the Board, the Presiderg,@hief Executive Officer or a Vice President, &iijcby the Secretary or an Assistant Secretarg, girall be sealed with the seal of the Corporatioa facsimile thereof. If the person v
signed a share certificate, either manually ordmgiimile, no longer holds office when the certifics issued, the certificate is nevertheless valid

Within a reasonable time after the issuance osfearof uncertificated stock, the Corporation skelid to the registered owner thereof a writteicadhat shall set forth the name of the Corporatibe number and class (and
the designation of the series, if any) of the shagpresented, and any restrictions on the transfesgistration of such shares of stock imposethbyCorporation’s Articles of Incorporation, thedgdaws, any agreement among
shareholders or any agreement between sharehaldethie Corporation.

Section 2 Transfer of StockSubject to any restrictions on transfer and unt¢kerwise provided by the Board of Directorsyehaf stock may be transferred only on the boékseoCorporation, if such shares are certificated,
by the surrender to the Corporation or its tranafgmnt of the certificates therefor properly enddrsr accompanied by a written assignment or paivattorney properly executed, or upon proper irgtons from the registered holder of
uncertificated shares, in each case with such mbtfe authenticity of signature as the Corporatioits transfer agent may reasonably require.

The Board of Directors may appoint a transfer agedtone or more co-transfer agents and registchoae or more co-registrars and may make or aathsuch agent to make all such rules and regukstieemed expedient
concerning the issue, transfer and registratish@fhares of stock.

Section 3 Lost Certificates Any shareholder claiming a certificate of stoalbe lost or destroyed shall make affidavit orraffition of the fact and the fact that such shad#grdk the owner and holder thereof, and give rati
the loss or destruction of same in such manndreaBoard of Directors may require, and shall, & Board of Directors so requires, give the Corponaa bond of indemnity in form and amount, anchvaine or more sureties, satisfactory
to the Board of Directors and payable as may beired by the Board of Directors, whereupon the @aapon may issue (i) a new certificate or ceréfis for such stock or (i) uncertificated shareglace of any certificate or certifica
previously issued by the Corporation alleged toehagen lost, stolen or destroy



| further certify that the foregoing resolutionitisfull force and effect and has not been amendedszinded as of the date hereof.
In Witness Whereof, | have signed this Certifidateand on behalf of the Corporation this 6th dajlovember, 2007.

/sl __ERNESTS. PINNER

Ernest S. Pinner
Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer



Exhibit 10.%
AGREEMENT

THIS AGREEMENT (the “Agreement”) is made as of thEth day of June, 2007, by and between CenterBeaiks of Florida, Inc., a Florida corporation (t@erState”) and Timothy A. Pierson (the “Executive”

BACKGROUND

The purpose of this Agreement is to further reioéothe Executive’s association with CenterStateisnslibsidiary banking corporations (individualy;CenterState Company” and collectively, the “@@estate Companies”).
This Agreement also recognizes the competitivesures in the marketplace for quality employeessa®ks to enhance the prospects of CenterStatéaitkecutive by reinforcing the Executive’s retentas a valued employee of the
CenterState organization. In consideration fordtvenants and agreements of the Executive setifotttis Agreement, CenterState is granting toERecutive stock options and an increase in Exeelgtinnual salary.

Accordingly, CenterState and the Executive, integdd be legally bound, hereby agree as follows:

Noncompetition and NonsolicitatianThe Executive agrees that for a period of 12 im®fllowing the termination of the Executive’s doyment with any CenterState Company for any reagoatsoever except (1) if
terminated by a CenterState Company without cg@$éf, terminated by the Executive with good regsmn(3) change of control, the Executive will motter the employ of, or have any interest in, diyear indirectly (either as
executive, director, officer, consultant, agenemployee) of any other bank or financial institatimr any entity which either accepts deposits okesdoans (whether presently existing or subseduestablished) and which has an off
located within a radius of 50 miles of any offideany CenterState Company. In addition, during sllmonth period, the Executive agrees that the ke will not (a) solicit for employment by thex&cutive or anyone else, or
employ, any employee of any CenterState Compamypiperson who was an employee of any CenterStatgp@ny within 12 months prior to such solicitatafremployment; (b) induce, or attempt to induce; employee of any
CenterState Company to terminate such employeepogment with any CenterState Company; (c) indecgttempt to induce, anyone having a businessaehip with any CenterState Company to termiateurtail such

relationship or, on behalf of himself or anyoneeete compete with any CenterState Company; opédhit anyone controlled by the Executive, or aegspn acting on behalf of the Executive or any miletd by an employee of the
Executive, to do any of the foregoing.

The Executive’s employment shall be deemed to haes terminated for cause if as a result of the&iee’s (i) failure to comply with the policies ahy CenterState Company established from timiente; t
(i) engaging in conduct involving fraud, deceigrgonal dishonesty, breach of fiduciary or any oteaduct which may adversely affect the busineseputation of any CenterState Company; (iii) kitayly violating any banking law ¢
regulation; (iv) becoming subject to continuingeimperance in the use of alcohol or drugs whicheldasrsely affected, or may adversely affect, thermss or reputation of any CenterState Comparlygiog convicted of a crime
involving moral turpitude; (v) intentional failute perform stated duties; or (vi) filing, or havifid against the Executive, any petition under fiederal bankruptcy laws of any state insolveaas!

The Executiv’s employment shall be deemed to have been terndifiatgood reason if (a) without the express wmittensent of the Executive, there is any reduatfdhe Executiv's base salary wit



any CenterState Company, (b) without the expregitewrconsent of the Executive, any CenterState 2o requires the Executive to be based in angeffi location other than at which the Executivieaised (except for travel which
is reasonably required in the performance of thechtive’s responsibilities and which is substalytigimilar as to frequency and duration to the élaequired of the Executive during the one-yeaigoeimmediately prior to the
execution of this Agreement), or (c) without th@eess written consent of the Executive, any CerageSCompany significantly reduces the duties,aesjbilities, authority or title of the Executive.

Any termination by a CenterState Company for caud®y the Executive for good reason shall be cormioatted by a notice of termination to the otheryafhe notice of termination shall (a) set forthré@sonable
detail the facts and circumstances providing asbfasitermination of the Executive’'s employment enthe provisions so indicated, and (b) specifiestérmination date of the Executive’'s employment.

Miscellaneous

(a) If litigation shall be brought to enforce otérpret any provision contained herein (includibgt not limited to any court-ordered mediationappellate proceeding), the prevailing party in spidteeding shall be
entitled to recover from the other party its or ¢usts and expenses incurred (including reasorztuimeys’ fees).

(b) This Agreement may be modified only by an agreet in writing executed by both of the partieseher

(c) All notices and other communications hereurstie! be in writing hereunder and shall be giverhgd delivery to the other party or by registesedertified mail, return receipt requested, postagepaid,
addressed as follows:

If to Company: CenterState Banks of Florida, Ir
1101 First Street South, Suite 2
Winter Haven, Florida 3388
Attention: Ernest S. Pinni
Chairman, President and Chief Executive Off

If to the Executive At the address set forth at the end of this Agrewi
or to such other address as either party shall améshed to the other in writing in accordanceehéth. Notices and other communications shallfiecéve when actually received by the addressee.

(d) Governing Law This Agreement shall be governed by and constiiadcordance with the laws of the State of Flriflole and exclusive venue for any action arisimgpf this Agreement shall be a state or
federal court situated in Polk County, Florida, &ydhe execution of this Agreement the partiegbgiagree to the personal jurisdiction of such cour

(e) Counterpart:. This Agreement may be executed in several copater each of which shall be deemed an originalabwf which shall constitute one instrume



(f) Effect on Employment StatusNothing in this Agreement is intended to alterffogee’s at-will status with the CenterState Conigsin

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executedAlgissement as of the date first above written.

CENTERSTATE BANKS OF FLORIDA, INC.

By: /s/ ErnestS. Pinne

Ernest S. Pinne
Its:  Chairman, President and Chief Executive Off

EXECUTIVE

/sl Timothy A. Pierso

Timothy A. Piersor



CenterState Banks of Florida, Inc.
Form 10-K
For Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2007

Subsidiaries of Registrant

CenterState Bank Central Florida National Assooigti
organized under the laws of the United States

CenterState Bank National Association, organizeteun
the laws of the United States

CenterState Bank of Florida National Association,
organized under the laws of the United States

Valrico State Bank, organized under the laws ofStete
of Florida

Exhibit 21.1



Exhibit 23.1
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTINGRM

We consent to the incorporation by reference irRibgistration Statements Nos. 333-62704, 333-6238®,117591, 333-135257, 333-135258 and 333-13683%rm S-8 of CenterState Banks of Florida, Ifi@u report

dated March 6, 2008 with respect to the consoliiitencial statements of CenterState Banks ofidioinc., and the effectiveness of internal cdnaxer financial reporting, which report appearshis Annual Report on Form 10-K of
CenterState Banks of Florida, Inc. for the yeareehBecember 31, 2007.

Crowe Chizek and Company LLC

Fort Lauderdale, Florida
March 6, 2008



Exhibit 23.2
Consent of Independent Registered Public Accouriing

The Board of Directors
CenterState Banks of Florida, Inc.:

We consent to the incorporation by reference irélgéstration statements (No. 333-62704, 333-623088;117591, 333-135257, 333-135258 and 333-135@%%)orm S-8 of CenterState Banks of Florida, lotqur report
dated March 10, 2006, with respect to the constitlatatement of operations, changes in stockhsildguity and comprehensive income, and cash flovdeoterState Banks of Florida, Inc. for the yeareenBecember 31, 2005, whi
report is included herein.

/sl KPMG LLP

Tampa, Florida
March 6, 2008
Certified Public Accountants



Exhibit 31.1
CERTIFICATIONS
I, Ernest S. Pinner, certify, that:

1. | have reviewed this report on Form-K of CenterState Banks of Florida, It
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not comaynuntrue statement of a material fact or ométade a material fact necessary to make the staisrmade, in light of the circumstances under bich statements we
made, not misleading with respect to the perioceoed by this repor
3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statement$ odéimer financial information included in this repdairly present in all material respects theafigial condition, results of operations and caswslof the registrant as of, a
for, the periods presented in this rep
4. The registrar's other certifying officer and | are responsibledstablishing and maintaining disclosure contamid procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rule-15(e) and 15-15(e)) and internal control over financ
reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules-15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and hav
a. designed such disclosure controls and proceduresused such disclosure controls and procedurtas ¢tesigned under our supervision, to ensuretthggrial information relating to the registranglirding its
consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to usthgrs within those entities, particularly during theriod in which this report is being prepat
b. designed such internal control over financial réipgr or caused such internal control over finah@gorting to be designed under our supervisioprovide reasonable assurance regarding the itigliadf financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statetméor external purposes in accordance with gelyematepted accounting principle
c. evaluated the effectiveness of the registrafigslosure controls and procedures and presentidsineport our conclusions about the effectivershe disclosure controls and procedures, #seoénd of the period
covered by this report based on such evaluaticth
d. disclosed in this report any change in the tegi$'s internal control over financial reportirtzat occurred during the registrant’s most recesuiadi quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quairtethe case of an annual
report) that has materially affected, or is reabgnbkely to materially affect, the registr¢'s internal control over financial reporting; &
5. The registrant’s other certifying officer anladve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluattioernal control over financial reporting, teetregistrant’s auditors and the audit committethefregistrant’s board of directors
(or persons performing the equivalent functiol
a. all significant deficiencies and material wealses in the design or operation of internal coravelr financial reporting which are reasonably lijk® adversely affect the registrant’s abilityrezord, process,
summarize and report financial information;
b. any fraud, whether or not material, that involveanagement or other employees who have a significéin the registra’s internal control over financial reportir
Date: March 7, 2008 By: /sl __ERNESTS. PINNER

Ernest S. Pinner,
President and Chief Executive Officer



Exhibit 31.2
1, James J. Antal, certify, that:

1. | have reviewed this report on Form-K of CenterState Banks of Florida, It
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not comaynuntrue statement of a material fact or ométade a material fact necessary to make the sta'srmade, in light of the circumstances under bich statements we
made, not misleading with respect to the perioceoed by this repor
3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statement$ odéimer financial information included in this repdairly present in all material respects theafigial condition, results of operations and caswslof the registrant as of, a
for, the periods presented in this rep
4. The registrar's other certifying officer and | are responsibledstablishing and maintaining disclosure contamid procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rule-15(e) and 15-15(e)) and internal control over financ
reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules-15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and hav
a. designed such disclosure controls and proceduresused such disclosure controls and procedonss designed under our supervision, to ensatentiaterial information relating to the registrantluding its
consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to usthgre within those entities, particularly during theriod in which this report is being prepat
b. designed such internal control over financigbréing, or caused such internal control over fialreporting to be designed under our supervigioprovide reasonable assurance regarding thabilél of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statetméor external purposes in accordance with gelyematepted accounting principle
c. evaluated the effectiveness of the registrafigslosure controls and procedures and presentidsineport our conclusions about the effectiver@she disclosure controls and procedures, #seoénd of the period
covered by this report based on such evaluaticth
d. disclosed in this report any change in the tegi$'s internal control over financial reportirtzat occurred during the registrant’s most recesuiadi quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quairtethe case of an annual
report) that has materially affected, or is reabgnbkely to materially affect, the registr¢'s internal control over financial reporting; &
5. The registrant’s other certifying officer ankdve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluattioernal control over financial reporting, teetregistrant’s auditors and the audit committethefregistrant’s board of directors
(or persons performing the equivalent functiol
a. all significant deficiencies and material wealses in the design or operation of internal coravelr financial reporting which are reasonably lijk® adversely affect the registrant’s abilityrezord, process,
summarize and report financial information;
b. any fraud, whether or not material, that involveanagement or other employees who have a significéin the registra’s internal control over financial reportir
Date: March 7, 200 /sl JAMES J. ANTAL

James J. Antal
Senior Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer



Exhibit 32.1
Certification of President and Chief Executive ©¢fi

The undersigned President and Chief Executive @ffi¢ CenterState Banks of Florida, Inc. does hepeltify, to such officer’s knowledge, that theport fully complies with the requirements of Sewtll3(a) or 15(d) of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and that the inédiom contained in this report fairly presentsaihmaterial respects, the financial condition aesults of operation of CenterState Banks of Forldc.

/sl _ERNESTS. PINNER
Ernest S. Pinner
President and Chief Executive Officer

Date: March 7, 2008



Exhibit 32.2
Certification of Senior Vice President and Chiefdficial Officer

The undersigned Senior Vice President and Chiedrfgial Officer of CenterState Banks of Florida,.ldoes hereby certify, to such officer's knowleddpt this report fully complies with the requireme of Section 13(a) or 15
(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and thatinformation contained in this report fairlyepents, in all material respects, the financiabidamn and results of operation of CenterState Baofi-lorida, Inc.

/sl JamES J. ANTAL
James J. Antal
Senior Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer

Date: March 7, 200



